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*No response to this item is included herein for the reason that it is
inapplicable or the answer to such item is negative.

Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains certain statements, which are
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties. The terms
"anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "objective," "plan," "project"
and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
Such forward-looking statements are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties
that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those
contemplated by such forward-looking statements. In addition to the assumptions
and other factors referred to specifically in connection with such statements,
factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those
contemplated by such forward-looking statements include, without limitation,
general economic conditions and market conditions in the recreational vehicle,
truck, automotive, industrial production, and construction industries in North
America, Europe and, to a lesser extent, Asia, market acceptance of existing and
new products, successful integration of acquisitions, competitive pricing,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, the Company's ability to access
capital markets, the Company's high debt level which results in less financial
flexibility in terms of debt covenants and debt availability, and other factors
that may be referred to or noted in the Company's reports filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1 - Financial Statements (unaudited)

ACTUANT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
Months Ended
May 31,
31,
2001 2000

2000
<S> <C> <C>
<C>
LS = 0 = $ 123,935 $ 178,527
$ 535,655
Cost of Products SoOld. ..ttt tteteeeeeeeeennneeeeeeeannnnn 80,729 112,497
341,816

GroSS Profit. ittt ittt et ettt ettt et ettt et 43,206 66,030
193,839
Engineering, Selling and Administrative EXpenses................ 23,405 34,761
103,329
Amortization of Intangible ASSELS. ...ttt ittt ineennennnnn 1,725 1,946
5,902
Contract Termination RECOVET Y. ..t ittt tntteeeneeeeenneenenns - -
(1,446)
Restructuring Charge. ...ttt ittt e et e ittt eiaeeaenns 1,740 -
Corporate Reorganization EXPeNSesS. .. ...ttt enenneennennenns - 962
4,449

Operating EarningsS. ...ttt ittt ettt et teeaeeeeeneenns 16,336 28,361
81,605
Other Expense (Income) :

Net Financing CoOStS. it ii ittt ittt ttneneeenenneenneenenas 12,094 8,952
22,274

Accounts Receivable Securitization Costs.................. 617 798
5,618

Other, Net. ... et i 1,177 (172)

(824)

Nine

$ 354,790

228,778

126,012

66,673

4,593

1,740



Earnings from Continuing Operations before Income Tax Expense... 2,448 18,783 14,915
54,537
INCOME TaX BRI S .t vt vttt ettt e et e eetesesenasssenenassseeenasssss 990 6,715 6,074
19,584
Earnings from Continuing Operations.........iiiiiiiiiineeennnnn 1,458 12,068 8,841
34,953
Discontinued Operations, net of Income TaxXeS.......ewuweenwuenennn (781) 12,892 (781)
34,231
Extraordinary Item, net of Income Taxes
Loss on Sale of Subsidiary.....oeiiiiiiii it iennnnnns - (12,186) -
(12,186)
D o = ol o oL = S 677 S 12,774 S 8,060
S 56,998
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Continuing OpPerationS .« ittt ettt ettt et ettt eeeeeeeennn S 0.18 S 1.54 $ 1.11
$ 4.48
Discontinued Operations. ... ..ttt ittt e enneenenns (0.10) 1.65 (0.10)
4.38
Extraordinary Ttem. ...ttt ittt ettt ettt et et et eeaeenennens - (1.56) -—
(1.56)
B o $ 0.09 $ 1.63 $ 1.02
7.30
Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Continuing OpPerationS .« v ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt e S 0.18 S 1.50 $ 1.07
4.34
Discontinued Operations. ... ..ttt ittt n et eeenneenenns (0.09) 1.60 (0.09)
4.25
Extraordinary Ttem. ...t ittt ittt ettt ittt e et eeaeeneenenn - (1.51) -—
(1.51)
1 = $ 0.08 $ 1.59 $ 0.97
$ 7.07
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:
= = I 1P 7,948 7,819 7,937
7,809
3 S o Y 8,235 8,047 8,297
8,060
</TABLE>
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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ACTUANT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share amounts)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
May 31, August 31,
2001 2000
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
<S> <C> <C>
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . ...ttt ittt ittt ettt eteeenneeesennnas S 632 S 9,896
Accounts receivable, Nel. ...ttt ittt teeeeeeeeenaeeeeeenneenneennns 54,772 83,553
INVENtOTIES, ML . ittt it ittt ettt et ettt ettt eeeeneeeeeeeeennnenns 59,041 67,599
Deferred 1NCOME LaAXKES . v v i i e ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeneeeeeenneeeeeennns 4,526 4,542
OLher CUTTENET @SS S . i ittt ittt ittt ettt et tteeeeeeeeeenneeeeeeeennnnens 7,891 38,124
Total CUrrent ASSEL S . i ittt ittt ittt etnseeeeeeeeenneeeeeeeeenns 126,862 203,714



Property, Plant and Equipment, Net. ... ...ttt ittt enneenennenns
[0k dn N N o Y
Other Intangible AsSsetsS, NeT . ...ttt ittt ettt ettt et et et
Other LoNg—term ASSE LS. it ittt ittt ittt tn et e seeenaeeseeenaeesessnsneessssenaassenas

B o= B = = i

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Short—term DO rOWINg S . vt ittt it it it e et e it ettt et et ettt et e eea e
Trade accoUnts payable. ittt ittt ittt eenneeaeennnas
Accrued compensation and benefits. ... ...l e e
Income taxes PaVab e . i vttt ittt ittt ettt etat e
Other current liabilities. ...ttt ittt ettt et eeaenaeeaenn

T3 o Lo e w1 Y o
Deferred INCOME TaXeS . v e ittt eneeneeneeneeeneeneeneeneeneeeeeeneeneeneeneeneens
Other Long-term Liabilities. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt et e et et et e

Shareholders' Equity:
Class A common stock, $0.20 and $1.00 par value, authorized 16,000,000
and 80,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 7,960,664 and 7,922,910

Shares, respPeCtively. i v it it ittt ittt et teeenneeeeeeenaassennn
Additional paid-in capital. ...ttt e e ettt e
Accumulated other comprehensive incCome. ......c.i ittt nnneeeennnnnns
Retained EarningS . vt ittt ittt et ettt ettt et et e e e

Total Shareholders' DeficCit... ... ..ttt ittt ettt et et e

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' EqQUity..c.o ittt ittt enneeeeennn

</TABLE>

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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ACTUANT CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
<S>
Operating Activities
Net earnings from continuing oOperationsS. ... ...ttt ittt ettt tneeenenneennns

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization....... .ttt ittt ennnnenns

Extraordinary loss on sale of subsidiary..........coiiiiiiiiiiiinn..

Other non-cash 1temS. ...ttt it ittt

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding

the effects of business acquisitions:

Accounts receivable. . ...ttt e e e et e
D 08T o o ol =
Other asSsSels. ittt i ittt it ettt ittt e
Trade accounts payable. ...ttt it ennneeennnnnas
Other accrued liabilities........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnnnnn
Income taxes pPayvable. . ...ttt ittt it

Cash provided by continuing operations. ... ..ottt ieennneeeennnnns
Cash provided by discontinued operations.......c...iiiiiiiiiiiinnennennnns

Net cash provided by operating activities..........iiiiiiiiiiiininnnnn.
Investing Activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment............oiiiiinienen..

Proceeds from INSUILANCE TECOVE LYt v vt ittt o vt oo e sonsnennsesensenneesessnneessennnas
Additions to property, plant and equipment.......... .ttt

44,503 49,168
121,672 116,348
22,255 21,040
25,995 26,711

s 341,287 $ 416,981
s 364 $ 1,259
34,992 43,455
12,914 16,365
13,761 39,852
25,180 25,312
87,211 126,243
388,855 431,215
4,176 4,486

17,825 17,992

1,592 7,923
(625,282) (632,050)
(19,313) (16,991)
486,223 478,163
(156,780) (162, 955)

$ 341,287 $ 416,981

Nine Months
Ended
May 31, 2001

1,907
1,118
(5,277)

Nine Months
Ended
May 31, 2000

703

(9,170)



BUSiness aCqUisitions. .ttt it ettt et e et e e e e e e (11,250)

Business dispositions and Other. ... ...ttt ittt eenneeseeennnenns 1,192 15,233
Net investing activities of discontinued operations.............oiiiiiiiinnnnn. - (42,200)
Net cash used in investing activities....... ..ot (12,310) (35,440)
Financing Activities
Net (repayments) borrowings of debt..... ...ttt ittt (42,257) (36,514)
Dividends paid on COMMON STOCK . it ittt ittt ettt ittt ettt aeesesennaeasennnas - (1,757)
Proceeds from sStock OpLion eXerCisSes. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt 437 1,893
Net financing activities of discontinued operations..........c.iiiiiiiiieennnnn. - 11,657
Net cash used in financing activities..... ...t iiennnnenns (41,820) (24,721)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cCash.......i ittt it iieeeteeennnenns 54 (173)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents...... ...ttt iieenennennnns (9,264) (15,450)
Effect of change in cash of discontinued operations............oiiuiiiiinennnnn. - 15,002
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period..........iiiiiiiiiiniinnennenn. 9,896 7,256
Cash and cash equivalents — end of period. ... ..ttt ittt ittt eennnenns $ 632 $ 6,808
</TABLE>

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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ACTUANT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Basis of Presentation

On January 9, 2001, Applied Power Inc. shareholders approved the change of the
name of the Company to Actuant Corporation. The accompanying unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of Actuant Corporation ("Applied Power,"
"Actuant," or the "Company") have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles for interim financial reporting and the
instructions of Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do
not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted
accounting principles for complete financial statements. The condensed
consolidated balance sheet data as of August 31, 2000 was derived from audited
financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by generally
accepted accounting principles. For additional information, refer to the
consolidated financial statements and related footnotes in the Company's fiscal
2000 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair
presentation of financial results have been made. Such adjustments consist of
only those of a normal recurring nature. Operating results for the nine months
ended May 31, 2001 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
expected for the entire fiscal year ending August 31, 2001.

On January 9, 2001, our shareholders approved a reverse stock split whereby
every five shares of common stock were converted into one share of common stock.
In addition, our shareholders approved a reduction in our authorized Class A
common shares from 80 million to 16 million with a similar reduction for other
capital stock. Where appropriate, these changes are reflected in these financial
statements for all periods presented.

Prior year's financial statements have been reclassified where appropriate to
conform to current year presentations.

(2) Distribution and Discontinued Operations

On January 27, 2000, Applied Power's board of directors authorized various
actions to enable Applied Power to distribute its Electronics segment ("APW
Ltd.") to its shareholders (the "Distribution"). In the Distribution, Applied
Power shareholders received, in the form of a special dividend, one share of APW
Ltd. common stock for each Applied Power common share. As a result, APW Ltd.
became a separately traded, publicly held company. The Distribution was approved
by the board of directors on July 7, 2000 and shares of APW Ltd. were
distributed to Applied Power shareholders of record at July 21, 2000, effective
July 31, 2000.

Accordingly, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended May 31, 2000 have
been reclassified to reflect the Company's former Electronics segment as a
discontinued operation. Thus, the revenues, costs and expenses, and cash flows
of the former Electronics segment have been excluded from the respective



captions in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements. The
net operating results of the former Electronics segment have been reported, net
of applicable taxes, as "Discontinued Operations, net of Income Taxes." The net
operating results of the discontinued operations include financing costs related
to the debt allocated to the Electronics segment.

An $0.8 million loss was recorded in "Discontinued Operations, net of Income
Taxes" for the three months ended May 31, 2001 to reflect a change in estimate
for Electronics segment liabilities assumed by the Company as part of the
Distribution.

(3) Acquisitions and Divestitures

certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Dewald Manufacturing, Inc.
("Dewald"). Dewald is engaged in the design and manufacture of recreational
vehicle ("RV") slide out and leveling systems for the North American RV market.
The results of operations of Dewald are included in the accompanying financial
statement since the date of acquisition. The acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase, and the purchase price of $13.4 million (including deferred purchase
price of $1.8 million and transaction costs) was allocated to the fair value of
the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The excess purchase price over
the fair value of assets acquired, which approximates $8.3 million, was recorded
as goodwill and is being amortized over 20 years. This acquisition was funded by
borrowings under Actuant credit facilities.

In May 2001, the Company sold its Tools and Supplies Quick Mold Change ("QMC")
business to the QMC

management team for approximately $1.0 million. The QMC business had revenue of
approximately $6.0 million and a net loss of approximately $0.3 million in the

last twelve months. The sale resulted in a loss of approximately $0.6 million,

$0.4 million after-tax, or $0.05 per diluted share which is recorded in "Other

Expense (Income), Other."

In May 2001, the Company recorded a charge in "Other Expense (Income), Other" of
$1.5 million, $0.9 million after-tax, or $0.11 per diluted share, for the net
present value of future lease and holding costs on a building that had been
occupied by a former subsidiary. At the time the Company sold the divested
business, it received a five-year sub-lease with renewal options. Due to a
change in control at the parent company of the divested business, the renewal
option was not exercised. We were unsuccessful in subletting the building during
the quarter.

On May 26, 2000, the Company completed the sale of Air Cargo Equipment
Corporation, a business unit in the Engineered Solutions segment. The total
consideration from the transaction, which was structured as both a sale of stock
of the Air Cargo Equipment Corporation and a sale of other assets, was $12.0
million, resulting in an extraordinary loss of $13.9 million, $12.2 million
after tax, or $1.51 per diluted share.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company divested other businesses
and discontinued certain product lines, which significantly impacts the
comparability of financial information presented. See "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" for further
discussion.

(4) Sale of Trade Accounts Receivable

accounts receivable in a securitization transaction. In this transaction, the
Company retained servicing responsibilities and a subordinated interest in the
receivables sold. The investors have no recourse against the Company for failure
of debtors to pay when due, and the Company's retained interest in the
receivable pool is subordinate to the investor's interests. The Company's
retained interest in the receivable pool is recorded at fair value, which was
determined based on historical default rates for the trade receivables. The
Company recorded a discount on the receivables sold of $0.2 million and
transaction costs of $0.4 million, both of which are included in "Accounts
Receivable Securitization Costs." The Company received $30 million for sold
receivables, which was used to reduce indebtedness under its senior credit
agreement.

(5) Restructuring Charge

fiscal third quarter of 2001. These plans are designed to reduce administrative
and operational costs and resulted in a charge of $1.7 million, $1.0 million
after-tax, or $0.13 per diluted share. Of the pre-tax charge, $0.3 million
related to the consolidation of our RV slide production facilities, $0.6 related
to downsizing our cable tie production facility, and $0.8 million related to
other personnel reductions. The company wrote down the fixed assets at the
locations to be closed or downsized to their fair value, less costs to sell, in



the third quarter. We expect net cash proceeds of approximately $0.5 million
from the ultimate disposal of these assets, which should be completed by the
third quarter of fiscal 2002. As a result of these plans, we have terminated
approximately 36 people.

A rollforward of the restructuring reserve recorded is shown in the following
table:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Fiscal 2001
Third Quarter May 31, 2001
Restructuring Cash Charged to Restructuring
in thousands Charge Payments Asset Accounts Reserve
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Severance S 822 S (225) S - S 597
Exit Costs 820 - - 820
Asset Impairments 98 - (98) -
S 1,740 $ (225) $ (98) $ 1,417
</TABLE>
(6) Inventories, Net
The nature of the Company's products is such that they generally have a very
short production cycle. Consequently, the amount of work-in-process at any point
in time is minimal. In addition, many parts or components are ultimately either
sold individually or assembled with other parts making a distinction between raw
materials and finished goods impractical to determine. Several other locations
maintain and manage their inventories using a job cost system where the
distinction of categories of inventory by state of completion is also not
available. As a result of these
7
factors, it is neither practical nor cost effective to segregate the amounts of
raw materials, work-in-process or finished goods inventories at the respective
balance sheet dates, as segregation would only be possible as the result of
physical inventories which are taken at dates different from the balance sheet
dates.
(7) Earnings Per Share
The reconciliations between basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows
(in thousands, except per share amounts):
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended Nine Months
Ended
May 31, May 31
2001 2000 2001
2000
<S> <C> <C> <C>
<C>
Numerator:
Earnings from continuing operations.............c.oeee.o.. S 1,458 S 12,068 $ 8,841 S
34,953
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations............ (781) 12,892 (781)
34,231
Extraordinary loss, net of tax......oiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. - (12,180) -
(12,186)
D o T b o oL = N S 677 S 12,774 S 8,060 S
56,998
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding for
basic earnings per share. ... .ottt iennnnnns 7,948 7,819 7,937
7,809
Net effect of dilutive stock options based on the
treasury stock method using average market price...... 287 228 360
251

Weighted average common and equivalent



shares outstanding for diluted earnings per share..... 8,235 8,047 8,297
8,060

Basic Earnings Per Share:

Earnings from continuing operations...........c..c.eeee.o.. S 0.18 S 1.54 $ 1.11 S
4.48

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations............ (0.10) 1.65 (0.10)
4.38

Extraordinary loss, net of tax.......ouiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. - (1.50) -
(1.56)

Basic earnings per Share. .. ...t e e e e enenenenennns S 0.09 S 1.63 $ 1.02 S
7.30

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Earnings from continuing operations.............c.eeee.o.. S 0.18 S 1.50 $ 1.07 S
4.34

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations............ (0.09) 1.60 (0.09
4.25

Extraordinary loss, net of tax.......oiiiiiiiiiiiinnnan. - (1.51) -
(1.51)

Diluted earnings pPer Share.........uetieieneeenenennnnns S 0.08 S 1.59 $ 0.97 S
7.07
</TABLE>

Note: Earnings per share data may not total due to rounding.

(8) Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income are as follows (in thousands):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
May 31, May 31,
2001 2000 2001
2000
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
JSR S CTCW o o 5 oL = N S 677 $ 12,774 S 8,060 S
56,998
Foreign currency translation adjustments........... (379) (9,604) (2,265)
(12,199)
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap.............. (57) - (57)
Comprehensive INCOME. . ...ttt e teneeneeneenennns S 241 $ 3,170 $ 5,738 $
44,799
</TABLE>

(9) Plant Fire

was damaged by fire. The fire damaged a portion of the leased building, as well
as certain inventory and property, plant and equipment contained therein.
Additionally, the fire impacted the shipment of product produced on the truck
cab-tilt production line that is housed in the damaged facility. The Company is
party to an insurance contract that is expected to cover the damaged inventory
and equipment as well as the business interruption resulting from the fire. The
costs incurred through May 31, 2001 and the net book value of lost assets total
$1.5 million. The Company received advance payments of $1.5 million from the
insurance carrier during the third quarter in partial settlement of the
insurance contract. Of the $1.5 million received, $1.1 million related to
recovery on fixed assets destroyed and the remaining $0.4 million related to
recovery of business interruption costs. A gain of $1.0 million, $0.6 million
after-tax, or $0.07 per diluted share, was recorded in "Other Expense (Income),



Other" to reflect the difference between the book value of the assets destroyed
and the minimum reimbursement from the insurance carrier received in the
quarter. Approximately $1.0 million of costs associated with the fire loss are
recorded in other current assets at May 31, 2001 in the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet, which represents amounts expected to be recovered from our
insurance carrier. Future insurance recoveries under our insurance policy are
probable, and will be recorded net of additional costs associated with the fire,
when estimable.

(10) Segment Information

segments: Tools & Supplies and Engineered Solutions. Tools & Supplies products
include high-force hydraulic tools, electrical tools and consumables, which are
sold to a variety of distribution markets including general industrial,
construction, production automation, retail do-it-yourself ("DIY"), retail
marine and retail automotive aftermarket. Engineered Solutions works with
customers to provide customized solutions in the recreational vehicle ("RV"),
truck, automotive, medical, and other markets. Products include RV slide-out and
leveling systems, hydraulic cab-tilt systems for heavy-duty trucks,
electro-hydraulic automotive convertible top actuation systems and extruded and
molded silicone products for the medical market. "General corporate and other"
as indicated below primarily includes general corporate expenses, financing
costs on third party debt and foreign currency exchange adjustments.

The following table summarizes financial information by reportable segment (in
thousands) :

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

May 31, May 31,

2001 2000 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Net Sales:
Tools & SUPPlieS. vttt ittt iiieennnn $ 68,427 $ 79,590 $ 207,111 $ 230,165
Engineered Solutions..................... 55,508 98,937 147,679 305,490
e = $ 123,935 $ 178,527 $ 354,790 $ 535,655
Earnings Before Income Tax Expense:
Tools & SUPPlieS. vttt it iiieiennnn $ 10,493 $ 14,976 S 33,928 $ 41,248
Engineered Solutions..................... 8,998 17,792 24,722 55,412
Corporate and other........ ... . ... (17,043) (13,985) (43,735) (42,123)
B o B $ 2,448 $ 18,783 $ 14,915 S 54,537

</TABLE>
(11) Recent Events

On March 21, 2001, the Company announced that it is in preliminary discussion
with a number of parties regarding the possible sale of its Mox-Med business,
which is part of the Engineered Solutions segment. Mox-Med provides molded and
extruded silicone products for the medical and housewares industries, and has
annual net sales of approximately $20 million. In the event we complete a
divestiture of Mox-Med, the net proceeds would be used to reduce our outstanding
debt.

(12) Guarantor Condensed Financial Statements

In connection with the Distribution, Actuant issued 13% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2009. All of our material domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries (the
"Guarantors") fully and unconditionally guarantee the 13% notes on a joint and
several basis. We believe separate financial statements and other disclosures
concerning each of the Guarantors would not provide additional information that
is material to investors. Therefore, the Guarantors are combined in the
presentation below. There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
Guarantors to make distributions to

Actuant. The following tables present the results of operations, financial
position and cash flows of Actuant Corporation and its subsidiaries, the
Guarantors and non-guarantor entities, and the eliminations necessary to arrive
at the information for the Company on a condensed consolidated basis.



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Dollars in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>

Net SalesS.. ittt ittt ittt e
Cost of products sold.....coviiiiiinnnnnenn

Gross profit......iiiiiiiiiiiiii,
Operating exXpensesS......uoviin i nnennns
Amortization of intangible assets..........

Operating earnings........c.covvvuee..

Other expense (income) :

Intercompany activity, net.........
Net financing costs................
Other, net..... ...

(Loss) Earnings from continuing
operations before income tax (benefit)

oD oY 0 o =
Income tax (benefit) expense...............

(Loss) Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Net (loss) earnings.........oeeeeeenennennn.

</TABLE>

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Consolidated

<S>

Net SalesS. ittt ittt it iiniineenneens
Cost of products sold......oviiiiiiinnnnnn.

Gross profit. ..t
Operating EXPEeNSES . . vttt eteneenesneennns
Amortization of intangible assets..........

Operating earnings............c..o....

Other expense (income) :

Intercompany activity, net.........
Net financing costs................
Other, net...... ... ...

(172)

Earnings (Loss) from continuing operations

before income tax (benefit) expense........
Income tax (benefit) expense...............

Earnings (Loss) from continuing operations..
Earnings from discontinued operations......

Earnings before extraordinary item.........
Extraordinary 1OSS. ... eiieininenneennnn

(12,186)

Three Months Ended May 31, 2001

Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
$ 19,100 S 64,447 $ 40,388 -- $ 123,935
11,560 42,365 26,804 -- 80,729
7,540 22,082 13,584 -- 43,206
7,440 9,992 7,713 25,145
2 1,639 84 -- 1,725
98 10,451 5,787 - 16,336
(2,009) 1,431 578 - -
12,166 8 537 -- 12,711
(511) 12 1,676 -- 1,177
(9,548) 9,000 2,996 -- 2,448
(2,082) 3,154 (82) - 990
(7,466) 5,846 3,078 1,458
-- -- (781) -- (781)
S (7,466) $ 5,846 $ 2,297 -- S 677
Three Months Ended May 31, 2000
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
$ 22,082 $ 51,642 $ 104,803 $ -= $ 178,527
12,974 33,395 66,128 -- 112,497
9,108 18,247 38,675 - 66,030
8,847 7,475 19,401 -- 35,723
2 996 948 -- 1,946
259 9,776 18,326 -- 28,361
485 3,350 2,243 (6,078) -=
9,257 148 345 - 9,750
(333) 2 159 --
15,579 18,783
(9,150) 6,276 6,078
(2,253) 2,916 5,378 674 6,715
(6,897) 3,360 10,201 5,404 12,068
-- -- 12,892 -- 12,892
(6,897) 3,360 23,093 5,404 24,960
-- -- (12,186) --



Net (loss) earnings.......eeeeeiiieeeennnnn.

S (6,897) $ 3,360 $ 10,907 $ 5,404 $ 12,774
</TABLE>
10
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Nine Months Ended May 31, 2001
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Net SaleS . ittt ittt ittt S 57,742 $ 177,349 $ 119,699 -- $ 354,790
Cost of products so0ld.......oviiiiinnnnnnn 34,994 115,782 78,002 -= 228,778
Gross profit. ..t 22,748 61,567 41,697 -= 126,012
Operating EXPEeNSES . . vttt eteneeneeneenans 18,664 29,191 20,558 68,413
Amortization of intangible assets.......... 7 4,370 216 -= 4,593
Operating earnings..........eevevue... 4,077 28,006 20,923 -= 53,006
Other expense (income) :
Intercompany activity, net............ (4,297) 2,649 1,048 -— -—
Net financing costs.......iiieiiininn.. 37,197 8 1,006 -= 38,211
Other, nNet. ... .ttt nenenennnnn (329) 26 183 -- (120)
(Loss) Earnings from continuing operations
before income tax (benefit)expense......... (28,494) 25,323 18,086 -— 14,915
Income tax (benefit) expense............... (9,068) 9,403 5,739 -= 6,074
(Loss) Earnings from continuing operations. (19,4206) 15,920 12,347 8,841
Loss from discontinued operations.......... -= -= (781) -= (781)
Net (1lOSS) €arnNingS. .. ..ceeeeeenenenenennns S (19,4206) $ 15,920 S 11,566 - S 8,060
</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Nine Months Ended May 31, 2000
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
Consolidated
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Net SaleS . ittt it ittt i S 63,449 $ 155,340 $ 316,866 $ -- $ 535,655
Cost of products sold.......uiiiiinnnnnnn 37,423 101,638 202,755 -— 341,816
Gross profit.... ...l 26,026 53,702 114,111 -- 193,839
Operating EXPEeNSES . vt ittt eteneenesneenans 26,139 22,444 57,749 -= 106,332
Amortization of intangible assets.......... 7 3,041 2,854 -= 5,902
Operating earnings..........eceeevuu... (120) 28,217 53,508 -— 81,605
Other expense (income) :
Intercompany activity, net............ 330 9,527 5,857 (15,714) -
Net financing costs........iveeiiinnn.. 23,219 3,509 1,164 -= 27,892
Other, nNet. ...ttt nenenennnnn (846) 141 (119) --
(824)
Earnings (Loss) from continuing operations
before income tax (benefit) expense........ (22,823) 15,040 46,606 15,714 54,537
Income tax (benefit) expense............... (8,180) 8,875 15,124 3,765 19,584
Earnings (Loss) from continuing operations.. (14,643) 6,165 31,482 11,949 34,953
Earnings from discontinued operations...... -— -— 34,231 -— 34,231



Earnings before extraordinary item......... (14,643) 6,165 65,713 11,949 69,184
EXtraordinary 10SS. e eeeeeeeennnnnnnnn. -= -- (12,186) =
(12,186)
Net (loss) earnings.........oeeeiinnenenen. S (14,643) S 6,165 $ 53,527 $ 11,949 $ 56,998
</TABLE>
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
May 31, 2001
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
Consolidated
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents............ S 917 S (99) S (186) -= S 632
Accounts receivable, net............. 2,838 9,260 42,674 -— 54,772
Inventories, Net......uueiiieeeeeennnn 9,046 39,767 10,228 - 59,041
Deferred income taxeS......eeeeeennn. 3,165 6 1,355 -= 4,526
Other current assets........ovvvvvnnn 3,434 774 3,683 -= 7,891
Total current assets........... 19,400 49,708 57,754 -— 126,862
Property, plant and equipment, net......... 2,961 33,044 8,498 -= 44,503
GoOdAWIll, Met . ittt ettt eeeeeeeen -= 116,916 4,756 -- 121,672
Other intangibles, net....... ... 12 22,163 80 -= 22,255
Other long-term assetS.......ouveiienneennn 25,020 174 801 -— 25,995
TOotal ASSeES . i ittt ittt ettt et e S 47,393 $222,005 $ 71,889 - S 341,287
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings................ $ - $ -= $ 364 - $ 364
Trade accounts payable............... 5,809 16,047 13,136 -— 34,992
Accrued compensation and benefits.... 5,186 3,282 4,446 -= 12,914
Income taxes payable................. 4,609 7,822 1,330 -— 13,761
Other current liabilities............ 9,196 9,106 6,878 - 25,180
Total current liabilities..... 24,800 36,257 26,154 -— 87,211
Long-term debt....viii ittt 375,745 420 12,690 -- 388,855
Deferred 1NCOME tAXES . v v vt ttoneeeeeeeennnn 2,969 (1,027) 2,234 -— 4,176
Other long-term liabilities................ 17,564 - 261 -= 17,825
Intercompany balances, net................. 741,124 (58,868) (682,256) -— -
Total shareholders' (deficit) equity....... (1,114,809) 245,223 712,806 -- (156, 780)
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity. $ 47,393 $222,005 $ 71,889 - S 341,287
</TABLE>
12
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
August 31, 2000
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
Consolidated
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>

<C>



ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents.......c.oieiinennnnn. S 5,076 S 721 S 4,099 -
$ 9,896

Accounts receivable, net.........iiiiennnnn. 13,837 36,870 32,846 -
83,553

Inventories, Nef.....u ittt teeeeeeeennneennn 10,528 45,317 11,754 -
67,599

Deferred 1NCOmME LAXES. .t vt ittt teeenneeeenennnnn 3,965 6 571 -=
4,542

Other current assSetsS. ...ttt ittt iieieeennns 33,593 567 3,964 -
38,124

Total current asSetS....iueeeeeeeeeennnnn 66,999 83,481 53,234 -

203,714
Property, plant and equipment, net.................... 5,010 35,473 8,685 -=
49,168
[ Yo A du T 0 R o N -— 111,246 5,102 -
116,348
Other intangibles, net....... ..ottt 19 20,911 110 -
21,040
Other long-term asSetS. ...t iitin it eenaeenenns 26,098 133 480 -=
26,711
B = N = =T = i S 98,126 S 251,244 S 67,611 -
416,981

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term borroWwingsS. . ... e e eniieenneneennnnn $ - $ - $ 1,259 --=
S 1,259
Trade accounts payable. ... ..o 6,602 25,210 11,643 -
43,455
Accrued compensation and benefits............... 7,405 4,164 4,796 -
16,365
Income taxes payable. .. ..ttt (23,518) 30,660 32,710 -
39,852
Other current liabilities...........cciiiiinonn. 7,671 8,534 9,107 -=
25,312
Total current liabilities................ (1,840) 68,568 59,515 -=
126,243
Long-term debt ...ttt ittt ittt e 430,675 540 —-= —-—
431,215
Deferred 1nNCOME LAXES ...t iu ittt inteneieneeneenns 5,769 (741) (542) -=
4,486
Other long-term liabilities.......c.iiiiiiiiiininneenns 17,818 (462) 636 -=
17,992
Intercompany balances, nNet..... ..ottt iiennnnnns 687,060 (51,241) (635,819) -
Total shareholders' (deficit) equity....... ... (1,041,3506) 234,580 643,821 -
(162, 955)
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity............ S 98,126 $ 251,244 67,611 -
$ 416,981
</TABLE>
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Nine Months Ended May 31, 2001
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
Consolidated
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
<C>

Operating activities
Net earnings(loss) from continuing operations....... S (19,426) S 15,920 S 12,347 -



8,841
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss)
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
12,369
Other non-cash items
(549)
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities,
24,151

to

Cash provided by (used in)
44,812

operations

Investing activities

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E
1,907

Proceeds from insurance settlement
1,118

Additions to property,
(5,277)

Business acquisitions
(11,250)

Business dispositions and other
1,192

plant and equipment....

Cash used in investing activities
(12,310)

Financing activities
Net (repayments)borrowings of debt
(42,257)
Stock option exercises and other

437
Intercompany (receivables) payables

Cash (used in) provided by financing activities
(41,820)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
54

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
(9,264)

Cash and cash equivalents--beginning of period
9,896

$ 632
</TABLE>
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Consolidated
<S>

Operating activities
Net earnings(loss)
22,766
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss)
from continuing operations to cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
18,224
Extraordinary loss on sale of subsidiary...

from continuing operations...

. 1,440 8,871 2,058 -
. (549) -= - -
..... 66,747 (262) (42,334) -
. 48,212 24,529 (27,929) -
. 1,907 -= -= -
. -- -= 1,118 -
. (760) (1,921) (2,596) -
. -- (11,250) -= -
. -- 238 954 -
. 1,147 (12,933) (524)
. (54,643) (120) 12,506 -
. 437 -= -= -
. 688 (12,296) 11,608 -
. (53,518) (12,416) 24,114 -
. -= -= 54 -
. (4,159) (820) (4,285) -
. 5,076 721 4,099 -
. $ 917 $ (99) $ (186) -
CASH FLOWS
Nine Months Ended May 31, 2000
Actuant Non
Corporation Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
S (14,643) $ 6,165 $ 19,295 $ 11,949 S
1,760 6,162 10,302 -=
-= -- 12,186 -=



12,186
Changes in operating assets and

liabilities, nNet.....uu it nnneennnn 4,016 5,517 (23,580)
(25,996)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities.. (8,867) 17,844 18,203
27,180
Discontinued operations. ..ottt nnnnens -= -— 17,704
17,704

Total cash provided by (used in) operating
£ o ot A s Tl = T (8,867) 17,844 35,907
44,884

Investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant

and equipment. ... .ottt i e 14 123 566

703

Additions to property, plant and equipment. (610) (3,806) (4,754)
(9,170)

Business dispositions and other............ - -= 15,233
15,233

Discontinued operations........eeeeeeeeennn -= - (42,206)
(42,2006)
Cash used in investing activities................ (596) (3,683) (31,161)
(35,440)

Financing activities

Net repayments of debt.............. ... .... (36,514) -= -=
(36,514)

Dividends paid on common stock............. (1,757) -= -
(1,757)

Stock option exercises and other........... 1,893 -- --
1,893

Intercompany (receivables) payables........ 44,159 (14,430) (29,729)

Discontinued operations.........covvueevvnnn - -= 11,657
11,657
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities.. 7,781 (14,430) (18,072)
(24,721)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash........... —-= -— (173)
(173)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

eqUIVAlENtS . ittt e e e e e e e (1,682) (269) (13,499)
(15,450)

Effect of change in cash of discontinued

[0 S o= i I o =2 -= -— 15,002
15,002

Cash and cash equivalents--beginning of period..... (721) (209) 8,186
7,256

6,808

(11,949)
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On January 9, 2001 Applied Power Inc. changed its name to Actuant Corporation.
Throughout this "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" when we refer to "Actuant," "Applied Power," or the
"Company," we mean Actuant Corporation and its subsidiaries. Also on January 9,
2001, our shareholders approved a reverse stock split whereby every five shares
of common stock were converted into one share of common stock. Where
appropriate, this change is reflected in this Form 10-Q for all periods
presented.



The Distribution

actions to enable Applied Power to distribute its Electronics segment ("APW
Ltd.") to its shareholders (the "Distribution"). In the Distribution, Applied
Power shareholders received, in the form of a special dividend, one share of APW
Ltd. common stock for each Applied Power common share. As a result, APW Ltd.
became a separately traded, publicly held company. The Distribution was approved
by the board of directors on July 7, 2000 and shares of APW Ltd. were
distributed to Applied Power shareholders of record at July 21, 2000, effective
July 31, 2000. Applied Power now trades separately on The New York Stock
Exchange ("NYSE") under the ticker symbol "ATU." APW Ltd. trades on the NYSE
under the ticker symbol "APW."

As a result of the Distribution, the Company's Electronics segment is presented
as "discontinued operations" in the accompanying financial statements.

Results of Operations

discontinued certain product lines that were no longer considered integral to
our business strategy, collectively referred to as the "non-continuing
businesses." The following table summarizes the significant divestitures that
were completed:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Approximate
Divestitures Segment Date Annual Sales/(1)/
(in millions)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Quick Mold Change ("QMC") Tools & Supplies May 2001 6
Norelem Tools & Supplies August 2000 8
Barry Controls Engineered Solutions June 2000 120
Air Cargo Engineered Solutions May 2000 22
Samuel Groves Engineered Solutions October 1999 9
</TABLE>
(1) At the time of the transactions.

The comparability of operating results from period to period is impacted by the
non-continuing businesses. The tables included in "Results of Continuing
Operations" below show the effect, by segment, of the non-continuing businesses
on reported results.

Results from Continuing Operations for the Three and Nine Months Ended May 31,

Earnings from continuing operations were $1.5 million, or $0.18 per diluted
share, and $12.1 million, or $1.50 per diluted share, for the three months ended
May 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Earnings from continuing operations for the
nine months ended May 31, 2001 and 2000 were $8.8 million, or $1.07 per diluted
share, and $35.0 million, or $4.34 per diluted share, respectively. The
Company's operating results for the three and nine month periods ended May 31,
2001 and 2000 include earnings from the divested businesses listed above, which
were disposed of in the periods indicated. Furthermore, our current capital
structure is different than that which existed during the comparable periods in
the prior year since we entered into new credit agreements and issued new
subordinated debt in conjunction with the Distribution. Also included are
various one time credits or charges recognized during the periods. As a result,
certain adjustments must be made to make the results in the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Earnings comparable.

Removing the impact of the divested businesses, the impact of our new capital
structure, non-recurring recoveries for contract terminations and insurance
settlements, and non-recurring costs associated with product line dispositions,
restructuring charges, and excess corporate expenses recognized prior to the
Distribution, earnings from continuing operations would have been $4.1 million,
or $0.50 per diluted share, and $7.4 million, or $0.92 per diluted share, for
the three months ended May 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. For the nine months
ended May 31, 2001 and 2000,
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earnings from continuing operations would have been $11.8 million, or $1.43 per
diluted share, compared to $19.3 million, or $2.39 per diluted share,
respectively. This reduction in earnings is due to the impact of currency rates
on translated results and slowing economic conditions, especially in the RV
market. Following is a discussion of the comparative operating results for the
three and nine-month periods ended May 31, 2001 and 2000.



Net Sales by Segment
(in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
May 31, May 31,

2001 2000 Change 2001 2000 Change
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Tools & Supplies..........oovio.. S 68,427 S 79,590 (14.0)% $ 207,111 230,165 (10.0)%
Less: non-continuing /(1)/........ 1,122 5,199 3,339 16,450
Adjusted Tools & Supplies...... $ 67,305 S 74,391 (9.5)% $ 203,772 213,715 (4.7)%
Engineered Solutions........... $ 55,508 $ 98,937 (43.9)% $ 147,679 305,490 (51.7)%
Less: non-continuing /(2)/....... - 41,057 - 129,600
Adjusted Engineered Solutions.. $ 55,508 $ 57,880 (4.1)% $ 147,679 175,890 (16.0)%
Total net saleS....eeeeeeennnn. $ 123,935 $ 178,527 (30.6)% $ 354,790 535,655 (33.8)%
Less: Non-continuing/ (1) (2)/..... 1,122 46,256 3,339 146,050
Adjusted net sales............. $ 122,813 $ 132,271 (7.2)% $ 351,451 389,605 (9.8)%
</TABLE>
(1) "Non-continuing" represents the divested Tools & Supplies businesses,

which include Norelem, the automotive line of business, the TAM product
line and QMC.

(2) "Non-continuing" represents the divested Engineered Solutions businesses,
which include Barry Controls, Air Cargo, Samuel Groves and Magnets.

Adjusted net sales declined $9.5 million, or 7.2%, and $38.2 million, or 9.8%,
for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2001, respectively, compared to the
prior year periods. The $38.2 million decline in revenue from fiscal 2000
resulted from a $10.8 million reduction in RV market sales, negative currency
impact of $11.3 million due to the impact of foreign currency rate changes on
translated results, and overall weaker economic conditions which adversely
impacted sales to most of our markets.

Tools & Supplies

Adjusted net sales for the Tools & Supplies segment declined from the comparable
prior year periods by $7.1 million and $9.9 million for the three and
nine-months ended May 31, 2001, respectively. Excluding the effect of foreign
currency rate changes, which caused $1.4 million of the third quarter decline
and $4.4 million of the nine month sales decline, Tools & Supplies sales
decreased 7.6% and 2.6% compared to the three and nine months ended May 31,
2000, respectively. This decline was driven primarily by the softening U.S.
economy. Hydraulic tool sales were down 5.2% and electrical tools and supply
sales were down 10.3% in the quarter, as compared to the prior fiscal year
period.

Engineered Solutions

Adjusted net sales for the Engineered Solutions segment decreased from the prior
year periods by $2.4 million and $28.2 million for the three and nine months
ended May 31, 2001, respectively. The impact of foreign exchange rates on
translated results caused sales declines of $1.5 million and $6.9 million for
the three and nine months ended May 31, 2001, respectively, as compared to the
prior year periods. Our sales to the North American RV market increased in the
quarter by $3.3 million due to $8.0 million of sales from Dewald, a business
acquired at the beginning of the quarter. The North American RV market started
slowing in the third quarter of fiscal 2000, with the slowing continuing into
the current quarter. Engineered Solutions sales to its largest RV customer were
40% lower in the third quarter of 2001 as compared to the third quarter of 2000
due to weak end user demand and the OEM market share changes. The majority of
the remainder of the sales decline for the quarter, after factoring out currency
impact and sales to the RV market, resulted from reduced sales to automotive and
truck manufacturers of approximately $3.4 million, reflecting the impact of
slower economic conditions.

The $28.2 million adjusted net sales decline experienced during the nine months

ended May 31, 2001 primarily resulted from a $10.8 million reduction in sales to
the RV market and $6.9 million from foreign currency rate changes. The majority

of
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the remainder of the decline resulted from slower economic conditions that
lowered sales to truck and automobile manufacturers by $6.9 million.

Gross Profit Margins By Segment

(64.

11.

(67.

(35.

40.
40.

32.6%
30.4

36.2%
36.0

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
May 31, May 31,
2001 2000 2001
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Tools & Supplies......coiiiiiiiiininnan. 40.8% 42.5% 40.9%
Adjusted Tools & Supplies........ovve... 40.8% 41.0% 41.0%
Engineered Solutions.........oiveevvnnnn 27.6% 32.6% 28.0%
Adjusted Engineered Solutions........... 27.6% 31.8% 28.0%
Total gross profit margin............... 34.9% 37.0% 35.5%
Total adjusted gross profit margin...... 34.8% 37.0% 35.5%
</TABLE>
Tools & Supplies
Adjusted gross profit margins in our Tools & Supplies segment decreased in the
quarter, as compared to the prior fiscal quarter. Our production levels were
lower than normal, which reduced inventory in line with our goal of lowering
working capital employed in the business, but resulted in lower margins. In
addition, we experienced high opening order discounts and buybacks associated
with significant line fills at two large retail customers which negatively
impacted margins in the quarter. For the nine months ended May 31, 2001, these
third quarter reductions were offset by our efforts to eliminate low margin SKUs
and other costs reduction initiatives undertaken in the period, which resulted
in higher gross profit margins.
Engineered Solutions
Engineered Solutions' adjusted gross profit margins decreased in the quarter and
year-to-date as compared to the prior fiscal year periods. The quarter over
quarter decline is largely due to higher sales of lower margin business,
primarily attributable to Dewald. While Dewald sales were very strong in the
quarter, sales in our higher margin business units declined. As integration
activities continue with implementation of world class performance program
initiatives, Dewald margins should improve. We are reducing employment and fixed
costs at plants that supply our RV customers, through attrition and by closing
one plant.
18
Engineering, Selling, and Administrative Expense by Segment
(in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
May 31, May 31,
2001 2000 Change 2001 2000

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Tools & Supplies.........ovu.on. $ 16,536 $17,896 (7.6)% $48,256 $ 50,215
Less: non-continuing/ (1)/....... 415 1,616 1,512 4,785

Adjusted Tools & Supplies... S 16,121 $16,280 (1.0)% $46,744 S 45,430
Engineered Solutions............ $ 5,453 $13,419 (59.4)% $14,511 $ 41,061
Less: non-continuing/ (2)/....... - 8,535 - 28,033

Adjusted Engineered Solutions $ 5,453 S 4,884 11.7% $14,511 $ 13,028
General Corporate.........e.eeo.. S 1,416 S 3,446 (58.9)% $ 3,906 $ 12,053
Total ESA. ..ttt it ii e $ 23,405 $34,761 (32.7)% $66,673 $103,329
Less: Non-continuing/ (1)//(2)/.. 415 10,151 1,512 32,818
Adjusted ESA ...ttt $ 22,990 $24,610 (6.6)% $65,161 $ 70,511

</TABLE>



(1) "Non-continuing" represents the divested Tools & Supplies businesses, which
include Norelem, the automotive line of business, the TAM product line, and
QMC.

(2) "Non-continuing" represents the divested Engineered Solutions businesses,
which include Barry Controls, Air Cargo, Samuel Groves and Magnets.

Adjusted engineering, selling and administrative ("ESA") expenses decreased $1.6
million and $5.4 million for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2001, as
compared to the prior year periods. The decrease is due largely to a reduction
in corporate expenses which, for fiscal 2000, included costs related to both the
former Industrial and Electronics business segments of Applied Power. None of
these expenses have been allocated to the discontinued operation's financial
results.

Tools & Supplies

Tools & Supplies adjusted ESA expenses for the fiscal third quarter were flat
year over year, but increased 2.9% for the nine months ended May 31, 2001, as
compared to the prior year period. This increase in adjusted Tools & Supplies
ESA expenses is primarily caused by higher levels of information technology
("IT") costs associated with a new computer system and increased marketing
spending associated with tradeshows and promotions.

Engineered Solutions

Engineered Solutions adjusted ESA expenses increased by 11.7% for the fiscal
2001 third quarter and 11.4% for the nine months ended May 31, 2001, as compared
to the prior year periods. These increases are a result of higher spending on
new platform development associated with our convertible top product line and
the inclusion of ESA expenses from Dewald, which was acquired on March 1, 2001.

Amortization Expense
Amortization expense was lower in the current year periods compared to the prior
year primarily due to the non-continuing businesses.

Contract Termination Recovery

During the first quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company recovered approximately
$1.4 million of a contract termination charge originally expensed in fiscal 1999
by the Engineered Solutions segment.

Restructuring Charge

The Company adopted plans to restructure portions of its operations in the third
quarter of fiscal 2001. These plans are designed to reduce administrative and
operational costs and resulted in a charge of $1.7 million, $1.0 million
after-tax,
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or $0.13 per diluted share. Of the pre-tax charge, $0.3 million related to the
consolidation of our RV slide production facilities, $0.6 related to the
downsizing of our cable tie production facility, and $0.8 million related to a
staff reduction plan. The company wrote down the fixed assets at the locations
to be closed or downsized to their fair value, less costs to sell, in the third
quarter. We expect net cash proceeds of approximately $0.5 million from the
ultimate disposal of these assets, which should be complete by the third quarter
of fiscal 2002. As a result of these plans, we have terminated approximately 36
people.

Other Expense (Income)

Net financing costs for the three and nine-month periods ended May 31, 2001
increased $3.1 million and $15.3 million, respectively, compared to the prior
fiscal year periods. The increased costs are the result of the realignment of
debt in the Distribution. The current credit facilities have higher interest
rates than that which had been previously incurred by the Company. Current
borrowings consist of those under a senior secured credit agreement (the "Senior
Credit Agreement") and the Senior Subordinated Notes, which carry a 13% interest
rate.

Accounts Receivable Securitization Costs for fiscal 2001 is comprised of a
discount of $0.2 million and transaction costs of $0.4 million related to the
May 2001 sale of receivables.

Other, net for the three months ended May 31, 2001 is comprised of the
following:

Three Months
Ended
May 31, 2001

Gain On INSUrANCE FECOVEL Y.t vt vttt osnnneesennennnens S (983)
Loss on sale Of OMC. . vttt ieee ettt eeeeeeeeenann 619
Net present value of idled lease........oviivinn.. 1,531
Net foreign currency transaction gain.............. (344)



Other, nNet... ..ttt ittt et ee it $ 1,177

Other, net for the three months ended May 31, 2000 and for the nine months ended
May 31, 2001 and 2000 is comprised primarily of foreign currency gains and
losses.

Discontinued Operations and Extraordinary Items

As a result of the Distribution, the results of operations for the Company's
Electronics segment is presented as discontinued operations in the financial
statements. Earnings from discontinued operations were $12.9 million, or $1.60
per diluted share, and $34.2 million, or $4.25 per diluted share, for the three
and nine months ended May 31, 2000, respectively. An $0.8 million loss was
recorded in "Discontinued Operations, net of Income Taxes" for the three months
ended May 31, 2001 to reflect a change in estimate for Electronics segment
liabilities assumed by the Company as part of the Distribution.

On May 26, 2000, the Company completed the sale of Air Cargo Equipment
Corporation, a business unit in the Engineered Solutions segment. The total
consideration from the transaction, which was structured as both a sale of stock
of the Air Cargo Equipment Corporation and a sale of other assets, was $12.0
million, resulting in an extraordinary loss of $13.9 million, $12.2 million
after tax, or $1.51 per diluted share.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $0.6 million at May 31, 2001 and $9.9 million
at August 31, 2000. In order to minimize net financing costs, the Company
intentionally maintains low cash balances by using available cash to reduce
borrowings.

Net cash generated by operating activities of continuing operations totaled
$44.8 million and $27.2 million for the nine-month periods ended May 31, 2001
and May 31, 2000, respectively. Discontinued operations generated $17.7 million
of cash from operating activities in the nine months ended May 31, 2000. Net
cash used in investing and financing activities for the nine months ended May
31, 2001 totaled $12.3 million and $41.8 million, respectively. Net cash

20

used for investing activities primarily consisted of cash paid for acquisitions
and capital expenditures, offset by cash received from a partial insurance
settlement and proceeds from the sale of fixed assets. Cash used for financing
activities primarily consisted of debt repayments.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Debt May 31, 2001 August 31, 2000
<S> <C> <C>

(in thousands)
Senior secured debt.. ...ttt i e e e S 178,308 s 233,300
Senior subordinated notes, net of discount....... 197,602 197,375
European term 10al. ...t et e eeeeenennneeeeennns 12,689 -
[0 ol oL <P 773 1,909
Total DebT .ttt ittt et et et e e et et ettt S 389,372 $ 432,584
</TABLE>

During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, a European subsidiary of the Company
completed a bank term loan financing of 15.0 million Euro. Amortization of the
loan begins on January 31, 2003 with semi-annual repayments thereafter and a
final maturity of July 31, 2007. The loan interest rate is based on three month
EURIBOR with a spread of 1.10%. Proceeds from the borrowing were used to prepay
15.0 million Euro of the Euro denominated term borrowings under the Company's
Senior Credit Agreement, which carried a higher rate of interest.

The Company is focused on debt reduction. In the ten months since the
Distribution, debt has been reduced by $61.2 million. During the first nine
months of fiscal 2001 debt was reduced $43.2 million. The Company plans to use
all cash provided from operations to fund capital expenditures and reduce debt.
In an effort to reduce financing costs and outstanding debt, in May 2001 the
Company sold certain domestic trade accounts receivable in a securitization
transaction. All proceeds from the sale, which totaled $30 million, were used to
reduce debt. Although focused on debt reduction, when strategic opportunities
exist to grow our core business through acquisitions, debt may be incurred.
During the third quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company borrowed $11.3 million to
fund the Dewald acquisition.

Dividend payments have not been made in fiscal 2001, nor do we expect to pay
dividends in the near future, so that cash flow from operations can be used to
reduce debt. At May 31, 2001, the Company had approximately $36.1 million of



availability under its credit facilities, and was in compliance with all
covenants under its debt agreements. The Company believes that availability
under its credit facilities, plus funds generated from operations, will be
adequate to meet operating, debt service and capital expenditure requirements
for the foreseeable future.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements." This bulletin summarizes certain views of the SEC staff on applying
generally accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial
statements. The SEC staff expressed its view that revenue is realized or
realizable and earned when all of the following criteria are met: persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred or services have been
rendered; the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or determinable; and
collectability is reasonably assured. The adoption of SAB 101 did not have a
material effect on the Company's earnings or financial position.

Effective September 1, 2000, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities." This statement requires all derivative instruments to be
recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. The initial adoption of this
statement did not have a material effect on the Company's earnings or financial
position.

Recent Events

In February 2001, one of the Company's facilities in Oldenzaal, The Netherlands
was damaged by fire. The fire damaged a portion of the leased building, as well
as certain inventory and property, plant and equipment contained therein.
Additionally, the fire impacted the shipment of product produced on the truck
cab-tilt production line that is housed in the damaged facility. The Company is
party to an insurance contract that is expected to cover the damaged inventory
and equipment as well as the business interruption resulting from the fire. The
costs incurred through May 31, 2001 and the net book value of lost assets total
$1.5 million. The Company received advance payments of $1.5 million from the
insurance carrier during the third quarter in partial settlement of the
insurance contract. Of the $1.5 million received, $1.1 million related to
recovery on fixed assets destroyed and the remaining $0.4 million related to
recovery of business interruption costs. A gain of $1.0 million, $0.6 million
after-tax, or
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$0.07 per diluted share, was recorded in "Other Expense (Income), Other" to
reflect the difference between the book value of the assets destroyed and the
minimum reimbursement from the insurance carrier received in the quarter.
Approximately $1.0 million of costs associated with the fire loss are recorded
in other current assets at May 31, 2001 in the Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheet, which represents amounts expected to be recovered from our insurance
carrier. Future insurance recoveries under our insurance policy are probable,
and will be recorded net of additional costs associated with the fire, when
estimable.

On March 21, 2001, the Company announced that it is in preliminary discussion
with a number of parties regarding the possible sale of its Mox-Med business,
which is part of the Engineered Solutions segment. Mox-Med provides molded and
extruded silicone products for the medical and housewares industries, and has
annual net sales of approximately $20 million. In the event we complete a
divestiture of Mox-Med, the net proceeds would reduce our outstanding debt.

Based on current expectations, we believe that revenues will be between $116
million and $121 million for the fourth quarter of 2001. At this sales level,
EBITDA is projected to be between $20 million and $23 million for the quarter,
before non-operational items. This estimate is dependant on, among other things,
no changes in foreign exchange and interest rates from their present levels,
steady economic conditions, and successful implementation of the restructuring
program initiated in the fiscal third quarter.

We believe that revenues for fiscal 2002 will range from $475 million to $500
million and that EBITDA will range from $94 million to $100 million. This
estimate is dependant on, among other things, steady economic conditions during
the first half of fiscal 2002 with slight improvement during the second half of
2002, foreign exchange and interest rates remaining at their present levels, the
successful implementation of the restructuring program initiated in May 2001,
and the successful achievement of our fiscal 2001 fourth quarter forecast. In
addition, the impact of any divestitures or acquisitions has not been
considered. We anticipate debt reduction during fiscal 2002 of $40 million,
excluding the impact of any divestitures or acquisitions, subject to the



achievement of our operating earnings estimate.

Item 3 - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

interest rates and, to a lesser extent, commodities. To reduce such risks, the
Company selectively uses financial instruments. All hedging transactions are
authorized and executed pursuant to clearly defined policies and procedures,
which strictly prohibit the use of financial instruments for trading purposes.

A discussion of the Company's accounting policies for derivative financial
instruments is included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 31, 2000 within Note A - "Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies" in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Currency Risk - The Company has significant international operations. In most

instances, the Company's products are produced at manufacturing facilities
located near the customer. As a result, significant volumes of finished goods
are manufactured in countries for sale into those markets. For goods purchased
from other Company affiliates, the Company denominates the transaction in the
functional currency of the producing operation.

The Company has adopted the following guidelines to manage its foreign exchange
exposures:

(1) increase the predictability of costs associated with goods whose purchase
price is not denominated in the functional currency of the buyer;
(ii) minimize the cost of hedging through the use of naturally offsetting

positions (borrowing in local currency), netting, pooling; and
(iii) where possible, sell product in the functional currency of the producing
operation.

The Company's identifiable foreign exchange exposures result primarily from the
anticipated purchase of product from affiliates and third-party suppliers along
with the repayment of intercompany loans with foreign subsidiaries denominated
in foreign currencies. The Company periodically identifies areas where we do not
have naturally occurring offsetting positions and then purchases hedging
instruments to protect against anticipated exposures. There are no such
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hedging instruments in place at May 31, 2001 or through the date of this filing.
The Company's financial position is not materially sensitive to fluctuations in
exchange rates as any gains or losses on foreign currency exposures are
generally offset by gains and losses on underlying payables, receivables and net
investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Interest Rate Risk - Given our leverage, we are exposed to interest rate risk

from changes in interest rates. We have periodically utilized interest rate swap
agreements historically to manage overall financing costs and interest rate
risk. During the quarter ended May 31, 2001, we entered into a contract to swap
variable interest rates on $25 million of our Senior debt for fixed interest
rates. We have no other such agreements in place at May 31, 2001, or through the
date of this filing. Our Senior Credit Agreement stipulates that the lower of
50% of our total debt or $200.0 million be fixed interest rate obligations. We
are in compliance with this requirement.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 5 - Other Information

Notice for Shareholder Proposals

Effective May 4, 2001, the Company amended Section 2.04 of its bylaws to include
an advance notice provision. Pursuant to Section 2.04, shareholders must timely
submit, to the Company and in writing, any nominations of persons for election
as a director or proposals to be considered at an annual meeting of the Company.
Generally, to be considered timely under the new provision, a nomination or
proposal must be received by the Secretary at the Company's principal office no
earlier than 150 days nor later than 120 days prior to the anniversary of the
prior year's annual meeting. Each such notice by a shareholder must set forth
certain information as specified in Section 2.04 of the Company's bylaws. The
date by which a director nomination or shareholder proposal must be received for
the 2002 annual meeting is September 11, 2001 and no earlier than August 11,
2001. Notice should be sent to the attention of the Secretary of the Company and
must contain specified information concerning the matters to be brought before
such meeting and concerning the shareholder proposing such matters. In order to
curtail any controversy as to the date on which we receive notice, it is
suggested that proponents submit their notice by Certified Mail, Return Receipt
Requested. The amended bylaws are being filed as an exhibit to this Report on
Form 10-Q and are incorporated by reference herein.



(a) See Index to Exhibits on page 24, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ACTUANT CORPORATION

(Registrant)

Date: July 12, 2001 By: /s/ Andrew G. Lampereur
Andrew G. Lampereur
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and duly
authorized to sign on behalf of
the registrant)

ACTUANT CORPORATION
(the "Registrant")
(Commission File No. 1-11288)

QUARTERLY REPORT ON FORM 10-Q
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED MAY 31, 2001
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Incorporated Herein
Exhibit Description By Reference To
<S> <C>
3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Actuant
Corporation adopted November 7, 1991 and
as last amended effective May 4, 2001.
4.10 Amendment No 1, dated as of April 9, 2001,
to the Credit Agreement dated as of July
31, 2000, among Actuant Corporation, Credit
Suisse First Boston as Lead Arranger, Collateral
Agent and Administrative Agent, First Union
National Bank, as Syndication Agent, ING (U.S.)
Capital LLC, as Documentation Agent and the
Lenders party thereto.
10.25 Receivables Sale Agreement dated as of May
30, 2001, among Actuant Corporation, Del
City Wire Co., Inc., GB Tools and
Supplies, Inc., Versa Technologies, Inc.,
and Engineered Solutions, L.P., as
Originators, and Actuant Receivables
Corporation, as Buyer.
10.26 Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of

May 30, 2001, among Actuant Receivables
Corporation, as Seller, Actuant
Corporation, as Initial Servicer, Blue
Ridge Asset Funding Corporation and
Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent.

</TABLE>

Filed
Herewith



AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS

of

ACTUANT CORPORATION

ADOPTED

NOVEMBER 7, 1991

and

AS LAST AMENDED EFFECTIVE MAY 4, 2001
ARTICLE I. OFFICES; RECORDS; FISCAL YEAR

1.01. Principal and Business Offices. The corporation may have such
principal and other business offices, either within or without the State of
Wisconsin, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the
corporation may require from time to time.

1.02. Registered Office and Registered Agent. The registered office
of the corporation required by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law to be
maintained in the State of Wisconsin may be, but need not be, identical with the
principal office in the State of Wisconsin. The street address of the
registered office may be changed from time to time by any officer or by the
registered agent. The business office of the registered agent of the
corporation shall be identical to the street office of such registered office.

1.03. Corporate Records. The following documents and records shall be
kept at the corporation's principal office or at such other reasonable location
as may be specified by the corporation:

(a) Minutes of shareholders' and Board of Directors'
meetings, any written notices thereof and any written waivers of such notices.

(b) Records of actions taken by the shareholders or Board of
Directors without a meeting.

(c) Records of actions taken by committees of the Board of
Directors in place of the Board of Directors and on behalf of the Corporation.

(d) Accounting records.
(e) A record of its shareholders.
(f) Current Bylaws.

1.04. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall commence

on the first day of September and end on the last day of August.
ARTICLE ITI. SHAREHOLDERS

2.01. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the shareholders shall be
held on the second Tuesday in January, or at such other time and date as may be
fixed by or under the authority of the Board of Directors, for the purpose of
electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come
before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting is a legal holiday
in the State of Wisconsin, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding
business day. If the election of directors is not held on the day designated
herein, or fixed as herein provided, for any annual meeting of the shareholders,
or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election
to be held at a meeting of the shareholders as soon thereafter as may be
convenient.

2.02. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the shareholders, for any
purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by
the Chairperson of the Board, if there is one, the President or the Board of
Directors. If and as required by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, a
special meeting shall be called upon written demand describing one or more
purposes for which it is to be held by holders of shares with at least 10% of



the votes entitled to be cast on any issue proposed to be considered at the
meeting. The purpose or

purposes of any special meeting shall be described in the notice required by
Section 2.04 of these Bylaws.

2.03. Place of Meeting. The Board of Directors may designate any
place, either within or without the State of Wisconsin, as the place of meeting
for any annual meeting or any special meeting. If no designation is made, the
place of meeting shall be the principal office of the corporation but any
meeting may be adjourned to reconvene at any place designated by vote of a
majority of the shares represented thereat.

2.04. Notice of Shareholder Nomination(s) and/or Proposal(s).

(a) Annual Meetings of Shareholders.

(1) Except with respect to nomination(s) or proposal(s)
adopted or recommended by the Board of Directors for inclusion in the
corporation's proxy statement for its annual meeting, a shareholder entitled to
vote at a meeting may nominate a person or persons for election as director(s)
or propose action(s) to be taken at a meeting only if written notice of any
shareholder nomination(s) and/or proposal(s) to be considered for a vote at an
annual meeting. To be timely, a shareholder's notice shall be delivered to the
Secretary at the principal executive offices of the corporation no later than
the close of business on the 120/th/ day nor earlier than the close of business
on the 150/th/ day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual
meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual
meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after such anniversary
date, notice by the shareholder to be timely must be so delivered not earlier
than the close of business on the 150/th/ day prior to such annual meeting and
not later than the close of business on the later of the 120/th/ day prior to
such annual meeting or the 10/th/ day following the day on which public
announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. In no event shall the
public announcement of an adjournment of an annual meeting commence a new time
period for the giving of a shareholder's notice as described above.

(2) With respect to shareholder nomination(s) for the
election of directors each such notice shall set forth: (i) the name and address
of the shareholder who intends to make the nomination(s), of any beneficial
owner of shares on whose behalf such nomination is being made and of the person
or persons to be nominated; (ii) a representation that the shareholder is a
holder of record of stock of the corporation entitled to vote at such meeting
(including the number of shares the shareholder owns as of the record date (or
as of the most recent practicable date if no record date has been set) and the
length of time the shares have been held) and intends to appear in person or by
attorney in fact at the meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in
the notice; (iii) a description of all arrangements and understandings between
the shareholder or any beneficial holder on whose behalf it holds such shares,
and their respective affiliates, and each nominee and any other person or
persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nomination or
nominations are to be made by the shareholder; (iv) such other information
regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as would have been required
to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (whether or not such rules are applicable)
had each nominee been nominated, or intended to be nominated, by the Board of
Directors; and (v) the consent of each nominee to serve as a director of the
corporation if so elected.

(3) With respect to shareholder proposal(s) for
action(s) to be taken at an annual meeting of shareholders, the notice shall
clearly set forth: (i) the name and address of the shareholder who intends to
make the proposal(s); (ii) a representation that the shareholder is a holder of
record of the stock of the corporation entitled to vote at the meeting
(including the number of shares the shareholder owns as of the record date (or
as of the most recent practicable date if no record date has been set) and the
length of time the shares have been

-2-

held) and intends to appear in person or by proxy to make the proposal (s)
specified in the notice; (iii) the proposal(s) and a brief supporting statement
of such proposal(s); (iv) a statement that the shareholder (or the shareholder's
legal representative) will attend the meeting and present the proposal; and (v)
such other information regarding the proposal (s) as would have been required to
be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (whether or not such rules are applicable). A
shareholder may submit no more than two proposals for a particular meeting of
shareholders.



(4) Notwithstanding anything in the second sentence of
paragraph (a) (1) of this bylaw to the contrary, in the event that the number of
directors to be elected to the Board of Directors of the corporation is
increased and there is no public announcement naming all the nominees for
director or specifying the size of the increased Board of Directors made by the
corporation at least 100 days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding
year's annual meeting, a shareholder's notice required by this bylaw shall also
be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees for any new positions
created by such increase, if it shall be delivered to the Secretary at the
principal executive offices of the corporation not later than the close of
business on the 10/th/ day following the day on which such public announcement
is first made by the corporation.

(b) Special Meetings of Shareholders.

(1) Except with respect to nomination(s) or proposal(s)
adopted or recommended by the Board of Directors for inclusion in the notice to
shareholders for a special meeting of shareholders, a shareholder entitled to
vote at a special meeting may nominate a person or persons for election as
director(s) and/or propose action(s) to be taken at a meeting only if written
notice of any shareholder nomination(s) and/or proposal (s) to be considered for
a vote at a special meeting is delivered personally or mailed by Certified Mail-
Return Receipt Requested to the Corporate Secretary of the corporation at the
principal business office of the corporation so that it is received in a
reasonable period of time (as determined by the Board) before such special
meeting and only if such nomination or proposal is within the purposes described
in the notice to shareholders of the special meeting.

(2) With respect to shareholder nomination(s) for the
election of directors at a special meeting, a nominating shareholder shall
comply with the notice requirements for notices of nominees pertaining to annual
meetings under paragraph (a) (2) of this bylaw. With respect to shareholder
proposal (s) for action(s) to be taken at a special meeting of shareholders, the
notice shall clearly set forth: (i) the name and address of the shareholder who
intends to make the proposal(s); (ii) a representation that the shareholder is a
holder of record of the stock of the corporation entitled to vote at the meeting
(including the number of shares the shareholder owns as of the record date (or
as of the most recent practicable date if no record date has been set) and the
length of time the shares have been held) and intends to appear in person or by
proxy to make the proposal (s) specified in the notice; (iii) the proposal (s) and
a brief supporting statement of such proposal(s); (iv) a statement that the
shareholder (or the shareholder's legal representative) will attend the meeting
and present the proposal; and (v) such other information regarding the
proposal (s) as would have been required to be included in a proxy statement
filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(whether or not such rules are applicable).

(c) General.

(1) Only such persons who are nominated in accordance
with the procedures set forth in this bylaw shall be eligible to serve as
directors and only such business shall be conducted at a meeting of shareholders
as shall have been brought before the meeting in accordance with the procedures
set forth in this bylaw. Except as otherwise provided by law, the
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Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the corporation, the Chairman of the
meeting shall have the power and duty to determine whether a nomination or any
business proposed to be brought before the meeting was made, or proposed, as the
case may be, in accordance with the procedures set forth in this bylaw and, if
such proposed nomination or business is not in compliance with this bylaw, to
declare that such defective proposal or nomination shall be disregarded.

(2) For purposes of this bylaw, "public announcement"
shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Service,
Associated Press or comparable national news service or in a document publicly
filed by the corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commissions pursuant
to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
("Exchange Act").

(3) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this
bylaw, a shareholder shall also comply with all applicable requirements of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder with respect to the
matters set forth in this bylaw. Nothing in this bylaw shall be deemed to affect
any rights of (i) shareholders to request inclusion of proposals in the
corporation's proxy statements pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act or
(ii) the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect directors under
specified circumstances.

2.05. Fixing of Record Date. The Board of Directors may fix in

advance a date as the record date for one or more voting classes for any



determination of shareholders entitled to notice of a shareholders' meeting, to
demand a special meeting, to vote, or to take any other action, such date in any
case to be not more than seventy (70) days prior to the meeting or action
requiring such determination of shareholders, and may fix the record date for
determining shareholders entitled to a share dividend or distribution. If no
record date is fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to demand a
shareholder meeting, to notice of or to vote at a meeting of shareholders, or to
consent to action without a meeting, (a) the close of business on the day before
the corporation receives the first written demand for a shareholder meeting, (b)
the close of business on the day before the first notice of the meeting is
mailed or otherwise delivered to shareholders, or (c) the close of business on
the day before the first written consent to shareholder action without a meeting
is received by the corporation, as the case may be, shall be the record date for
the determination of shareholders. If no record date is fixed for the
determination of shareholders entitled to receive a share dividend or
distribution (other than a distribution involving a purchase, redemption or
other acquisition of the corporation's shares), the close of business on the day
on which the resolution of the Board of Directors is adopted declaring the
dividend or distribution shall be the record date. When a determination of
shareholders entitled to vote at any meeting of shareholders has been made as
provided in this section, such determination shall be applied to any adjournment
thereof unless the Board of Directors fixes a new record date and except as
otherwise required by law. A new record date must be set if a meeting is
adjourned to a date more than 120 days after the date fixed for the original
meeting.

2.06. Shareholder List. The officer or agent having charge of the
stock transfer books for shares of the corporation shall, before each meeting of
shareholders, make a complete record of the shareholders entitled to notice of
such meeting, arranged by class or series of shares and showing the address of
and the number of shares held by each shareholder. The shareholder list shall
be available at the meeting and may be inspected by any shareholder or his or
her agent or attorney at any time during the meeting or any adjournment. Any
shareholder or his or her agent or attorney may inspect the shareholder list
beginning two (2) business days after the notice of the meeting is given and
continuing to the date of the meeting, at the corporation's principal office or
at a place identified in the meeting notice in the city where the meeting will
be held and, subject to Section 180.1602(2) (b) 3 to 5 of the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law, may copy the list, during regular business hours and at his or
her expense, during the period that
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it is available for inspection hereunder. The original stock transfer books and
nominee certificates on file with the corporation (if any) shall be prima facie
evidence as to who are the shareholders entitled to inspect the shareholder list
or to vote at any meeting of shareholders. Refusal or failure to comply with the
requirements of this section shall not affect the validity of any action taken
at such meeting.

2.07. Quorum and Voting Requirements. Except as otherwise provided in
the Articles of Incorporation or in the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, a
majority of the votes entitled to be cast by shares entitled to vote as a
separate voting class on a matter, represented in person or by proxy, shall
constitute a quorum of that voting class for action on that matter at a meeting
of shareholders. If a quorum exists, action on a matter, other than the
election of directors, by a voting class is approved if the votes cast within
the voting class favoring the action exceed the votes cast opposing the action
unless a greater number of affirmative votes is required by the Wisconsin
Business Corporation Law or the Articles of Incorporation. If the Articles of
Incorporation or the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law provide for voting by
two (2) or more voting classes on a matter, action on that matter is taken only
when voted upon by each of those voting classes counted separately. Action may
be taken by one (1) voting class on a matter even though no action is taken by
another voting class entitled to vote on the matter. Although less than a
quorum exists at a meeting, a majority of the shares represented at the meeting
may adjourn the meeting from time to time and, unless a new record date is or
must be set for the meeting, the corporation is not required to give notice of
the new date, time or place of the meeting if the new date, time or place is
announced at the meeting before adjournment. Once a share is represented for
any purpose at a meeting, other than for the purpose of objecting to holding the
meeting or transacting business at the meeting, it is considered present for
purposes of determining whether a quorum exists for the remainder of the meeting
and for any adjournment of that meeting unless a new record date is or must be
set for that meeting. The term "voting class" as used in these Bylaws shall
have the same meaning as the term "voting group" under the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law.

2.08. Conduct of Meetings. The Chairperson of the Board, or if there
is none, or in his or her absence, the President, and in the President's
absence, a Vice President in the order provided under Section 4.06 of these
Bylaws, and in their absence, any person chosen by the shareholders present



shall call the meeting of the shareholders to order and shall act as chairperson
of the meeting, and the Secretary shall act as secretary of all meetings of the
shareholders, but, in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding officer may
appoint any other person to act as secretary of the meeting.

2.09. Proxies. At all meetings of shareholders, a shareholder
entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy appointed in writing by the
shareholder or by his or her duly authorized attorney-in-fact. All proxy
appointment forms shall be filed with the Secretary or other officer or agent of
the corporation authorized to tabulate votes before or at the time of the
meeting. Unless the appointment form conspicuously states that it is
irrevocable and the appointment is coupled with an interest, a proxy appointment
may be revoked at any time. The presence of a shareholder who has filed a proxy
appointment shall not of itself constitute a revocation. No proxy appointment
shall be valid after eleven months from the date of its execution, unless
otherwise expressly provided in the appointment form. The Board of Directors
shall have the power and authority to make rules that are not inconsistent with
the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law as to the validity and sufficiency of
proxy appointments.

2.10. Voting of Shares. Each outstanding share shall be entitled to
one (1) vote on each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of shareholders,
except to the extent that the voting rights of the shares are enlarged, limited
or denied by the Articles of Incorporation or the Wisconsin Business Corporation
Law. Shares owned directly or indirectly by another corporation are not
entitled to vote if this corporation owns, directly or indirectly, sufficient
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shares to elect a majority of the directors of such other corporation. However,
the prior sentence shall not limit the power of the corporation to vote any
shares, including its own shares, held by it in a fiduciary capacity. Redeemable
shares are not entitled to vote after notice of redemption is mailed to the
holders and a sum sufficient to redeem the shares has been deposited with a
bank, trust company, or other financial institution under an irrevocable
obligation to pay the holders the redemption price on surrender of the shares.

ARTICLE III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.01. General Powers and Number. All corporate powers shall be
exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the
corporation shall be managed under the direction of, its Board of Directors.
The number of directors of the corporation shall be seven (7). The number of
directors may be increased or decreased from time to time by amendment to this
Section adopted by the shareholders or the Board of Directors, but no decrease
shall have the effect of shortening the term of an incumbent director.

3.02. Election, Removal, Tenure and Qualifications. Unless action is
taken without a meeting under Section 7.01 of these Bylaws, directors shall be
elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the shares of the voting class
entitled to vote for such directors in the election at a shareholders meeting at
which a quorum is present; i.e., the individuals eligible for election by a
voting class with the largest number of votes in favor of their election are
elected as directors up to the maximum number of directors to be chosen in the
election by such voting class. Votes against a candidate are not given legal
effect and are not counted as votes cast in an election of directors. 1In the
event two (2) or more persons tie for the last vacancy to be filled, a run-off
vote shall be taken from among the candidates receiving the tie vote. Each
director shall hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders and
until the director's successor shall have been elected or there is a decrease in
the number of directors, or until his or her prior death, resignation or
removal. Any director may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of a
two-thirds majority of the shares outstanding of the class or classes of stock
which elected such director at a special meeting of shareholders called for that
purpose. Although the foregoing bylaw establishes a greater shareholder voting
requirement than is generally provided by the Wisconsin Business Corporation
Law, it has not been amended or repealed, and it is therefore effective pursuant
to Section 180.1706(4) or successor statutes. The removal may be made with or
without cause unless the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws provide that
directors may be removed only for cause. If a director is elected by a voting
class of shareholders, only the shareholders of that voting class may
participate in the vote to remove that director. A director may resign at any
time by delivering a written resig nation to the Board of Directors, to the
Chairperson of the Board (if there is one), or to the corporation through the
Secretary or otherwise. Directors need not be residents of the State of
Wisconsin or shareholders of the corporation. Any person who is seventy (70)
years of age or older on the date of a meeting of shareholders shall not be
eligible for election or re-election as a director at such meeting.

3.03. Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors



shall be held, without other notice than this Bylaw, immediately after the
annual meeting of shareholders, and each adjourned session thereof. The place
of such regular meeting shall be the same as the place of the meeting of
shareholders which precedes it, or such other suitable place as may be announced
at such meeting of shareholders or designated in a notice sent to the directors.
The Board of Directors and any committee may provide, by resolution, the time
and place, either within or without the State of Wisconsin, for the holding of
additional regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.

3.04. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors
may be called by or at the request of either the Chairperson of the Board, if
there is one, or the President. Special meetings of any committee may be called
by or at the request of the foregoing persons or
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the chairperson of the committee. The persons calling any special meeting of the
Board of Directors or committee may fix any place, either within or without the
State of Wisconsin, as the place for holding any special meeting called by them,
and if no other place is fixed the place of meeting shall be the principal
office of the corporation in the State of Wisconsin.

3.05. Meetings By Telephone or Other Communication Technology. (a)
Any or all directors may participate in a regular or special meeting or in a
committee meeting of the Board of Directors by, or conduct the meeting through
the use of, telephone or any other means of communication by which either: (1)
all participating directors may simultaneously hear each other during the
meeting or (ii) all communication during the meeting is immediately transmitted
to each participating director, and each participating director is able to
immediately send messages to all other participating directors.

(b) If a meeting will be conducted through the use of any means
described in Section 3.05(a), all participating directors shall be informed that
a meeting is taking place at which official business may be transacted. A
director participating in a meeting by any means described in Section 3.05(a) 1is
deemed to be present in person at the meeting.

3.06. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided in the
Articles of Incorporation or the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, notice of
the date, time and place of any special meeting of the Board of Directors and of
any special meeting of a committee of the Board shall be given orally or in
writing to each director or committee member at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting, except that notice by mail or private carrier shall be given at least
five (5) days prior to the meeting. The notice need not describe the purpose of
the meeting. Notice may be communicated in person, by telephone, telegraph or
facsimile, or by mail or private carrier. Oral notice is effective when
communicated. Written notice is effective as follows: If delivered in person,
when received; if given by mail, when deposited, postage prepaid, in the United
States mail addressed to the director at his or her business or home address (or
such other address as the director may have designated in writing filed with the
Secretary); if given by private carrier, when delivered to the private carrier,
with fees prepaid, addressed to the director at his or her business or home
address (or such other address as the director may have designated in writing
filed with the Secretary); if given by facsimile, at the time transmitted to a
facsimile number at any address designated above; and if given by telegraph,
when delivered to the telegraph company.

3.07. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law, a majority of the number of directors as provided in Section
3.01 shall constitute a quorum of the Board of Directors. Except as otherwise
provided by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, a majority of the number of
directors appointed to serve on a committee shall constitute a quorum of the
committee. Although less than a quorum of the Board of Directors or a committee
is present at a meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the
meeting from time to time without further notice.

3.08. Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided by the
Wisconsin Business Corporation Law or the Articles of Incorporation, the
affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a
quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors or any committee
thereof.

3.09. Conduct of Meetings. The Chairperson of the Board, or if there
is none, or in his or her absence, the President, and in the President's
absence, a Vice President in the order provided under Section 4.06 of these
Bylaws, and in their absence, any director chosen by the directors present,
shall call meetings of the Board of Directors to order and shall chair the
meeting. The Secretary of the corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings



of the Board of
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Directors, but in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding officer may
appoint any assistant secretary or any director or other person present to act
as secretary of the meeting.

3.10. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors,
including a vacancy created by an increase in the number of directors, may be
filled by the shareholders or the Board of Directors. If the directors
remaining in office constitute fewer than a quorum of the Board, the directors
may fill a vacancy by the affirmative vote of a majority of all directors
remaining in office. If the vacant office was held by a director elected by a
voting class of shareholders, only the holders of shares of that voting class
may vote to fill the vacancy if it is filled by the shareholders, and only the
remaining directors elected by that voting class may vote to fill the wvacancy if
it is filled by the directors. A vacancy that will occur at a specific later
date (because of a resignation effective at a later date or otherwise) may be
filled before the vacancy occurs, but the new director may not take office until
the vacancy occurs.

3.11. Compensation. The Board of Directors, irrespective of any
personal interest of any of its members, may fix the compensation of directors,
or may delegate the authority to an appropriate committee.

3.12. Presumption of Assent. A director who is present and is
announced as present at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee
thereof at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to
have assented to the action taken unless (i) the director objects at the
beginning of the meeting or promptly upon his or her arrival to holding the
meeting or transacting business at the meeting, or (ii) the director's dissent
or abstention from the action taken is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or
(11i1) the director delivers his or her written dissent or abstention to the
presiding officer of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or to the
corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to
dissent or abstain shall not apply to a director who voted in favor of such
action.

3.13. Committees. Unless the Articles of Incorporation otherwise
provide, the Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote
of a majority of all the directors then in office, may create one (1) or more
committees. FEach committee shall consist of three (3) or more directors as
members. An Executive Committee so appointed shall have and may exercise, when
the Board of Directors is not in session, the powers of the Board of Directors
in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, subject to the
limitations set forth in this Section 3.13 and any additional limitations
provided by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of the directors then in
office. Committees other than an Executive Committee, to the extent provided in
the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors creating such other committees,
and as thereafter supplemented or amended by further resolution adopted by a
like vote, may exercise the authority of the Board of Directors, except that
neither the Executive Committee nor any other committee may: (a) authorize
distributions; (b) approve or propose to shareholders action that the Wisconsin
Business Corporation Law requires be approved by shareholders; (c) fill
vacancies on the Board of Directors or any of its committees, except that the
Board of Directors may provide by resolution that any vacancies on a committee
shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining committee
members; (d) amend the Articles of Incorporation; (e) adopt, amend or repeal
Bylaws; (f) approve a plan of merger not requiring shareholder approval; (9)
authorize or approve reacquisition of shares, except according to a formula or
method prescribed by the Board of Directors or (h) authorize or approve the
issuance or sale or contract for sale of shares, or determine the designation
and relative rights, preferences and limitations of a class or series of shares,
except within limits prescribed by the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors may elect one or more of its members as alternate members of any such
committee who may take the place of any absent member or members at any meeting
of such committee, upon request by the Chairperson of the Board, if there is
one, the President or upon request by the chairperson of such meeting. Each
such committee shall fix its own rules (consistent with the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law, the Articles of

-8-—

Incorporation and these Bylaws) governing the conduct of its activities and
shall make such reports to the Board of Directors of its activities as the Board
of Directors may request. Unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in
creating a committee, a committee may employ counsel, accountants and other
consultants to assist it in the exercise of authority. The creation of a
committee, delegation of authority to a committee or action by a committee does
not relieve the Board of Directors or any of its members of any responsibility



imposed on the Board of Directors or its members by law.
ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS

4.01. Appointment. The principal officers shall include a President,
one or more Vice Presidents (the number and designations to be determined by the
Board of Directors), a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other officers if any, as
may be deemed necessary by the Board of Directors, each of whom shall be
appointed by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the
same person.

4.02. Resignation and Removal. An officer shall hold office until he
or she resigns, dies, is removed hereunder, or a different person is appointed
to the office. An officer may resign at any time by delivering an appropriate
written notice to the corporation. The resignation is effective when the notice
is delivered, unless the notice specifies a later effective date and the
corporation accepts the later effective date. Any officer may be removed by the
Board of Directors with or without cause and notwithstanding the contract
rights, if any, of the person removed. Except as provided in the preceding
sentence, the resignation or removal is subject to any remedies provided by any
contract between the officer and the corporation or otherwise provided by law.
Appointment shall not of itself create contract rights.

4.03. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death,
resignation, removal or otherwise, shall be filled by the Board of Directors.
If a resignation is effective at a later date, the Board of Directors may fill
the vacancy before the effective date if the Board of Directors provides that
the successor may not take office until the effective date.

4.04. Chairperson of the Board. The Board of Directors may at its
discretion appoint a Chairperson of the Board. The Chairperson of the Board, if
there is one, shall preside at all meetings of the shareholders and Board of
Directors, and shall carry out such other duties as directed by the Board of
Directors.

4.05. President. The President shall be the principal executive
officer and, subject to the control and direction of the Board of Directors,
shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the
corporation. He or she shall, in the absence of the Chairperson of the Board
(if one is appointed), preside at all meetings of the shareholders and of the
Board of Directors. The President shall have authority, subject to such rules as
may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, to appoint such agents and
employees of the corporation as he or she shall deem necessary, to prescribe
their powers, duties and compensation, and to delegate authority to them. Such
agents and employees shall hold office at the discretion of the President. The
President shall have authority to sign, execute and acknowledge, on behalf of
the corporation, all deeds, mortgages, bonds, stock certificates, contracts,
leases, reports and all other documents or instruments necessary or proper to be
executed in the course of the corporation's regular business, or which shall be
authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors; and, except as otherwise
provided by law or directed by the Board of Directors, the President may
authorize any Vice President or other officer or agent of the corporation to
sign, execute and acknowledge such documents or instruments in his or her place
and stead. In general he or she shall perform all duties incident to the office
of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors from time to time.

-0-

4.06. Vice Presidents. 1In the absence of the President, or in the
event of the President's death, inability or refusal to act, or in the event for
any reason it shall be impracticable for the President to act personally, a Vice
President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice
Presidents in the order designated by the Board of Directors, or in the absence
of any designation, then in the order of their appointment) shall perform the
duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be
subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President may sign,
with the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, certificates for shares of the
corporation; and shall perform such other duties and have such authority as from
time to time may be delegated or assigned to him or her by the President or the
Board of Directors. The execution of any instrument of the corporation by any
Vice President shall be conclusive evidence, as to third parties, of the Vice
President's authority to act in the stead of the President.

4.07. Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) keep (or cause to be kept)
regular minutes of all meetings of the shareholders, the Board of Directors and
any committees of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that
purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the



provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; (c) be custodian of the
corporate records and of the seal of the corporation, if any, and see that the
seal of the corporation, if any, is affixed to all documents which are
authorized to be executed on behalf of the corporation under its seal; (d) keep
or arrange for the keeping of a register of the post office address of each
shareholder which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such shareholder; (e)
sign with the President, or a Vice President, certificates for shares of the
corporation, the issuance of which shall have been authorized by resolution of
the Board of Directors; (f) keep or arrange for the keeping of the stock
transfer books of the corporation; and (g) in general perform all duties
incident to the office of Secretary and have such other duties and exercise such
authority as from time to time may be delegated or assigned to him or her by the
President or by the Board of Directors.

4.08. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall: (a) have charge and custody of
and be responsible for all funds and securities of the corporation; (b) receive
and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the corporation from any source
whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the corporation in such
banks, trust companies or other depositaries as shall be selected by the
corporation; and (c) in general perform all of the duties incident to the office
of Treasurer and have such other duties and exercise such other authority as
from time to time may be delegated or assigned to him or her by the President or
by the Board of Directors.

4.09. Assistants and Acting Officers. The Board of Directors or the
President shall have the power to appoint any person to act as assistant to any
officer, or as agent for the corporation in the officer's stead, or to perform
the duties of such officer whenever for any reason it is impracticable for such
officer to act personally, and such assistant or acting officer or other agent
so appointed by the Board of Directors or President shall have the power to
perform all the duties of the office to which that person is so appointed to be
assistant, or as to which he or she is so appointed to act, except as such power
may be otherwise defined or restricted by the Board of Directors or the
President.

4.10. Salaries. The salaries of the principal officers shall be
fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors or by a duly authorized
committee thereof, and no officer shall be prevented from receiving such salary
by reason of the fact that such officer is also a director of the corporation.

ARTICLE V. CERTIFICATES FOR SHARES AND THEIR TRANSFER

5.01. Certificates for Shares. All shares of this corporation shall
be represented by certificates. Certificates representing shares of the
corporation shall be in such form,
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consistent with law, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. At a
minimum, a share certificate shall state on its face the name of the corporation
and that it is organized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, the name of
the person to whom issued, and the number and class of shares and the
designation of the series, if any, that the certificate represents. If the
corporation is authorized to issue different classes of shares or different
series within a class, the front or back of the certificate must contain either
(a) a summary of the designations, relative rights, preferences and limitations
applicable to each class, and the variations in the rights, preferences and
limitations determined for each series and the authority of the Board of
Directors to determine variations for future series, or (b) a conspicuous
statement that the corporation will furnish the shareholder the information
described in clause (a) on request, in writing and without charge. Such
certificates shall be signed, either manually or in facsimile, by the President
or a Vice President and by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. All
certificates for shares shall be consecutively numbered or otherwise identified.
The name and address of the person to whom the shares represented thereby

are issued, with the number of shares and date of issue, shall be entered on the
stock transfer books of the corporation. All certificates surrendered to the
corporation for transfer shall be canceled and no new certificate shall be
issued until the former certificate for a like number of shares shall have been
surrendered and canceled, except as provided in Section 5.05.

5.02. Signature by Former Officers. If an officer or assistant
officer, who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon any
certificate for shares, has ceased to be such officer or assistant officer
before such certificate is issued, the certificate may be issued by the
corporation with the same effect as if that person were still an officer or
assistant officer at the date of its issue.

5.03. Transfer of Shares. Prior to due presentment of a certificate



for shares for registration of transfer, and unless the corporation has
established a procedure by which a beneficial owner of shares held by a nominee
is to be recognized by the corporation as the shareholder, the corporation may
treat the registered owner of such shares as the person exclusively entitled to
vote, to receive notifications and otherwise to have and exercise all the rights
and power of an owner. The corporation may require reasonable assurance that
all transfer endorsements are genuine and effective and in compliance with all
regulations prescribed by or under the authority of the Board of Directors.

5.04. Restrictions on Transfer. The face or reverse side of each
certificate representing shares shall bear a conspicuous notation of any
restriction upon the transfer of such shares imposed by the corporation or
imposed by any agreement of which the corporation has written notice.

5.05. Lost, Destroyed or Stolen Certificates. Where the owner claims
that his or her certificate for shares has been lost, destroyed or wrongfully
taken, a new certificate shall be issued in place thereof if the owner (a) so
requests before the corporation has notice that such shares have been acquired
by a bona fide purchaser, and (b) if required by the corporation, files with the
corporation a sufficient indemnity bond, and (c) satisfies such other reasonable
requirements as may be prescribed by or under the authority of the Board of
Directors.

5.06. Consideration for Shares. The shares of the corporation may be
issued for such consideration as shall be fixed from time to time and determined
to be adequate by the Board of Directors, provided that any shares having a par
value shall not be issued for a consideration less than the par value thereof.
The consideration may consist of any tangible or intangible property or benefit
to the corporation, including cash, promissory notes, services performed,
contracts for services to be performed, or other securities of the corporation.
When the corporation receives the consideration for which the Board of Directors
authorized the
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issuance of shares, such shares shall be deemed to be fully paid and
nonassessable by the corporation.

5.07. Stock Regulations. The Board of Directors shall have the power
and authority to make all such rules and regulations not inconsistent with the
statutes of the State of Wisconsin as it may deem expedient concerning the
issue, transfer and registration of certificates representing shares of the
corporation, including the appointment or designation of one or more stock
transfer agents and one or more registrars.

ARTICLE VI. WAIVER OF NOTICE

6.01. Shareholder Written Waiver. A shareholder may waive any notice
required by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, the Articles of
Incorporation or these Bylaws before or after the date and time stated in the
notice. The waiver shall be in writing and signed by the shareholder entitled
to the notice, shall contain the same information that would have been required
in the notice under the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law except that the time
and place of meeting need not be stated, and shall be delivered to the
corporation for inclusion in the corporate records.

6.02. Shareholder Waiver by Attendance. A shareholder's attendance

at a meeting, in person or by proxy, waives objection to both of the following:

(a) Lack of notice or defective notice of the meeting, unless
the shareholder at the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon arrival objects
to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting.

(b) Consideration of a particular matter at the meeting that
is not within the purpose described in the meeting notice, unless the
shareholder objects to considering the matter when it is presented.

6.03. Director Written Waiver. A director may waive any notice
required by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, the Articles of
Incorporation or the Bylaws before or after the date and time stated in the
notice. The waiver shall be in writing, signed by the director entitled to the
notice and retained by the corporation.

6.04. Director Waiver by Attendance. A director's attendance at or
participation in a meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof
waives any required notice to him or her of the meeting unless the director at
the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon his or her arrival objects to



holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not
thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.

ARTICLE VII. ACTION WITHOUT MEETINGS

7.01. Shareholder Action Without Meeting. Action required or
permitted by the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law to be taken at a
shareholders' meeting may be taken without a meeting by all shareholders
entitled to vote on the action. The action must be evidenced by one or more
written consents describing the action taken, signed by the shareholders
consenting thereto and delivered to the corporation for inclusion in its
corporate records. Action taken hereunder is effective when the consent is
delivered to the corporation, unless the consent specifies a different effective
date. A consent hereunder has the effect of a meeting vote and may be described
as such in any document.

7.02. Director Action Without Meeting. Unless the Articles of
Incorporation provide otherwise, action required or permitted by the Wisconsin
Business Corporation Law to
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be taken at a Board of Directors meeting or committee meeting may be taken
without a meeting if the action is taken by all members of the Board or
committee. The action shall be evidenced by one or more written consents
describing the action taken, signed by each director and retained by the
corporation. Action taken hereunder is effective when the last director signs
the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A consent
signed hereunder has the effect of a unanimous vote taken at a meeting at which
all directors or committee members were present, and may be described as such in
any document.

ARTICLE VIII. INDEMNIFICATION

8.01. Indemnification for Successful Defense. Within twenty (20) days
after receipt of a written request pursuant to Section 8.03, the corporation
shall indemnify a director or officer, to the extent he or she has been
successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of a proceeding, for all
reasonable expenses incurred in the proceeding if the director or officer was a
party because he or she is a director or officer of the corporation.

8.02. Other Indemnification.

(a) In cases not included under Section 8.01, the corporation
shall indemnify a director or officer against all liabilities and expenses
incurred by the director or officer in a proceeding to which the director or
officer was a party because he or she is a director or officer of the
corporation, unless liability was incurred because the director or officer
breached or failed to perform a duty he or she owes to the corporation and the
breach or failure to perform constitutes any of the following:

(1) A willful failure to deal fairly with the corporation or its
shareholders in connection with a matter in which the director or officer has a
material conflict of interest.

(2) A violation of criminal law, unless the director or officer had
reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was lawful or no reasonable
cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

(3) A transaction from which the director or officer derived an
improper personal profit.

(4) Willful misconduct.

(b) Determination of whether indemnification is required
under this Section shall be made pursuant to Section 8.05.

(c) The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement or conviction, or upon a plea of no contest or an equivalent plea,
does not, by itself, create a presumption that indemnification of the director
or officer is not required under this Section.

8.03. Written Request. A director or officer who seeks
indemnification under Sections 8.01 or 8.02 shall make a written request to the
corporation.

8.04. Nonduplication. The corporation shall not indemnify a director

or officer under Sections 8.01 or 8.02 if the director or officer has previously
received indemnification or allowance of expenses from any person, including the



corporation, in connection with the same proceeding. However, the director or
officer has no duty to look to any other person for indemnification.

8.05. Determination of Right to Indemnification.
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(a) Unless otherwise provided by the Articles of
Incorporation or by written agreement between the director or officer and the
corporation, the director or officer seeking indemnification under Section 8.02
shall select one of the following means for determining his or her right to
indemnification:

(1) By a majority vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors
consisting of directors not at the time parties to the same or related
proceedings. If a quorum of disinterested directors cannot be obtained, by

majority vote of a committee duly appointed by the Board of Directors and
consisting solely of two (2) or more directors who are not at the time parties
to the same or related proceedings. Directors who are parties to the same or
related proceedings may participate in the designation of members of the
committee.

(2) By independent legal counsel selected by a quorum of the Board
of Directors or its committee in the manner prescribed in sub. (1) or, if unable
to obtain such a quorum or committee, by a majority vote of the full Board of
Directors, including directors who are parties to the same or related
proceedings.

(3) By a panel of three (3) arbitrators consisting of one
arbitrator selected by those directors entitled under sub. (2) to select
independent legal counsel, one arbitrator selected by the director or officer
seeking indemnification and one arbitrator selected by the two (2) arbitrators
previously selected.

(4) By an affirmative vote of shares represented at a meeting of
shareholders at which a quorum of the voting group entitled to vote thereon is
present. Shares owned by, or voted under the control of, persons who are at the
time parties to the same or related proceedings, whether as plaintiffs or
defendants or in any other capacity, may not be voted in making the
determination.

(5) By a court under Section 8.08.

(6) By any other method provided for in any additional right to
indemnification permitted under Section 8.07.

(b) In any determination under (a), the burden of proof is on
the corporation to prove by clear and convincing evidence that indemnification
under Section 8.02 should not be allowed.

(c) A written determination as to a director's or officer's
indemnification under Section 8.02 shall be submitted to both the corporation
and the director or officer within 60 days of the selection made under (a).

(d) If it is determined that indemnification is required
under Section 8.02, the corporation shall pay all liabilities and expenses not
prohibited by Section 8.04 within ten (10) days after receipt of the written
determination under (c). The corporation shall also pay all expenses incurred by
the director or officer in the determination process under (a).

8.06. Advance of Expenses. Within ten (10) days after receipt of a
written request by a director or officer who is a party to a proceeding, the
corporation shall pay or reimburse his or her reasonable expenses as incurred if
the director or officer provides the corporation with all of the following:

(a) A written affirmation of his or her good faith belief
that he or she has not breached or failed to perform his or her duties to the
corporation.
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(b) A written undertaking, executed personally or on his or
her behalf, to repay the allowance to the extent that it is ultimately
determined under Section 8.05 that indemnification under Section 8.02 is not
required and that indemnification is not ordered by a court under Section
8.08(b) (2). The undertaking under this Section 8.06(b) shall be an unlimited
general obligation of the director or officer and may be accepted without
reference to his or her ability to repay the allowance. The undertaking may be
secured or unsecured.

8.07. Nonexclusivity.



(a) Except as provided in Section 8.07(b), Sections 8.01,
8.02 and 8.06 do not preclude any additional right to indemnification or
allowance of expenses that a director or officer may have under any of the
following:

(1) The Articles of Incorporation.

(2) A written agreement between the director or officer and the
corporation.

(3) A resolution of the Board of Directors.

(4) A resolution, after notice, adopted by a majority vote of all

of the corporation's voting shares then issued and outstanding.

(b) Regardless of the existence of an additional right under
Section 8.07(a), the corporation shall not indemnify a director or officer, or
permit a director or officer to retain any allowance of expenses unless it is
determined by or on behalf of the corporation that the director or officer did
not breach or fail to perform a duty he or she owes to the corporation which
constitutes conduct under Section 8.02(a) (1), (2), (3) or (4). A director or
officer who is a party to the same or related proceeding for which
indemnification or an allowance of expenses is sought may not participate in a
determination under this Section 8.07(b).

(c) Sections 8.01 to 8.14 do not affect the corporation's
power to pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a director or officer in either
of the following circumstances:

(1) As a witness in a proceeding to which he or she is not a party.

(2) As a plaintiff or petitioner in a proceeding because he or she
is or was an employee, agent, director or officer of the corporation.

8.08. Court-Ordered Indemnification.

(a) Except as provided otherwise by written agreement between
the director or officer and the corporation, a director or officer who is a
party to a proceeding may apply for indemnification to the court conducting the
proceeding or to another court of competent jurisdiction. Application shall be
made for an initial determination by the court under Section 8.05(a) (5) or for
review by the court of an adverse determination under Section 8.05(a) (1), (2),
(3), (4) or (6). After receipt of an application, the court shall give any
notice it considers necessary.

(b) The court shall order indemnification if it determines
any of the following:

(1) That the director or officer is entitled to indemnification
under Sections 8.01 or 8.02.
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(2) That the director or officer is fairly and reasonably entitled
to indemnification in view of all the relevant circumstances, regardless of
whether indemnification is required under Section 8.02.

(c) If the court determines under Section 8.08 (b) that the
director or officer is entitled to indemnification, the corporation shall pay
the director's or officer's expenses incurred to obtain the court-ordered
indemnification.

8.09. Indemnification and Allowance of Expenses of Employees and

not a director or officer of the corporation, to the extent that he or she has
been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of a proceeding, for all
reasonable expenses incurred in the proceeding if the employee was a party
because he or she was an employee of the corporation. In addition, the
corporation may indemnify and allow reasonable expenses of an employee or agent
who is not a director or officer of the corporation to the extent provided by
the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, by general or specific action of
the Board of Directors or by contract.

8.10. Insurance. The corporation may purchase and maintain insurance
on behalf of an individual who is an employee, agent, director or officer of the
corporation against liability asserted against or incurred by the individual in
his or her capacity as an employee, agent, director or officer, regardless of
whether the corporation is required or authorized to indemnify or allow expenses
to the individual against the same liability under Sections 8.01, 8.02, 8.06,
8.07 and 8.09.



8.11. Securities Law Claims.

(a) Pursuant to the public policy of the State of Wisconsin,
the corporation shall provide indemnification and allowance of expenses and may
insure for any liability incurred in connection with a proceeding involving
securities regulation described under Section 8.11(b) to the extent required or
permitted under Sections 8.01 to 8.10.

(b) Sections 8.01 to 8.10 apply, to the extent applicable to
any other proceeding, to any proceeding involving a federal or state statute,
rule or regulation regulating the offer, sale or purchase of securities,
securities brokers or dealers, or investment companies or investment advisers.

8.12. Liberal Construction. In order for the corporation to obtain
and retain qualified directors, officers and employees, the foregoing provisions
shall be liberally administered in order to afford maximum indemnification of
directors, officers and, where Section 8.09 of these Bylaws applies, employees.
The indemnification above provided for shall be granted in all applicable cases
unless to do so would clearly contravene law, controlling precedent or public
policy.

8.13. Definitions Applicable to this Article. For purposes of this

Article:

(a) "Affiliate" shall include, without limitation, any
corporation, partnership, Jjoint venture, employee benefit plan, trust or other
enterprise that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controls or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the corporation.

(b) "Corporation" means this corporation and any domestic or
foreign predecessor of this corporation where the predecessor corporation's
existence ceased upon the consummation of a merger or other transaction.
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(c) "Director or officer" means any of the following:
(1) An individual who is or was a director or officer of this
corporation.
(2) An individual who, while a director or officer of this

corporation, is or was serving at the corporation's request as a director,
officer, partner, trustee, member of any governing or decision-making committee,
employee or agent of another corporation or foreign corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

(3) An individual who, while a director or officer of this
corporation, is or was serving an employee benefit plan because his or her
duties to the corporation also impose duties on, or otherwise involve services
by, the person to the plan or to participants in or beneficiaries of the plan.

(4) Unless the context requires otherwise, the estate or personal
representative of a director or officer.

For purposes of this Article, it shall be conclusively presumed that
any director or officer serving as a director, officer, partner, trustee, member
of any governing or decision-making committee, employee or agent of an affiliate
shall be so serving at the request of the corporation.

(d) "Expenses" include fees, costs, charges, disbursements,
attorney fees and other expenses incurred in connection with a proceeding.

(e) "Liability" includes the obligation to pay a judgment,
settlement, penalty, assessment, forfeiture or fine, including an excise tax
assessed with respect to an employee benefit plan, and reasonable expenses.

(f) "Party" includes an individual who was or is, or who is
threatened to be made, a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding.

(g) "Proceeding" means any threatened, pending or completed civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit, arbitration or other
proceeding, whether formal or informal, which involves foreign, federal, state
or local law and which is brought by or in the right of the corporation or by
any other person.

ARTICLE IX. SEAL
The Board of Directors may provide a corporate seal which may be
circular in form and have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the

state of incorporation and the words "Corporate Seal."

ARTICLE X. AMENDMENTS



10.01. By Shareholders. These Bylaws may be amended or repealed and
new Bylaws may be adopted by the shareholders by the vote provided in Section
2.07 of these Bylaws or as specifically provided in this Section 10.01. If
authorized by the Articles of Incorporation, the shareholders may adopt or amend
a Bylaw that fixes a greater or lower quorum requirement or a greater voting
requirement for shareholders or voting classes of shareholders than otherwise is
provided in the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law. The adoption or amendment
of a Bylaw that adds, changes or deletes a greater or lower quorum requirement
or a greater voting requirement for shareholders must meet the same quorum
requirement and be adopted by the
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same vote and voting classes required to take action under the quorum and voting
requirement then in effect.

10.02. By Directors. Except as the Articles of Incorporation may
otherwise provide, these Bylaws may also be amended or repealed and new Bylaws
may be adopted by the Board of Directors by the vote provided in Section 3.08,
but (a) no Bylaw adopted by the shareholders shall be amended, repealed or
readopted by the Board of Directors if the Bylaw so adopted so provides and (b)
a Bylaw adopted or amended by the shareholders that fixes a greater or lower
quorum requirement or a greater voting requirement for the Board of Directors
than otherwise is provided in the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law may not be
amended or repealed by the Board of Directors unless the Bylaw expressly
provides that it may be amended or repealed by a specified vote of the Board of
Directors. Action by the Board of Directors to adopt or amend a Bylaw that
changes the quorum or voting requirement for the Board of Directors must meet
the same quorum requirement and be adopted by the same vote required to take
action under the quorum and voting requirement then in effect, unless a
different voting requirement is specified as provided by the preceding sentence.
A Bylaw that fixes a greater or lower quorum requirement or a greater voting
requirement for shareholders or voting classes of shareholders than otherwise is
provided in the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law may not be adopted, amended
or repealed by the Board of Directors.

10.03. Implied Amendments. Any action taken or authorized by the
shareholders or by the Board of Directors, which would be inconsistent with the
Bylaws then in effect but is taken or authorized by a vote that would be
sufficient to amend the Bylaws so that the Bylaws would be consistent with such
action, shall be given the same effect as though the Bylaws had been temporarily
amended or suspended so far, but only so far, as is necessary to permit the
specific action so taken or authorized.
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AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1, dated as of April 9, 2001 ("Amendment"), to the Credit
Agreement dated as of July 31, 2000, (the "Credit Agreement"), among Actuant
Corporation (the "Company"), Credit Suisse First Boston as Lead Arranger,
Collateral Agent and Administrative Agent, First Union National Bank, as
Syndication Agent, ING (U.S.) Capital LLC, as Documentation Agent and the
Lenders party thereto. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the
same meaning assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, "Applied Power Inc." was formally renamed "Actuant Corporation" on
January 15, 2001;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9.08 of the Credit Agreement, the Company and
the Required Lenders desire to amend certain provisions of the Credit Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants contained
herein, and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound
hereby, agree as follows:

1. Amendment

(a) Exchange Rate: The definition of Exchange Rate in Section 1.01 of
the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following
sentence at the end thereof:

"For purposes of Sections 2.12(b) and 2.13(g), in the event that
a Lender of a Tranche B Term Loan elects to have a prepayment
applied to the Tranche A Term Loans which election results in a
requirement to prepay or repay Alternative Currency denominated
Tranche A Term Loans, the Exchange Rate shall be calculated in
accordance with the second sentence hereof on the Business Day
following the receipt of such election."

(b) Section 2.12. Clauses (a) and (b) of Section 2.12 of the Credit
Agreement are hereby amended by deleting such clauses in their
entirety and replacing them with the following:

"(a) The Borrower shall have the right at any time and from time to
time to prepay any Borrowing, in whole or in part, upon prior written
or telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by written
or telecopy notice) to the Administrative Agent before 11:00 a.m., New
York City time at least (x) seven Business Days prior to the date of
prepayment in the case of Eurocurrency Rate Loans denominated on one
or more Alternative Currencies, (y) four Business Days prior to the
date of prepayment in the case of Loans denominated in Dollars, and
(z) on the date of prepayment in the case of ABR Revolving Loans;
provided, however, that each partial prepayment shall be in an amount
that is an integral multiple of $1,000,000 (or the Alternative
Currency Equivalent thereof) and not less than $5,000,000 (or the
Alternative Currency Equivalent thereof); provided, further, however,
that in connection with any optional prepayment of an Alternative
Currency Loan the Borrower shall provide seven Business Days notice
and an amount of Dollars sufficient to make the required pro rata
prepayment of Tranche B Term Loans and Tranche C Term Loans in
accordance with Section 2.12(b) (assuming, for this purpose, that no
Lender of Tranche B Term Loans waives its prepayment in accordance
with Section 2.12(b)). Notwithstanding anything else contained herein
but subject to the second proviso above, in connection with any
prepayment of Tranche A Term Loans, the Borrower may elect to prepay
only Dollar denominated Tranche A Term Loans or Alternative Currency
denominated Tranche A Term Loans (or any combination thereof) pursuant
to Section 2.12(b) to the extent such Loans remain outstanding at such
time but only in the event the Borrower provides for such prepayment
in the appropriate currency.

(b) Optional prepayments of Term Loans shall first be allocated and
applied pro rata to the next scheduled installment of principal due in
respect of the Tranche A Term Loans, Tranche B Term Loans and Tranche
C Term Loans under Sections 2.11(a) (i), (ii) and (iii),

respectively. Thereafter, optional prepayments shall be allocated
pro rata to the then outstanding Tranche A Term Loans, the
Tranche B Term Loans and the Tranche C Term Loans (after giving
effect to the prepayments applied with respect to the next
scheduled installment provided for in the prior sentence) and
applied pro rata to the remaining scheduled installments of
principal due in respect thereof under Sections 2.11(a) (i), (ii)
and (iii), respectively; provided, however, Lenders of the
Tranche B Term Loans shall have the right (to the extent Tranche



A Term Loans remain outstanding after giving effect to such
prepayment of the Tranche A Term Loans) to waive any such
prepayment (other than as applied to the next scheduled
prepayment) by giving notice in writing to the Administrative
Agent at least three Business Days prior to the prepayment, in
which case the waived portion of any such prepayment will be
allocated to the Tranche A Term Loan. In the event that one or
more of the Lenders of the Tranche B Term Loans waive such
prepayment in accordance with the prior sentence, the prepayment
will be applied first to the Dollar denominated Tranche A Term
Loans and thereafter to the Alternative Currency Tranche A Term
Loans based upon the Exchange Rate. The Administrative Agent
shall determine the amount of such payment based on the Exchange
Rate and the Borrower shall be responsible for delivering the
Alternative Currency."

(c) Section 2.13(g). Section 2.13(g) of the Credit Agreement is
hereby amended by deleting such section in its entirety and replacing
it as follows:

"Each mandatory prepayment shall be made by the Borrower in a
combination of Dollars and the Alternative Currency (based upon
the Exchange Rate) in proportion to the amounts to be repaid;
provided, that in connection with any mandatory prepayment of an
Alternative Currency Loan the Borrower shall provide an amount of
Dollars sufficient to make the required pro rata prepayment of
Tranche B Term Loans and Tranche C Term Loans in accordance with
this Section 2.13(g) (assuming, for this purpose, that no Lender
of

Tranche B Term Loans waives its prepayment in accordance with
Section 2.12(3)). In the event that one or more of the Lenders of
the Tranche B Term Loans waives its prepayment in accordance with
Section 2.12(j), the prepayment will be applied first to the
Dollar denominated Tranche A Term Loans and thereafter to the
Alternative Currency Tranche A Term Loans based upon the Exchange
Rate. The Administrative Agent shall determine the amount of such
payment based on the Exchange Rate and shall convert the Dollars
to the Alternative Currency at the direction of the Borrower. The
Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent any shortfall as a
result of such conversion."

(d) Section 6.01. Sections 6.01(k) and (m) of the Credit Agreement are
hereby amended by deleting such sections in their entirety and replacing
them as follows:

" (k) subject to Section 6.01(m) below, Indebtedness incurred by Foreign
Subsidiaries incurred from time to time after the Closing Date so long as the
aggregate principal amount of all Indebtedness (including trade letters of
credit) incurred pursuant to this paragraph (k) at any time outstanding does not
exceed the Dollar Equivalent of $75,000,000; provided, no such Indebtedness may
be incurred when on a pro forma basis for such incurrence (x) the aggregate
principal amount of all such Indebtedness outstanding would be greater than
$45,000,000 and (y) the Senior Leverage Ratio would be greater than 1.5:1.0;
provided, further, none of the Indebtedness permitted pursuant to this paragraph
(k) may be directly or indirectly guaranteed by the Borrower or any Domestic
Subsidiaries of the Borrower;

(m) additional Indebtedness of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries to the
extent not permitted by the foregoing clauses of this Section 6.01 not to exceed
$10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding; provided, the
aggregate amount of Indebtedness under Sections 6.01(k) and (m) does not exceed
$80,000,000 at any one time."

(e) Section 6.05. Section 6.05(b) of the Credit Agreement is hereby
amended by deleting such Section in its entirety and replacing it with the
following:

"(b) each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries may (i) in the
ordinary course of business, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of
any assets which, in the reasonable judgment of such person, are

obsolete, worn out or otherwise no longer useful in the conduct
of such person's business, and (ii) unless an Event of Default
shall have occurred and be continuing, subject to Section
2.13(b), sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any assets, provided
that the aggregate consideration received in respect of all
assets subject to sales or other dispositions pursuant to this
clause (b) (ii) shall not exceed the sum of (i) $10,000,000 in any
twelve months, not including the proceeds of the sale of assets
listed on Schedule 2.13(b);"

(f) Section 6.06. Section 6.06 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended
by deleting the word "and" at the end of Section (b), substituting "; and"
for the "." at the end of Section (c¢) and adding the following new Section



(d) :

"(d) so long as there shall exist no Default or Event of Default
(both before and after giving effect to the payment thereof), the
Borrower may repurchase outstanding shares of its common stock or
equivalents thereof or rights to purchase any of the foregoing
issued in connection with the Borrower's directors compensation
plan; provided that the aggregate amount of shares repurchased
paid by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 6.06(d) (exclusive
of amounts paid as described pursuant to Section 6.06(b)) shall
not exceed $750,000 in any fiscal year and shall not exceed a
maximum of $1,750,000."

2. Conditions to Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective as
of the date first above written when, and only when, the Administrative Agent
shall have received counterparts of this Amendment executed by the Company and
the Requisite Lenders or, as to any of the Lenders, advice satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent that such Lender has executed this Amendment. The
effectiveness of this Amendment (other than Sections 5 and 7 hereof) is
conditioned upon the accuracy of the representations and warranties set forth in
Section 3 hereof.

3. Representations and Warranties. In order to induce the Lenders and the
Agents to enter into this Amendment, the Company represents and warrants to each
of the Lenders and the Agents that after giving effect to this Amendment, (i) no
Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing; and

(ii) all of the representations and warranties in the Credit Agreement, after
giving effect to this Amendment, are true and complete in all material respects
on and as of the date hereof as if made on the date hereof (or, if any such
representation or warranty is expressly stated to have been made as of a
specific date, as of such specific date).

4. Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreement and the Notes. On and
after the effectiveness of this Amendment, each reference in the Credit
Agreement to "this Agreement", "hereunder", "hereof" or words of like import
referring to the Credit Agreement and each reference in each of the other Credit
Documents to the "Credit Agreement", "thereunder", "thereof" or words of like
import referring to the Credit Agreement, shall mean and be a reference to the
Credit Agreement, as amended by this Amendment. The Credit Agreement, the Notes
and each of the other Credit Documents, as specifically amended by this
Amendment, are and shall continue to be in full force and effect and are hereby
in all respects ratified and confirmed.

5. Costs, Expenses and Taxes. The Company agrees to pay all reasonable
costs and expenses of the Agents in connection with the preparation, execution
and delivery of this Amendment and the other instruments and documents to be
delivered hereunder, if any (including, without limitation, the reasonable fees
and expenses of Cahill Gordon & Reindel) in accordance with the terms of Section
9.05 of the Credit Agreement. In addition, the Company shall pay or reimburse
any and all stamp and other taxes payable or determined to be payable in
connection with the execution and delivery of this Amendment and the other
instruments and documents to be delivered hereunder, if any, and agrees to save
each Agent and each Lender harmless from and against any and all liabilities
with respect to or resulting from any delay in paying or omission to pay such
taxes.

6. Execution in Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any
number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts,
each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of
which taken together shall constitute but one and the same agreement. Delivery
of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Amendment by telecopier
shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this
Amendment .

7. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by, and construed and
enforced in accordance with, the internal laws of the State of New York
(including Section 5-1401 of the General Obligations Law of the State of New
York), without

giving effect to any provisions thereof relating to conflicts of law.
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to
be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, as of the

date first above written.

ACTUANT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz
By: Terence M. Braatz
Title: Treasurer



AVALON CAPITAL LTD.

By: INVESCO Senior Secured
Management, Inc.
As Portfolio Advisor

By: /s/ Gregory Stoeckle
Name: Gregory Stoeckle
Title: Authorized Signatory

AVALON CAPITAL LTD. 2

By: INVESCO Senior Secured
Management, Inc.
As Portfolio Advisor

By: /s/ Gregory Stoeckle
Name: Gregory Stoeckle
Title: Authorized Signatory

Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicago)
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Jenny A. Gilpin
Name: Jenny A. Gilpin
Title: First Vice President

Black Diamond CLO 2000-1 Ltd.
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/
Name :
Title:

CERES II FINANCE LTD.

By: INVESCO Senior Secured
Management, Inc.

As Sub-Managing Agent (Financial)

By: /s/ Gregory Stoeckle
Name: Gregory Stoeckle
Title: Authorized Signatory

CREDIT INDUSTRIEL ET
COMMERCIAL

as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Brian O'Leary

Name: Brian O'Leary
Title: Vice President
Name: Anthony Rock

Title: Vice President

CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON
as one of the Lenders

By: /s/ David W. Kratovil
Name: David W. Kratovil
Title: Director

By: /s/ Lalita Advani
Name: Lalita Advani
Title: Assistant Vice
President

Firstar Bank, N.A.
as one of the Lenders
(please type)



By: /s/ Caroline V. Krider
Name: Caroline V. Krider
Title: Vice President

Fleet National Bank
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Richard D Briggs, Jr.
Name: Richard D. Briggs, Jr.
Title: Director

Fremont Investment & Loan
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Kannika Viravan
Name: Kannika Viravan
Title: Vice President

Harris Bank and Trust Company
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/

ING (U.S.) CAPITAL LLC
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Bill Redmond
Name: William B. Redmond
Title: Vice President

J.H. WHITNEY MARKET VALUE
FUND, L.P.

By: Whitney Market Value GP,
LLC, General Partner, as one
of the Lenders

By: /s/ Michael B. DeFlorio
Michael B. DeFlorio, Managing
Director

KZH CNC LLC
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Susan Lee
Name: Susan Lee
Title: Authorized Agent

LaSalle Bank National
Association
as one of the Lenders

By: /s/ James A. Meyer
James A. Meyer
Senior Vice President

M&I Marshall & Ilsley Bank
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ James E. Miller

Name: James E. Miller
Title: Vice President

By: /s/ Gina A. Peter
Name: Gina A. Peter
Title: Senior Vice President

The Mitsubishi Trust and
Banking Corporation
as one of the Lenders



(please type)

By: /s/ Toshihiro Hayashi
Name: Toshihiro Hayashi
Title: Senior Vice President

National City
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ John Platek
Name: John Platek
Title: Account Officer

NATIONWIDE LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Thomas S. Leggett
Name: Thomas S. Leggett
Title: Investment Officer

SIERRA CLO-I
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ John M. Casparian
Name: John M. Casparian
Title: Chief Operating
Officer, Centre Pacific LLP
(Manager)

U.S. Bank National Association
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Alan Holman
Name: Alan Holman
Title: Vice President

VAN KAMPEN

PRIME RATE INCOME TRUST
By: Van Kampen Investment
Advisory Corp.

as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Darvin D. Pierce
Name: Darvin D. Pierce
Title: Principal

VAN KAMPEN

SENIOR INCOME TRUST

By: Van Kampen Investment
Advisory Corp.

as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Darvin D. Pierce

Name: Darvin D. Pierce
Title: Principal

Wachovia Bank, N.A.
as one of the Lenders

By: /s/ Bradford L. Watkins

Name: Bradford L. Watkins
Title: Vice President

WINGED FOOT FUNDING TRUST
as one of the Lenders
(please type)

By: /s/ Ann E. Morris

Name: Ann E. Morris
Title: Authorized Agent






RECEIVABLES SALE AGREEMENT

DATED AS OF MAY 30, 2001

among

ACTUANT CORPORATION, DEL CITY WIRE CO., INC., GB TOOLS AND
SUPPLIES, INC., VERSA TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND
ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, L.P.,

As Originators,

and

ACTUANT RECEIVABLES CORPORATION,
As Buyer
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Schedule A Documents to Be Delivered to Buyer Prior to the Initial
Purchase

iii
RECEIVABLES SALE AGREEMENT

THIS RECEIVABLES SALE AGREEMENT, dated as of May 30, 2001, is by and
among Actuant Corporation, a Wisconsin corporation ("Parent"), Del City Wire
Co., Inc., an Oklahoma corporation, GB Tools and Supplies, Inc., a Wisconsin
corporation, Versa Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Engineered
Solutions, L.P., an Indiana limited partnership (each of the foregoing, an
"Originator"™ and collectively, the "Originators"), and Actuant Receivables
Corporation, a Nevada corporation ("Buyer"). Unless defined elsewhere herein,
capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to
such terms in Exhibit I hereto (or, if not defined in Exhibit I hereto, the

meaning assigned to such term in Exhibit I to the Purchase Agreement).
PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS

Each of the Originators now owns, and from time to time hereafter will
own, Receivables. Each of the Originators wishes to sell and assign to
Buyer, and Buyer wishes to purchase from each Originator, all of such
Originator's right, title and interest in and to its Receivables, together
with the Related Security and Collections with respect thereto.

Each of the Originators and Buyer intend the transactions contemplated
hereby to be true sales to Buyer by such Originator of the Receivables
originated by it, providing Buyer with the full benefits of ownership of
such Receivables, and none of the Originators nor Buyer intends these
transactions to be, or for any purpose to be characterized as, loans from
Buyer to such Originator.

Following the purchase of Receivables from each Originator, Buyer will
sell undivided interests therein and in the associated Related Security and
Collections pursuant to that certain Receivables Purchase Agreement dated
as of May 30, 2001 (as the same may from time to time hereafter be amended,
supplemented, restated or otherwise modified, the "Purchase Agreement")
among Buyer, Parent, as initial Servicer, Blue Ridge Asset Funding
Corporation ("Blue Ridge"), and Wachovia Bank, N.A. or any successor agent
appointed pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, as agent (in
such capacity, the "Agent").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the
mutual agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
AMOUNTS AND TERMS OF THE PURCHASE

Section 1.1 Initial Contribution of Receivables. On the date
hereof, Parent does hereby contribute, assign, transfer, set-over and otherwise
convey to Buyer, and Buyer does hereby accept from Parent, in exchange for 100
shares of Buyer's common stock, Receivables originated by Parent and existing as
of the close of business on the Business Day immediately prior to the date
hereof (the "Initial Cutoff Date") having an aggregate Outstanding Balance of
$3,372,244 (the "Initial Contributed Receivables"), together with all Related
Security relating thereto and all Collections thereof.

Section 1.2 Purchase of Receivables.

(a) Effective on the date hereof, in consideration for the
Purchase Price paid to each Originator and upon the terms and subject
to the conditions set forth herein, each Originator does hereby sell,
assign, transfer, set-over and otherwise convey to Buyer, without
recourse (except to the extent expressly provided herein), and Buyer
does hereby purchase from such Originator, all of such Originator's
right, title and interest in and to all Receivables originated by such
Originator and existing as of the close of business on the Initial
Cutoff Date (other than the Initial Contributed Receivables) and all
Receivables thereafter originated by such Originator through and
including the Termination Date, together, in each case, with all
Related Security relating thereto and all Collections thereof. In
accordance with the preceding sentence, on the date hereof Buyer shall
acquire all of each Originator's right, title and interest in and to
all Receivables existing as of the Initial Cutoff Date (other than the
Initial Contributed Receivables) and thereafter arising through and
including the Termination Date, together with all Related Security
relating thereto and all Collections thereof. Buyer shall be obligated



to pay the Purchase Price for the Receivables purchased hereunder from
each Originator in accordance with Section 1.3.

(b) On or before each Monthly Reporting Date, each
Originator shall (or shall require the Servicer to) deliver to Buyer a
report in substantially the form of Exhibit VII hereto (each such
report being herein called a "Purchase Report") with respect to the
Receivables sold by such Originator to Buyer during the Settlement
Period then most recently ended. In addition to, and not in limitation
of, the foregoing, in connection with the payment of the Purchase
Price for any Receivables purchased hereunder, Buyer may request that
the applicable Originator deliver, and such Originator shall deliver,
such approvals, opinions, information or documents as Buyer may
reasonably request.

(c) It is the intention of the parties hereto that each
Purchase of Receivables from an Originator made hereunder shall
constitute a sale, which sale

is absolute and irrevocable and provides Buyer with the full benefits
of ownership of the Receivables originated by such Originator. Except
for the Purchase Price Credits owed to such Originator pursuant to
Section 1.4, the sale of Receivables hereunder by each Originator is
made without recourse to such Originator; provided, however, that (i)
such Originator shall be liable to Buyer for all representations,
warranties, covenants and indemnities made by such Originator pursuant
to the terms of the Transaction Documents to which such Originator is
a party, and (ii) such sale does not constitute and is not intended to
result in an assumption by Buyer or any assignee thereof of any
obligation of such Originator or any other Person arising in
connection with the Receivables, the related Contracts and/or other
Related Security or any other obligations of such Originator. In view
of the intention of the parties hereto that each Purchase of
Receivables made hereunder shall constitute a sale of such Receivables
rather than loans secured thereby, each Originator agrees that it
will, on or prior to the date hereof and in accordance with Section

reports regarding the Receivables originated by it with a legend
acceptable to Buyer and to the Agent (as Buyer's assignee), evidencing
that Buyer has purchased such Receivables as provided in this
Agreement and to note in its financial statements that its Receivables
have been sold to Buyer. Upon the request of Buyer or the Agent (as
Buyer's assignee), each Originator will execute and file such
financing or continuation statements, or amendments thereto or
assignments thereof, and such other instruments or notices, as may be
necessary or appropriate to perfect and maintain the perfection of
Buyer's ownership interest in the Receivables originated by such
Originator and the Related Security and Collections with respect
thereto, or as Buyer or the Agent (as Buyer's assignee) may reasonably
request.

Section 1.3 Payment for the Purchases.

(a) The Purchase Price for the Purchase from each
Originator of its Receivables in existence as of the close of business
on the Initial Cutoff Date (other than the Initial Contributed
Receivables) shall be payable in full by Buyer to such Originator on
the date hereof, and shall be paid to such Originator in the following
manner:

(1) by delivery of immediately available funds, to
the extent of funds made available to Buyer in connection with
its subsequent sale of an interest in such Receivables to the
Purchasers under the Purchase Agreement; provided that a
portion of such funds shall be offset by amounts owed by
Parent to Buyer on account of the issuance of equity having a
total value of not less than the Required Capital Amount, and

(ii) the balance, by delivery of the proceeds of a
subordinated revolving loan from such Originator to Buyer (a
"Subordinated Loan") in

an amount not to exceed the least of (A) the remaining unpaid
portion of such Purchase Price, (B) the maximum Subordinated Loan
that could be borrowed without rendering Buyer's Net Worth less
than the Required Capital Amount, and (C) fifteen percent (15%)



of such Purchase Price. Each Originator is hereby authorized by
Buyer to endorse on the schedule attached to its Subordinated
Note an appropriate notation evidencing the date and amount of
each advance thereunder, as well as the date of each payment with
respect thereto, provided that the failure to make such notation
shall not affect any obligation of Buyer thereunder.

The Purchase Price for each Receivable coming into existence after the Initial
Cutoff Date shall be due and owing in full by Buyer to the applicable Originator
or its designee on the date each such Receivable came into existence (except
that Buyer may, with respect to any such Purchase Price, offset against such
Purchase Price any amounts owed by such Originator to Buyer hereunder and which
have become due but remain unpaid) and shall be paid to such Originator in the
manner provided in the following paragraphs (b), (c) and (d).

(b) With respect to any Receivables coming into existence after
the Initial Cutoff Date, on each Settlement Date, Buyer shall pay the
applicable Originator the Purchase Price therefor in accordance with
Section 1.3(d) and in the following manner:

first, by delivery to the applicable Originator or its designee
of immediately available funds, to the extent of funds available to Buyer
from its subsequent sale of an interest in all of the Receivables to the
Agent for the benefit of the Purchasers under the Purchase Agreement or
other cash on hand;

second, by delivery to the applicable Originator or its designee
of the proceeds of a Subordinated Loan, provided that the making of any
such Subordinated Loan shall be subject to the provisions set forth in
Section 1.3(a) (ii); and

third, solely in the case of Receivables originated by Parent,
unless the Termination Date has occurred in accordance with this Agreement,
by accepting a contribution to its capital in an amount equal to the
remaining unpaid balance of such Purchase Price.

Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 1.3(a) (ii), each Originator
irrevocably agrees to advance each Subordinated Loan requested by Buyer on or
prior to the Termination Date. The Subordinated Loans owing to each Originator
shall be evidenced by, and shall be payable in accordance with the terms and
provisions of its Subordinated Note and shall be payable solely from funds which
Buyer is not required under the Purchase Agreement to set aside for the benefit
of, or otherwise pay over to, the Purchasers.

(c) From and after the Termination Date, (i) no Originator shall
be obligated to (but may, at its option) sell Receivables to Buyer, or
(ii) Parent shall

not be obligated to (but may, at its option) contribute Receivables to
Buyer's capital pursuant to clause third of Section 1.3(b).

(d) Although the Purchase Price for each Receivable coming
into existence after the Initial Cutoff Date shall be due and payable
in full by Buyer to the applicable Originator on the date such
Receivable came into existence, settlement of the Purchase Price
between Buyer and such Originator shall be effected on a monthly basis
on Settlement Dates with respect to all Receivables originated by such
Originator during the same Calculation Period and based on the
information contained in the Purchase Report delivered by such
Originator for the Calculation Period then most recently ended.
Although settlement shall be effected on Settlement Dates, increases
or decreases in the amount owing under the Subordinated Note made
pursuant to Section 1.3 and any contribution of capital by Parent to

Buyer made pursuant to Section 1.3 (b) shall be deemed to have occurred
and shall be effective as of the last Business Day of the Calculation
Period to which such settlement relates.

Section 1.4 Purchase Price Credit Adjustments. If on any day:

(a) the Outstanding Balance of a Receivable purchased from
any Originator is:

(1) reduced as a result of any defective or rejected
or returned goods or services, any discount or any adjustment or
otherwise by such Originator (other than as a result of such
Receivable becoming a Defaulted Receivable or to reflect cash



Collections on account of such Receivable),

(11) reduced or canceled as a result of a setoff in
respect of any claim by any Person (whether such claim arises out
of the same or a related transaction or an unrelated
transaction), or

(b) any of the representations and warranties set forth in
Sections 2.1(h), (i), (3), (1), (xr), (s), (t), (u), the second

sentence of Section 2.1(g) hereof and the last clause (relating to

bulk sales laws) of Section 2.1 (c) are not true when made or deemed

made with respect to any Receivable,

then, in such event, Buyer shall be entitled to a credit (each, a "Purchase
Price Credit") against the Purchase Price otherwise payable to the applicable
Originator hereunder equal to the Outstanding Balance of such Receivable
(calculated before giving effect to the applicable reduction or cancellation).
If such Purchase Price Credit exceeds the Original Balance of the Receivables
originated by the applicable Originator on any day, such Originator shall pay
the remaining amount of such Purchase Price Credit in cash immediately, provided
that if the Termination Date has not occurred, such Originator shall be allowed
to deduct the remaining amount of such Purchase Price Credit from any
indebtedness owed to it under its Subordinated Note.

Section 1.5 Payments and Computations, Etc. All amounts to be paid
or deposited by Buyer hereunder shall be paid or deposited in accordance with
the terms hereof on the day when due in immediately available funds to the
account of the applicable Originator designated from time to time by such
Originator or as otherwise directed by such Originator. In the event that any
payment owed by any Person hereunder becomes due on a day that is not a Business
Day, then such payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day. If any
Person fails to pay any amount hereunder when due, such Person agrees to pay, on
demand, the Default Fee in respect thereof until paid in full; provided,
however, that such Default Fee shall not at any time exceed the maximum rate
permitted by applicable law. All computations of interest payable hereunder
shall be made on the basis of a year of 360 days for the actual number of days
(including the first but excluding the last day) elapsed.

Section 1.6 License of Software.

(a) To the extent that any software used by any Originator to
account for the Receivables originated by it is non-transferable, such
Originator hereby grants to each of Buyer, the Agent and the Servicer
an irrevocable, non-exclusive license to use, without royalty or
payment of any kind, all such software used by such Originator to
account for such Receivables, to the extent necessary to administer
such Receivables, whether such software is owned by such Originator or
is owned by others and used by such Originator under license
agreements with respect thereto, provided that should the consent of
any licensor of such software be required for the grant of the license
described herein, to be effective, such Originator hereby agrees that
upon the request of Buyer (or Buyer's assignee), such Originator will
use its reasonable efforts to obtain the consent of such third-party
licensor. The license granted hereby shall be irrevocable until the
later to occur of (i) indefeasible payment in full of the Aggregate
Unpaids (as defined in the Purchase Agreement), and (ii) the date each
of this Agreement and the Purchase Agreement terminates in accordance
with its terms.

(b) Each Originator (i) shall take such action requested by
Buyer and/or the Agent (as Buyer's assignee), from time to time
hereafter, that may be necessary or appropriate to ensure that Buyer
and its assigns under the Purchase Agreement have an enforceable
ownership interest in the Records relating to the Receivables
purchased from such Originator hereunder, and (ii) shall use its
reasonable efforts to ensure that Buyer, the Agent and the Servicer
each has an enforceable right (whether by license or sublicense or
otherwise) to use all of the computer software used to account for
such Receivables and/or to recreate such Records.

Section 1.7 Characterization. 1If, notwithstanding the intention of

the parties expressed in Section 1.2(c), any sale or contribution by an
Originator to Buyer of Receivables hereunder shall be characterized as a secured
loan and not a sale or such sale shall for any reason be ineffective or
unenforceable, then this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a security



agreement under the UCC and other applicable law. For this purpose and without
being in derogation of the parties' intention that the sale of Receivables by
each Originator hereunder shall constitute a true sale thereof, such Originator
hereby grants to Buyer a duly perfected security interest in all of such
Originator's right, title and interest in, to and under all Receivables of such
Originator which are now existing or hereafter arising, all Collections and
Related Security with respect thereto, all other rights and payments relating to
such Receivables and all proceeds of the foregoing to secure the prompt and
complete payment of a loan deemed to have been made in an amount equal to the
Purchase Price of the Receivables purchased from such Originator together with
all other obligations of such Originator hereunder, which security interest
shall be prior to all other Adverse Claims thereto. Buyer and its assigns shall
have, in addition to the rights and remedies which they may have under this
Agreement, all other rights and remedies provided to a secured creditor under
the UCC and other applicable law, which rights and remedies shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1 Representations and Warranties of Originators. Each
Originator hereby represents and warrants to Buyer on the date hereof, on the
date of the Purchase from such Originator hereunder and on each date that any
Receivable is originated by such Originator on or after the date of such
Purchase, that:

(a) Organization; Powers. Such Originator (a) is duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing or active status under the laws
of the jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has all requisite power and
authority to own its Property and to carry on its business as now conducted and
as proposed to be conducted, (c) is qualified to do business in, and is in good
standing in, every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except
where the failure so to qualify could not reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect, and (d) has the power and authority to execute, deliver
and perform its obligations under each of the Transaction Documents and each
other agreement or instrument contemplated hereby to which it is or will be a
party.

(b) Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by
such Originator of each of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party (a)
have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate or partnership and, if
required, stockholder or partner action and (b) will not (i) wviolate (A) any
provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the Organizational
Documents of such Originator, (B) any order of any Governmental Authority or (C)
any provision of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which such
Originator is a party or by which any of them or any of their Property is or may
be bound, (ii) be in conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute (alone
or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or give rise to any
right to accelerate or to require the prepayment, repurchase or redemption of
any obligation under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (iii)
result in the creation or imposition of any Adverse Claim upon or with respect
to any

Property now owned or hereafter acquired by such Originator (other than any
Adverse Claim created hereunder or under the other Transaction Documents) .

(c) No Conflict. The execution and delivery by such Originator of
this Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which it is a party, and
the performance of its obligations hereunder and thereunder do not contravene or
violate (i) its Organizational Documents, (ii) any law, rule or regulation
applicable to it, (iii) any restrictions under any agreement, contract or
instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its property is
bound, or (iv) any order, writ, judgment, award, injunction or decree binding on
or affecting it or its property, and do not result in the creation or imposition
of any Adverse Claim on assets of such Originator or its Subsidiaries (except as
created hereunder) except, in any case, where such contravention or violation
could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and no
transaction contemplated hereby requires compliance with any bulk sales act or
similar law.

(d) Governmental Approvals. Other than the filing of the
financing statements required hereunder, no action, consent or approval of,
registration or filing with or any other action by any Governmental Authority is
or will be required in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.

(e) Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.1 (e), there



are not any actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before
any Governmental Authority now pending or, to the knowledge of such Originator,
threatened against or affecting such Originator or any of its Subsidiaries or
any business, Property or rights of any such Person (i) that involve any
Transaction Document or the transactions contemplated thereby or (ii) as to
which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse determination and that, if
adversely determined, could reasonably be expected, individually or in the
aggregate, to result in a Material Adverse Effect

(f) Enforceability. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered by such Originator and constitutes, and each other Transaction
Document to which such Originator is a party when executed and delivered by the
such Originator will constitute, a legal, valid and binding obligation of such
Originator enforceable against such Originator in accordance with its terms,
except as such enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization or other similar laws relating to or limiting creditors' rights
generally and by general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement
is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law).

(g) Accuracy of Information. ©No information, report, financial
statement, exhibit or schedule furnished by or on behalf of such Originator to
the Buyer or the Agent in connection with the negotiation of any Transaction
Document or included therein or delivered pursuant thereto contained, contains
or will contain any material misstatement of fact or omitted, omits or will omit
to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were, are or will be made, not
misleading as of

the date such information is dated or certified; provided that to the extent any
such information, report, financial statement, exhibit or schedule was based
upon or constitutes a forecast or projection, such Originator represents only
that it acted in good faith and utilized reasonable assumptions and due care in
the preparation of such information, report, financial statement, exhibit or
schedule.

(h) Use of Proceeds. ©No portion of any Purchase Price payment
hereunder will be used for a purpose that violates, or would be inconsistent
with, any law, rule or regulation applicable to such Originator including,
without limitation, Regulation T, U or X of the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System.

(i) Good Title. Immediately prior to the Purchase from such
Originator hereunder and upon the creation of each Receivable originated by such
Originator after the Initial Cut-Off Date, such Originator (i) is the legal and
beneficial owner of such Receivables and (ii) is the legal and beneficial owner
of the Related Security with respect thereto or possesses a valid and perfected
security interest therein, in each case, free and clear of any Adverse Claim,
except as created by the Transaction Documents. There have been duly filed all
financing statements or other similar instruments or documents necessary under
the UCC (or any comparable law) of all appropriate jurisdictions to perfect such
Originator's ownership interest in each such Receivable, its Collections and the
Related Security.

(j) Perfection. This Agreement, together with the filing of the
financing statements contemplated hereby, is effective to transfer to Buyer (and
Buyer shall acquire from such Originator) (i) legal and equitable title to, with
the right to sell and encumber each Receivable originated by such Originator,
whether now existing and hereafter arising, together with the Collections with
respect thereto, and (ii) all of such Originator's right, title and interest in
the Related Security associated with each such Receivable, in each case, free
and clear of any Adverse Claim, except as created by the Transactions Documents.
There have been duly filed all financing statements or other similar instruments
or documents necessary under the UCC (or any comparable law) of all appropriate
jurisdictions to perfect Buyer's ownership interest in such Receivables, the
Related Security and the Collections. Originator's jurisdiction of organization
is a jurisdiction whose law generally requires information concerning the
existence of a nonpossessory security interest to be made generally available in
a filing, record or registration system as a condition or result of such a
security interest's obtaining priority over the rights of a lien creditor which
respect to collateral.

(k) Places of Business and Locations of Records. The chief
executive office of such Originator and the offices where it keeps all of its
Records are located at the address(es) listed on Exhibit II or such other

locations of which Buyer has been notified in accordance with Section 4.2 (a) in



jurisdictions where all action required by Section 4.2 (a) has been taken and
completed. Such Originator's Federal Employer Identification Number is correctly
set forth on Exhibit II.

(1) Collections. The conditions and requirements set forth in

and addresses of all Collection Banks, together with the account numbers of the
Collection Accounts of such Originator at each Collection Bank and the post
office box number of each Lock-Box, are listed on Exhibit III. Such Originator
has not granted any Person, other than Buyer (and its assigns) dominion and
control of any Lock-Box or Collection Account, or the right to take dominion and
control of any such Lock-Box or Collection Account at a future time or upon the
occurrence of a future event.

(m) Material Adverse Effect. Since August 31, 2000, no event has

occurred that would have a Material Adverse Effect.

(n) Names. The name in which such Originator has executed this
Agreement is identical to the name of such Originator as indicated on the public
record of its state of organization which shows such Originator to have been
organized. In the past five (5) years, such Originator has not used any
corporate or partnership names, trade names or assumed names other than the name
in which it has executed this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit ITI.

(o) Ownership of Buyer. Parent owns, directly or indirectly,
100% of the issued and outstanding equity interests of Buyer. Such equity
interests are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and there are no
options, warrants or other rights to acquire securities of Buyer.

(p) Not a Holding Company or an Investment Company. Such
Originator is not a "holding company" or a "subsidiary holding company" of a
"holding company" within the meaning of the Public Utility Holding Company Act
of 1935, as amended, or any successor statute. Such Originator is not an
"investment company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended, or any successor statute.

(gq) Compliance with Law. Such Originator has complied in all
respects with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, writs, judgments,
injunctions, decrees or awards to which it may be subject, except where the
failure to so comply could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect. Each Receivable, together with the Contract related thereto, does not
contravene any laws, rules or regulations applicable thereto (including, without
limitation, laws, rules and regulations relating to truth in lending, fair
credit billing, fair credit reporting, equal credit opportunity, fair debt
collection practices and privacy), and no part of such Contract is in violation
of any such law, rule or regulation, except where such contravention or
violation could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(r) Compliance with Credit and Collection Policy. Such
Originator has complied in all material respects with its Credit and Collection
Policy with regard to each Receivable originated by it and the related Contract,
and has not made any material change to such Credit and Collection Policy,
except such material change as to which Buyer (or its assigns) has been notified
in accordance with Section 4.1 (a) (vii).
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(s) Payments to such Originator. With respect to each Receivable
originated by such Originator and sold to Buyer hereunder, the Purchase Price
received by such Originator constitutes reasonably equivalent value in
consideration therefor. No transfer hereunder by such Originator of any
Receivable originated by such Originator is or may be voidable under any section
of the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978 (11 U.S.C. (S) (S) 101 et seq.), as amended.

(t) Enforceability of Contracts. Each Contract with respect to each
Receivable is effective to create, and has created, a legal, valid and binding
obligation of the related Obligor to pay the Outstanding Balance of the
Receivable created thereunder and any accrued interest thereon, enforceable



against the Obligor in accordance with its terms, except as such enforcement may
be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar
laws relating to or limiting creditors' rights generally and by general
principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a
proceeding in equity or at law).

(u) Eligible Receivables. Each Receivable reflected in any Purchase
Report as an Eligible Receivable was an Eligible Receivable on the date of its
acquisition by Buyer hereunder.

(v) Accounting. The manner in which such Originator accounts for the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement in its financial statements does not
jeopardize the characterization of the transactions contemplated herein as being
true sales.

ARTICLE III
CONDITIONS OF PURCHASE

Section 3.1 Conditions Precedent to Purchase. The Purchases under this
Agreement is subject to the conditions precedent that (a) Buyer shall have been
capitalized with the Initial Contributed Receivables, (b) Buyer shall have
received on or before the date of such purchase those documents listed on

Purchase Agreement shall have been satisfied or waived in accordance with the
terms thereof.

Section 3.2 Conditions Precedent to Subsequent Payments. Buyer's
obligation to pay for Receivables coming into existence after the Initial Cutoff
Date shall be subject to the further conditions precedent that: (a) the Facility
Termination Date shall not have occurred under the Purchase Agreement; (b) Buyer
(or its assigns) shall have received such other approvals, opinions or documents
as it may reasonably request and (c) on the date such Receivable came into
existence, the following statements shall be true (and acceptance of the
proceeds of any payment for such Receivable shall be deemed a representation and
warranty by such Originator that such statements are then true):

(i) the representations and warranties set forth in Article

IT are true and correct on and as of the date such Receivable came

into existence as though made on and as of such date; and
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(ii) no event has occurred and is continuing that will
constitute a Termination Event or an Unmatured Termination Event.

Notwithstanding the foregoing conditions precedent, upon payment of the Purchase
Price for any Receivable (whether by payment of cash, through an increase in the
amounts outstanding under the Subordinated Note, by offset of amounts owed to
Buyer and/or by offset of capital contributions), title to such Receivable and
the Related Security and Collections with respect thereto shall vest in Buyer,
whether or not the conditions precedent to Buyer's obligation to pay for such
Receivable were in fact satisfied. The failure of such Originator to satisfy
any of the foregoing conditions precedent, however, shall give rise to a right
of Buyer to rescind the related purchase and direct such Originator to pay to
Buyer an amount equal to the Purchase Price payment that shall have been made
with respect to any Receivables related thereto.

ARTICLE IV
COVENANTS

Section 4.1 Affirmative Covenants of Originators. Until the date on
which this Agreement terminates in accordance with its terms, each Originator
hereby covenants as set forth below:

(a) Financial Reporting. Such Originator will maintain, for
itself and each of its Subsidiaries, a system of accounting established and
administered in accordance with GAAP, and furnish to Buyer (or its assigns):

(i) Annual Reporting. Within 90 days after the end of
each fiscal year of Parent, Parent's consolidated balance sheet and related
statements of income and cash flows showing the financial condition of Parent
and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the close of such fiscal year and the
results of their operations during such year, all in reasonable detail and
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or other independent public accountants of
recognized national standing and accompanied by an opinion of such accountants



(which shall not be qualified in any material respect) to the effect that such
consolidated financial statements fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition and results of operations of Parent and its Subsidiaries on
a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, setting forth
in each case in comparative form the corresponding statements for the preceding
fiscal year;

(ii) Quarterly Reporting. Within 45 days after the end
of each of the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year of Parent,
Parent's consolidated balance sheet and related statements of income and cash
flows showing the financial condition of Parent and its consolidated
Subsidiaries as of the close of such fiscal quarter and the results of their
operations during such fiscal quarter and the then elapsed portion of the fiscal
year, all in reasonable detail and certified by one of its Financial Officers as
fairly presenting in all material respects the financial condition and results
of operations of Parent and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, subject to normal year-end
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audit adjustments, setting forth in each case in comparative form the
corresponding statements for the corresponding period in the preceding fiscal
year;

(11d) Compliance Certificate. Together with the financial
statements required hereunder, a compliance certificate in substantially the
form of Exhibit IV signed by one of such Originator's Financial Officers and
dated the date of such annual financial statement or such quarterly financial
statement, as the case may be.

(iv) Shareholders Statements and Reports. Promptly upon the
furnishing thereof to the shareholders of such Originator, copies of all
financial statements, reports and proxy statements so furnished.

(v) S.E.C. Filings. Promptly after the same become publicly
available, copies of all periodic and other reports, proxy statements and other
materials filed by Parent or any Subsidiary with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or any Governmental Authority succeeding to any or all of the
functions of said Commission, or with any national securities exchange, or
distributed to holders of its Indebtedness pursuant to the terms of the
documentation governing such Indebtedness (or any trustee, agent or other
representative therefor), as the case may be.

(vi) Copies of Notices. Promptly upon its receipt of any
notice, request for consent, financial statements, certification, report or
other communication under or in connection with any Transaction Document from
any Person other than Buyer, the Agent or Blue Ridge, copies of the same.

(vii) Change in Credit and Collection Policy. At least thirty
(30) days prior to the effectiveness of any material change in or material
amendment to such Originator's Credit and Collection Policy, a copy of its
Credit and Collection Policy then in effect and a notice (A) indicating such
proposed change or amendment ,and (B) if such proposed change or amendment would
be reasonably likely to adversely affect the collectibility of the Receivables
or decrease the credit quality of any newly created Receivables, requesting
Buyer's (and the Agent's, as Buyer's assignee) consent thereto.

(viii) Other Information. Promptly, from time to time, such
other information, documents, records or reports relating to the Receivables
originated by such Originator or the condition or operations, financial or
otherwise, of such Originator as Buyer (or its assigns) may from time to time
reasonably request in order to protect the interests of Buyer (and its assigns)
under or as contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) Notices. Such Originator will notify Buyer (or its assigns) in
writing of any of the following promptly upon learning of the occurrence
thereof, describing the same and, if applicable, the steps being taken with
respect thereto:
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(1) Termination Events or Unmatured Termination Events. The
occurrence of each Termination Event and each Unmatured Termination Event, by a
statement of a Financial Officer of such Originator.



(11) Material Adverse Effect. The occurrence of any event or
condition that has had, or could reasonably be expected to have, a Material
Adverse Effect.

(iii) Defaults Under Other Agreements. The occurrence of an
event of default (as to which any notice period or cure period has expired
without cure) under any other financing arrangement involving a line of credit
or Indebtedness, in each case, of $1 million or more pursuant to which any
Originator is a debtor or an obligor.

(iv) ERISA Events. The occurrence of any ERISA Event.

(v) Downgrade of Parent. Any downgrade in the rating of any
Indebtedness of Parent by S&P or by Moody's, setting forth the Indebtedness
affected and the nature of such change.

(c) Compliance with Laws and Preservation of Existence. Such
Originator will comply in all respects with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, orders, writs, Jjudgments, injunctions, decrees or awards to which
it may be subject, except where the failure to so comply could not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Such Originator will preserve and
maintain its legal existence, rights, franchises and privileges in the
jurisdiction of its organization, and qualify and remain qualified in good
standing as a foreign entity in each jurisdiction where its business is
conducted, except where the failure to so qualify or remain in good standing
could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(d) Audits. Such Originator will furnish to Buyer (or its assigns)
from time to time such information with respect to it and the Receivables sold
by it as Buyer (or its assigns) may reasonably request. Such Originator will,
from time to time during regular business hours as requested by Buyer (or its
assigns), upon reasonable notice and at the sole cost of such Originator, permit
Buyer (or its assigns) or their respective agents or representatives, (i) to
examine and make copies of and abstracts from all Records in the possession or
under the control of such Originator relating to the Receivables and the Related
Security, including, without limitation, the related Contracts, and (ii) to
visit the offices and properties of such Originator for the purpose of examining
such materials described in clause (i) above, and to discuss matters relating to
such Originator's financial condition or the Receivables and the Related
Security or such Originator's performance under any of the Transaction Documents
or such Originator's performance under the Contracts and, in each case, with any
of the officers or employees of such Originator having knowledge of such matters
(each of the foregoing examinations and visits, a "Review"); provided, however,
that, so long as no Amortization Event (under and as defined in the Purchase
Agreement) has occurred and is continuing: (A) the Originators, collectively,
shall only be responsible for the reasonable costs and expenses of one (1)
Review in any one calendar year, and (B) the Agent (as Buyer's assignee) will
not request more than four (4) Reviews in any one calendar year.
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(e) Keeping and Marking of Records and Books.

(1) Such Originator will maintain and implement
administrative and operating procedures (including, without
limitation, an ability to recreate records evidencing Receivables
in the event of the destruction of the originals thereof), and
keep and maintain all documents, books, records and other
information reasonably necessary or advisable for the collection
of all Receivables (including, without limitation, records
adequate to permit the immediate identification of each new
Receivable and all Collections of and adjustments to each
existing Receivable). Such Originator will give Buyer (or its
assigns) notice of any material change in the administrative and
operating procedures referred to in the previous sentence.

(ii) Such Originator will (A) mark its standard monthly
accounts receivable aging reports regarding the Receivables
originated by it with a legend, acceptable to Buyer (or its
assigns), describing Buyer's ownership interests in the
Receivables and (B) upon the request of Buyer (or its assigns)
following the occurrence of a Termination Event: (x) mark each
Contract with a legend describing Buyer's ownership interests in
the Receivables originated by such Originator and further
describing the Receivable Interests of the Agent (on behalf of
the Purchasers) and (y) deliver to Buyer (or its assigns) all
Contracts (including, without limitation, all multiple originals
of any such Contract) relating to such Receivables.



(f) Compliance with Contracts and Credit and Collection Policy.
Such Originator will timely and fully (i) perform and comply with all
provisions, covenants and other promises required to be observed by it under the
Contracts related to the Receivables originated by it, and (ii) comply in all
respects with its Credit and Collection Policy in regard to each such Receivable
and the related Contract.

(g) Ownership. Such Originator will take all necessary action
to establish and maintain, irrevocably in Buyer, (A) legal and equitable title
to the Receivables originated by such Originator and the Collections and (B) all
of such Originator's right, title and interest in the Related Security
associated with the Receivables originated by such Originator, in each case,
free and clear of any Adverse Claims other than Adverse Claims in favor of Buyer
(and its assigns) (including, without limitation, the filing of all financing
statements or other similar instruments or documents necessary under the UCC (or
any comparable law) of all appropriate jurisdictions to perfect Buyer's interest
in such Receivables, Related Security and Collections and such other action to
perfect, protect or more fully evidence the interest of Buyer as Buyer (or its
assigns) may reasonably request).

(h) Purchasers' Reliance. Such Originator acknowledges that the
Agent and the Purchasers are entering into the transactions contemplated by the
Purchase
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Agreement in reliance upon Buyer's identity as a legal entity that is separate
from such Originator and any Affiliates thereof. Therefore, from and after the
date of execution and delivery of this Agreement, such Originator will take all
reasonable steps including, without limitation, all steps that Buyer or any
assignee of Buyer may from time to time reasonably request to maintain Buyer's
identity as a separate legal entity and to make it manifest to third parties
that Buyer is an entity with assets and liabilities distinct from those of such
Originator and any Affiliates thereof and not just a division of such Originator
or any such Affiliate. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and in
addition to the other covenants set forth herein, such Originator (i) will not
hold itself out to third parties as liable for the debts of Buyer nor purport to
own any of the Receivables and other assets acquired by Buyer, (ii) will take
all other actions necessary on its part to ensure that Buyer is at all times in
compliance with the "separateness covenants" set forth in Section 7.1(i) of the
Purchase Agreement and (iii) will cause all Tax liabilities arising in
connection with the transactions contemplated herein or otherwise to be
allocated between such Originator and Buyer on an arm's-length basis and in a
manner consistent with the procedures set forth in U.S. Treasury Regulations

(S) (S)1.1502-33(d) and 1.1552-1.

(i) Collections. Such Originator will cause (1) all proceeds
from all Lock-Boxes to be directly deposited by a Collection Bank into a
Collection Account and (2) each Lock-Box and Collection Account to be subject at
all times to a Collection Account Agreement that is in full force and effect;
provided, however, that unless otherwise requested by Buyer (or the Agent as its
assignee), no Collection Account Agreement will be required with respect to any
Lock-Box or Collection Account at Bank of America, N.A. so long as the existing
Lock-Box and Collection Account at such bank are closed by September 15, 2001.
In the event any payments relating to Receivables are remitted directly to such
Originator or any Affiliate of such Originator, such Originator will remit (or
will cause all such payments to be remitted) directly to a Collection Bank and
deposited into a Collection Account within two (2) Business Days following
receipt thereof and, at all times prior to such remittance, such Originator will
itself hold or, if applicable, will cause such payments to be held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of Buyer and its assigns. Such Originator will transfer
exclusive ownership, dominion and control of each Lock-Box and Collection
Account to Buyer, free and clear of all Adverse Claims (including, without
limitation, that of Credit Suisse First Boston (or its successor) as collateral
agent) and, will not grant the right to take dominion and control of any Lock-
Box or Collection Account at a future time or upon the occurrence of a future
event to any Person, except to Buyer (or its assigns) as contemplated by this
Agreement and the Purchase Agreement.

(3) Taxes. Such Originator will file all Tax returns and
reports required by law to be filed by it and promptly pay all Taxes and
governmental charges at any time owing, except any such taxes which are not yet
delinquent or are being diligently contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings and for which adequate reserves in accordance with GAAP shall have
been set aside on its books. Such Originator will pay when due any Indemnified
Taxes payable in connection with the Receivables originated by it.
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Section 4.2 Negative Covenants of Originators. Until the date on
which this Agreement terminates in accordance with its terms, each Originator
hereby covenants that:

(a) Name Change, Offices and Records . Such Originator will not
change its (i) state of organization, (ii) name, (iii) identity or structure
(within the meaning of Article 9 of any applicable enactment of the UCC) or
relocate its chief executive office at any time while the location of its chief
executive office is relevant to perfection of Buyer's interest in the
Receivables or the associated Related Security and Collections or any office
where Records are kept unless it shall have: (i) given Buyer (and the Agent, as
its assignee) at least forty-five (45) days' prior written notice thereof and
(ii) delivered to the Agent (as Buyer's assignee) all financing statements,
instruments and other documents requested by the Agent in connection with such
change or relocation.

(b) Change in Payment Instructions to Obligors. Such Originator
will not add or terminate any bank as a Collection Bank, or make any change in
the instructions to Obligors regarding payments to be made to any Lock-Box or
Collection Account, unless Buyer (or its assigns) shall have received, at least
ten (10) days before the proposed effective date therefor, (i) written notice of
such addition, termination or change and evidence reasonably satisfactory to
Buyer (and the Agent, as its assignee) that all Adverse Claims to such Lock-Box
or Collection Account have been released and (ii) with respect to the addition
of a Collection Bank or a Collection Account or Lock-Box, an executed Collection
Account Agreement with respect to the new Collection Account or Lock-Box;
provided, however, that such Originator may make changes in instructions to
Obligors regarding payments if such new instructions require such Obligor to
make payments to another existing Collection Account.

(c) Modifications to Contracts and Credit and Collection Policy.
Such Originator will not make any change to its Credit and Collection Policy
that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the collectibility of the
Receivables originated by it or decrease the credit quality of any of its newly
created Receivables. Except as otherwise permitted in its capacity as Servicer
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, such Originator will not extend, amend or
otherwise modify the terms of any Receivable or any Contract related thereto
other than in accordance with its Credit and Collection Policy.

(d) Sales, Liens. Such Originator will not sell, assign (by
operation of law or otherwise) or otherwise dispose of, or grant any option with
respect to, or create or suffer to exist any Adverse Claim upon (including,
without limitation, the filing of any financing statement) or with respect to,
any Receivable, Related Security or Collections, or upon or with respect to any
Contract under which any Receivable arises, or any Lock-Box or Collection
Account, or assign any right to receive income with respect thereto (other than,
in each case, the creation of the interests therein in favor of Buyer provided
for herein), and such Originator will defend the right, title and interest of
Buyer in, to and under any of the foregoing property, against all claims of
third parties claiming through or under such Originator.
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(e) Accounting for Purchase. Such Originator will not, and will
not permit any Affiliate to, financially account (whether in financial
statements or otherwise) for the transactions contemplated hereby in any manner
other than the sale or other outright conveyance by such Originator to Buyer of
the Receivables originated by such Originator and the associated Related
Security or in any other respect account for or treat the transactions
contemplated hereby in any manner other than as a sale of such Receivables and
Related Security by such Originator to Buyer except to the extent that such
transactions are not recognized on account of consolidated financial reporting
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

ARTICLE V
TERMINATION EVENTS

Section 5.1 Termination Events. The occurrence of any one or more of

the following events shall constitute a Termination Event:

(a) Such Originator shall fail to make any payment or deposit
required hereunder within 5 Business Days after the same becomes due.

(b) Such Originator shall fail to perform or observe any term,
covenant or agreement hereunder (other than as referred to in clause
(i) of this paragraph (a)) or any other Transaction Document to which
it is a party and such failure shall continue for 20 consecutive days



after written notice of such failure.

(c) Any representation, warranty, certification or statement
made by such Originator in this Agreement, any other Transaction
Document or in any other document delivered pursuant hereto or thereto
shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made
or deemed made; provided that the materiality threshold in the
preceding clause shall not be applicable with respect to any
representation or warranty which itself contains a materiality
threshold and provided further, that any misrepresentation or
certification for which Buyer has actually received a Purchase Price
Credit shall not constitute a Termination Event hereunder.

(d) Parent or any Subsidiary shall (i) fail to pay any principal
or interest, regardless of amount, due in respect of any Indebtedness
in a principal amount in excess of $5,000,000, when and as the same
shall become due and payable, or (ii) fail to observe or perform any
other term, covenant, condition or agreement contained in any
agreement or instrument evidencing or governing any such Indebtedness
if the effect of any failure referred to in this clause (ii) is to
cause, or to permit the holder or holders of such Indebtedness or a
trustee on its or their behalf (with or without the giving of notice,
the lapse of time or both) to cause, such Indebtedness to become due
prior to its stated maturity.

(e) An Event of Bankruptcy shall occur with respect to any
Originator.
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(f) One or more judgments for the payment of money in an
aggregate amount in excess of $5,000,000 shall be rendered against
Parent, any Subsidiary or any combination thereof and the same shall
remain undischarged for a period of 30 consecutive days during which
execution shall not be effectively stayed, or any action shall be
legally taken by a judgment creditor to levy upon assets or properties
of Parent or any Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment.

(9) An ERISA Event shall have occurred that, when taken together
with all other such ERISA Events, could reasonably be expected to
result in liability of Parent and its ERISA Affiliates in an aggregate
amount exceeding $1,000,000.

(h) There shall have occurred a Change in Control.

Section 5.2 Remedies. Upon the occurrence and during the continuation
of a Termination Event, Buyer may take any of the following actions: (i) declare
the Termination Date to have occurred, whereupon the Termination Date shall
forthwith occur, without demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of
which are hereby expressly waived by each Originator; provided, however, that
upon the occurrence of a Termination Event described in Section 5.1(e), or of an
actual or deemed entry of an order for relief with respect to such Originator
under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, the Termination Date shall automatically
occur, without demand, protest or any notice of any kind, all of which are
hereby expressly waived by each Originator and (ii) to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law, declare that the Default Fee shall accrue with
respect to any amounts then due and owing by such Originator to Buyer. The
aforementioned rights and remedies shall be without limitation and shall be in
addition to all other rights and remedies of Buyer and its assigns otherwise
available under any other provision of this Agreement, by operation of law, at
equity or otherwise, all of which are hereby expressly preserved, including,
without limitation, all rights and remedies provided under the UCC, all of which
rights shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 6.1 Indemnities by Originators. Without limiting any other
rights that Buyer may have hereunder or under applicable law, each Originator
hereby agrees to indemnify (and pay upon demand to) Buyer and its assigns,
officers, directors, agents and employees (each an "Indemnified Party") from and
against any and all damages, losses, claims, Other Taxes, Indemnified Taxes,
liabilities, costs, expenses and for all other amounts payable, including
reasonable attorneys' fees (which attorneys may be employees of Buyer or any
such assign) and disbursements (all of the foregoing being collectively referred
to as "Indemnified Amounts") awarded against or incurred by any of them arising
out of or as a result of this Agreement or the acquisition, either directly or
indirectly, by Buyer of an interest in the Receivables originated by such
Originator, excluding, however:
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(a) Indemnified Amounts to the extent a final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction holds that such Indemnified Amounts resulted from
gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Indemnified Party
seeking indemnification;

(b) Indemnified Amounts to the extent the same includes losses in
respect of Receivables originated by such Originator that are uncollectible
on account of the insolvency, bankruptcy or lack of creditworthiness of the
related Obligor; or

(c) Excluded Taxes;

provided, however, that nothing contained in this sentence shall limit the
liability of such Originator or limit the recourse of Buyer to such Originator
for amounts otherwise specifically provided to be paid by such Originator under
the terms of this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing
indemnification, but subject in each case to clauses (a), (b) and (c) above,
each Originator shall indemnify Buyer for Indemnified Amounts relating to or
resulting from:

(1) any representation or warranty made by such Originator (or
any officers of such Originator) under or in connection with any Purchase
Report, this Agreement, any other Transaction Document or any other
information or report delivered by such Originator pursuant hereto or
thereto for which Buyer has not received a Purchase Price Credit that shall
have been false or incorrect when made or deemed made;

(ii) the failure by such Originator, to comply with any
applicable law, rule or regulation with respect to any Receivable or
Contract related thereto, or the nonconformity of any Receivable or
Contract included therein with any such applicable law, rule or regulation
or any failure of such Originator to keep or perform any of its
obligations, express or implied, with respect to any Contract;

(iii) any failure of such Originator to perform its duties,
covenants or other obligations in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement or any other Transaction Document;

(iv) any products liability, personal injury or damage, suit or
other similar claim arising out of or in connection with merchandise,
insurance or services that are the subject of any Contract or any
Receivable;

(v) any dispute, claim, offset or defense (other than
discharge in bankruptcy of the Obligor) of the Obligor to the payment of
any Receivable (including, without limitation, a defense based on such
Receivable or the related Contract not being a legal, valid and binding
obligation of such Obligor enforceable against it in accordance with its
terms), or any other claim resulting from the sale of the merchandise or
service
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related to such Receivable or the furnishing or failure to furnish such
merchandise or services;

(vi) the commingling of Collections of Receivables at any time
with other funds;

(vii) any investigation, litigation or proceeding related to or
arising from this Agreement or any other Transaction Document, the
transactions contemplated hereby, such Originator's use of the proceeds of
the Purchase from it hereunder, the ownership of the Receivables originated
by such Originator or any other investigation, litigation or proceeding
relating to such Originator in which any Indemnified Party becomes involved
as a result of any of the transactions contemplated hereby;

(viii) any inability to litigate any claim against any Obligor
in respect of any Receivable as a result of such Obligor being immune from
civil and commercial law and suit on the grounds of sovereignty or
otherwise from any legal action, suit or proceeding;

(ix) any Event of Bankruptcy with respect to any Originator;

(x) any failure to vest and maintain vested in Buyer, or to
transfer to Buyer, legal and equitable title to, and ownership of, the
Receivables originated by such Originator and the associated Collections,
and all of such Originator's right, title and interest in the Related
Security associated with such Receivables, in each case, free and clear of
any Adverse Claim;

(x1) the failure to have filed, or any delay in filing,
financing statements or other similar instruments or documents under the
UCC of any applicable jurisdiction or other applicable laws with respect to
any Receivable originated by such Originator, the Related Security and



Collections with respect thereto, and the proceeds of any thereof, whether
at the time of the Purchase from such Originator hereunder or at any
subsequent time;

(xii) any action or omission by such Originator which reduces
or impairs the rights of Buyer with respect to any Receivable or the value
of any such Receivable;

(xiii) any attempt by any Person to void the Purchase from such
Originator hereunder under statutory provisions or common law or equitable
action; and

(x1iv) the failure of any Receivable reflected as an Eligible
Receivable on any Purchase Report prepared by such Originator to be an
Eligible Receivable at the time acquired by Buyer.

21

Section 6.2 Other Costs and Expenses. Each Originator shall pay
to Buyer on demand all Other Taxes and other costs and out-of-pocket expenses in
connection with the preparation, execution, delivery and administration of this
Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby and the other documents to be
delivered hereunder. Each Originator shall pay to Buyer on demand any and all
costs and expenses of Buyer, if any, including reasonable counsel fees and
expenses in connection with the enforcement of this Agreement and the other
documents delivered hereunder and in connection with any restructuring or
workout of this Agreement or such documents, or the administration of this
Agreement following a Termination Event.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1 Waivers and Amendments.

(a) No failure or delay on the part of Buyer (or its assigns)
in exercising any power, right or remedy under this Agreement shall operate
as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such
power, right or remedy preclude any other further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other power, right or remedy. The rights and remedies
herein provided shall be cumulative and nonexclusive of any rights or
remedies provided by law. Any waiver of this Agreement shall be effective
only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.

(b) No provision of this Agreement may be amended,
supplemented, modified or waived except in writing signed by each
Originator and Buyer and, to the extent required under the Purchase
Agreement, the Agent and the Liquidity Banks or the Required Liquidity
Banks. Any material amendment, supplement, modification of waiver will
required satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition.

Section 7.2 Notices. All communications and notices provided
for hereunder shall be in writing (including bank wire, telecopy or electronic
facsimile transmission or similar writing) and shall be given to the other
parties hereto at their respective addresses or telecopy numbers set forth on
the signature pages hereof or at such other address or telecopy number as such
Person may hereafter specify for the purpose of notice to each of the other
parties hereto. Each such notice or other communication shall be effective (a)
if given by telecopy, upon the receipt thereof, (b) if given by mail, five (5)
Business Days after the time such communication is deposited in the mail with
first class postage prepaid or (c) if given by any other means, when received at
the address specified in this Section 7.2.

Section 7.3 Protection of Ownership Interests of Buyer.

(a) Each Originator agrees that from time to time, at its
expense, it will promptly execute and deliver all instruments and
documents, and take all actions, that may be necessary or desirable, or
that Buyer (or its assigns) may request, to perfect,
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protect or more fully evidence the interest of Buyer hereunder and the
Receivable Interests, or to enable Buyer (or its assigns) to exercise and
enforce their rights and remedies hereunder. At any time, Buyer (or its
assigns) may, at such Originator's sole cost and expense, direct such
Originator to notify the Obligors of Receivables of the ownership interests
of Buyer under this Agreement and may also direct that payments of all
amounts due or that become due under any or all Receivables be made
directly to Buyer or its designee.



(b) If any Originator fails to perform any of its obligations
hereunder, Buyer (or its assigns) may (but shall not be required to)
perform, or cause performance of, such obligations, and Buyer's (or such
assigns') costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith shall be
payable by such Originator as provided in Section 6.2. Each Originator
irrevocably authorizes Buyer (and its assigns) at any time and from time to
time in the sole discretion of Buyer (or its assigns), and appoints Buyer
(and its assigns) as its attorney(ies)-in-fact, to act on behalf of such
Originator (i) to execute on behalf of such Originator as debtor and to
file financing statements necessary or desirable in Buyer's (or its
assigns') sole discretion to perfect and to maintain the perfection and
priority of the interest of Buyer in the Receivables originated by such
Originator and the associated Related Security and Collections and (ii) to
file a carbon, photographic or other reproduction of this Agreement or any
financing statement with respect to the Receivables as a financing
statement in such offices as Buyer (or its assigns) in their sole
discretion deem necessary or desirable to perfect and to maintain the
perfection and priority of Buyer's interests in such Receivables. This
appointment is coupled with an interest and is irrevocable.

Section 7.4 Confidentiality.

(a) Each Originator and Buyer shall maintain and shall cause each
of its employees and officers to maintain the confidentiality of the Fee
Letter and the other confidential or proprietary information with respect
to the Agent and Blue Ridge and their respective businesses obtained by it
or them in connection with the structuring, negotiating and execution of
the transactions contemplated herein, except that such Originator and its
officers and employees may disclose such information to such Originator's
external accountants, attorneys and other advisors and as required by any
applicable law or order of any judicial or administrative proceeding.

(b) Each Originator hereby consents to the disclosure of any
nonpublic information with respect to it (i) to Buyer, the Agent, the
Liquidity Banks or Blue Ridge by each other, (ii) to any prospective or
actual assignee or participant of any of the Persons described in clause
(i), and (iii) to any rating agency, Commercial Paper dealer or provider of
a surety, guaranty or credit or liquidity enhancement to Blue Ridge or any
entity organized for the purpose of purchasing, or making loans secured by,
financial assets for which Wachovia Bank, N.A. (or its successor) acts as
the administrative agent and to any officers, directors, employees, outside
accountants and attorneys of any of the
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foregoing, provided each such Person described in the foregoing clauses
(11) and (iii) is informed of the confidential nature of such information.
In addition, the Purchasers and the Agent may disclose any such nonpublic
information pursuant to any law, rule, regulation, direction, request or
order of any judicial, administrative or regulatory authority or
proceedings (whether or not having the force or effect of law).

Section 7.5 Bankruptcy Petition.

(a) Each Originator and Buyer each hereby covenants and agrees that,
prior to the date that is one year and one day after the payment in full of all
outstanding senior indebtedness of Blue Ridge, it will not institute against, or
join any other Person in instituting against, Blue Ridge any bankruptcy,
reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other
similar proceeding under the laws of the United States or any state of the
United States.

(b) Each Originator covenants and agrees that, prior to the date
that is one year and one day after the payment in full of all outstanding
obligations of Buyer under the Purchase Agreement, it will not institute
against, or join any other Person in instituting against, Buyer any bankruptcy,
reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other
similar proceeding under the laws of the United States or any state of the
United States.

Section 7.6 Limitation of Liability. Except with respect to any claim
arising out of the willful misconduct or gross negligence of any Originator,
Buyer, Blue Ridge, the Agent or any Liquidity Bank, no claim may be made by any
such Person (or its Affiliates, directors, officers, employees, attorneys or
agents) against any such other Person (or its Affiliates, directors, officers,
employees, attorneys or agents) for any special, indirect, consequential or
punitive damages in respect of any claim for breach of contract or any other
theory of liability arising out of or related to the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement, or any act, omission or event occurring in connection
therewith; and each of the parties hereto, on behalf of itself and its
Affiliates, directors, officers, employees, attorneys, agents, successors and



assigns, hereby waives, releases, and agrees not to sue upon any claim for any
such damages, whether or not accrued and whether or not known or suspected to
exist in its favor.

Section 7.7 CHOICE OF LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS (AND NOT THE LAW OF CONFLICTS) OF
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

Section 7.8 CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. ORIGINATOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
SUBMITS TO THE NON-EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY UNITED STATES FEDERAL OR
ILLINOIS STATE COURT SITTING IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED BY
ORIGINATOR PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ORIGINATOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AGREES
THAT ALL CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING MAY BE HEARD AND
DETERMINED IN ANY SUCH COURT AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY OBJECTION
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IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE AS TO THE VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN SUCH A COURT OR THAT SUCH COURT IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.
NOTHING HEREIN SHALL LIMIT THE RIGHT OF BUYER (OR ITS ASSIGNS) TO BRING
PROCEEDINGS AGAINST ORIGINATOR IN THE COURTS OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. ANY
JUDICIAL PROCEEDING BY ORIGINATOR AGAINST BUYER (OR ITS ASSIGNS) OR ANY
AFFILIATE THEREOF INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER IN ANY WAY
ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT
EXECUTED BY ORIGINATOR PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE BROUGHT ONLY IN A
COURT IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS.

Section 7.9 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY
MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT
OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT, ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED BY
ORIGINATOR PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER
OR THEREUNDER.

Section 7.10 Integration; Binding Effect; Survival of Terms.

(a) This Agreement and each other Transaction Document
contain the final and complete integration of all prior expressions by the
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall
constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to
the subject matter hereof superseding all prior oral or written
understandings.

(b) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Originators, Buyer and their respective successors and
permitted assigns (including any trustee in bankruptcy). No Originator may
assign any of its rights and obligations hereunder or any interest herein
without the prior written consent of Buyer. Buyer may assign at any time
its rights and obligations hereunder and interests herein to any other
Person without the consent of any Originator. Without limiting the
foregoing, each Originator acknowledges that Buyer, pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement, may assign to the Agent, for the benefit of the
Purchasers, its rights, remedies, powers and privileges hereunder and that
the Agent may further assign such rights, remedies, powers and privileges
to the extent permitted in the Purchase Agreement. Each Originator agrees
that the Agent, as the assignee of Buyer, shall, subject to the terms of
the Purchase Agreement, have the right to enforce this Agreement and to
exercise directly all of Buyer's rights and remedies under this Agreement
(including, without limitation, the right to give or withhold any consents
or approvals of Buyer to be given or withheld hereunder) and each
Originator agrees to cooperate fully with the Agent in the exercise of such
rights and remedies. This Agreement shall create and constitute the
continuing obligations of the parties hereto in accordance with its terms
and shall remain in full force

25

and effect until terminated in accordance with its terms; provided,
however, that the rights and remedies with respect to (i) any breach of any
representation and warranty made by any Originator pursuant to Article II;

(ii) the indemnification and payment provisions of Article VI; and (iii)

Agreement.

Section 7.11 Counterparts; Severability; Section References. This

Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties



hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed
to be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and
the same Agreement. Any provisions of this Agreement which are prohibited or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective
to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the
remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any
jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any
other jurisdiction. Unless otherwise expressly indicated, all references herein
to "Article," "Section," "Schedule" or "Exhibit" shall mean articles and
sections of, and schedules and exhibits to, this Agreement.

(signature pages follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to
be executed and delivered by their duly authorized officers as of the date
hereof.

ACTUANT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz

Name: Terence M. Braatz
Title:

Address: 6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢6
Fax: (414) 228-6112

DEL CITY WIRE CO., INC.

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz

Name: Terence M. Braatz
Title: Treasurer

Address: 6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢6
Fax: (414) 228-6112
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GB TOOLS AND SUPPLIES, INC.

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz

Name: Terence M. Braatz
Title: Treasurer

Address: 6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢6
Fax: (414) 228-6112

VERSA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz

Name: Terence M. Braatz
Title: Treasurer

Address: 6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢6
Fax: (414) 228-6112
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ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, L.P.

By: Versa Technologies, Inc., its general partner

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz
Name: Terence M. Braatz
Title: Treasurer

Address: 6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢6
Fax: (414) 228-6112

ACTUANT RECEIVABLES CORPORATION

By: /s/ Patrick C. Dorn
Name: Patrick C. Dorn
Title: President

Address: 3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy.
Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

Attn: Pat Dorn

Phone: (702) 735-1811
Fax: (702) 735-1785

29
Exhibit I

Definitions

This is Exhibit I to the Agreement (as hereinafter defined). As used
in the Agreement and the Exhibits and Schedules thereto, capitalized terms have
the meanings set forth in this Exhibit I (such meanings to be equally applicable
to the singular and plural forms thereof). If a capitalized term is used in the
Agreement, or any Exhibit or Schedule thereto, and is not otherwise defined
therein or in this Exhibit I, such term shall have the meaning assigned thereto
in Exhibit I to the Purchase Agreement (hereinafter defined).

"Account" means an "account" under and as defined in the UCC as in
effect from time to time in the State of Illinois.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person
directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or indirect
common control with, such Person or any Subsidiary of such Person. A Person
shall be deemed to control another Person if the controlling Person owns 5% or
more of any class of voting securities of the controlled Person or possesses,
directly or indirectly, the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management or policies of the controlled Person, whether through ownership of
stock, by contract or otherwise.

"Agent" has the meaning set forth in the Preliminary Statements to the
Agreement.

"Agreement" means the Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of May 30,
2001, among Originators and Buyer, as the same may be amended, restated or

otherwise modified.

"Blue Ridge" has the meaning set forth in the Preliminary Statements
to the Agreement.

"Board of Directors" means the Board of Directors of Parent or any
committee thereof authorized to act on behalf of such Board.

"Buyer" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to the Agreement.



"Calculation Period" means each calendar month or portion thereof
which elapses during the term of the Agreement. The first Calculation Period
shall commence on the date of the Purchases hereunder and the final Calculation
Period shall terminate on the Termination Date.

"Capital Lease Obligations" of any Person means the obligations of
such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other
arrangement conveying the right to use) real or Personal property, or a
combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified and
accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such Person under GAAP,
and
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the amount of such obligations shall be the capitalized amount thereof
determined in accordance with GAAP.

"Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred if:

(a) any "Person" (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of
the Exchange Act) is or becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rules 13d-3
and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act, except that for purposes of this clause (a)
such Person shall be deemed to have "beneficial ownership" of all shares that
any such Person has the right to acquire, whether such right is exercisable
immediately or only after the passage of time), directly or indirectly, of more
than 50% of the total voting power of the Voting Stock of Parent (for the
purpose of this clause (a) a Person shall be deemed to beneficially own the
Voting Stock of a corporation that is beneficially owned (as defined above) by
another corporation (a "parent corporation") if such Person beneficially owns
(as defined above) at least 50% of the aggregate voting power of all classes of
Voting Stock of such parent corporation);

(b) during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who at the
beginning of such period constituted the Board of Directors (together with any
new directors whose election by such Board of Directors or whose nomination for
election by the shareholders of Parent was approved by a vote of 66-2/3% of the
directors of Parent then still in office who were either directors at the
beginning of such period or whose election or nomination for election was
previously so approved) cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the
Board of Directors then in office;

(c) the adoption of a plan relating to the liquidation or dissolution
of Parent;

(d) the merger or consolidation of Parent with or into another Person
or the merger of another Person with or into Parent, or the sale of all or
substantially all the assets of Parent to another Person, and, in the case of
any such merger or consolidation, the securities of Parent that are outstanding
immediately prior to such transaction and which represent 100% of the aggregate
voting power of the Voting Stock of Parent are changed into or exchanged for
cash, securities or property, unless pursuant to such transaction such
securities are changed into or exchanged for, in addition to any other
consideration, securities of the surviving corporation that represent
immediately after such transaction, at least a majority of the aggregate voting
power of the Voting Stock of the surviving corporation;

(e) Parent ceases to own, directly or indirectly, 100% of the
outstanding voting Equity Interests of any Originator, or

(f) Parent ceases to own, directly or indirectly, 100% of the
outstanding voting Equity Interests of Buyer.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time
to time.

"Collection Account" has the meaning specified in the Purchase
Agreement.
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"Collection Account Agreement" has the meaning specified in the
Purchase Agreement.

"Collection Bank" has the meaning specified in the Purchase Agreement.

"Contingent Obligation" means, as to any person, any obligation of
such person guaranteeing or intended to guarantee any Indebtedness, leases,
dividends or other obligations ("primary obligations"™) of any other person (the
"primary obligor") in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, including,
without limitation, any obligation of such person, whether or not contingent,
(a) to purchase any such primary obligation or any property constituting direct
or indirect security therefor, (b) to advance or supply funds (i) for the
purchase or payment of any such primary obligation or (ii) to maintain working
capital or equity capital of the primary obligor or otherwise to maintain the
net worth or solvency of the primary obligor, (c) to purchase property,



securities or services primarily for the purpose of assuring the owner of any
such primary obligation of the ability of the primary obligor to make payment of
such primary obligation or (d) otherwise to assure or hold harmless the holder
of such primary obligation against loss in respect thereof; provided, however,
that the term Contingent Obligation shall not include endorsements of
instruments for deposit or collection in the ordinary course of business and any
products warranties for deposit or collection in the ordinary course of
business. The amount of any Contingent Obligation shall be deemed to be an
amount equal to the stated or determinable amount of the primary obligation in
respect of which such Contingent Obligation is made (or, if less, the maximum
amount of such primary obligation for which such person may be liable pursuant
to the terms of the instrument evidencing such Contingent Obligation) or, if not
stated or determinable, the maximum reasonably anticipated liability in respect
thereof (assuming such person is required to perform thereunder) as determined
by such person in good faith.

"Contract" means, with respect to any Receivable, any and all
instruments, agreements, invoices or other writings pursuant to which such
Receivable arises or which evidences such Receivable including, without
limitation, all "contracts" as, when and if such term is defined in the UCC, of
the applicable Originator, and in any event, shall include, without limitation,
all sale, service, performance and equipment or property lease contracts,
agreements and grants (whether written or oral, or third party or intercompany),
and any other documents (whether written or oral) between the applicable
Originator and third parties, and all assignments, amendments, restatements,
supplements, extensions, renewals, replacements or modifications thereof.

"Credit and Collection Policy" means each Originator's credit and
collection policies and practices relating to Contracts and Receivables existing
on the date hereof and summarized in Exhibit V, as modified from time to time in
accordance with the Agreement.

"Default Fee" means a per annum rate of interest equal to the sum of
(i) the Prime Rate, plus (ii) 2% per annum.

"Discount Factor" means a percentage calculated to provide Buyer with
a reasonable return on its investment in the Receivables originated by each
Originator after taking
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account of (i) the time wvalue of money based upon the anticipated dates of
collection of such Receivables and the cost to Buyer of financing its investment
in such Receivables during such period, (ii) the risk of nonpayment by the
Obligors, and (iii) the cost to Buyer of servicing such Receivables. Each
Originator and Buyer may agree from time to time to change the Discount Factor
based on changes in one or more of the items affecting the calculation thereof,
provided that any change to the Discount Factor shall take effect as of the
commencement of a Calculation Period, shall apply only prospectively and shall
not affect the Purchase Price payment made prior to the Calculation Period
during which such Originator and Buyer agree to make such change.

"Disqualified Capital Stock" means any capital stock which, by its
terms (or by the terms of any security into which it is convertible or for which
it is exchangeable), or upon the happening of any event, (a) matures (excluding
any maturity as the result of an optional redemption by the issuer thereof) or
is mandatorily redeemable, pursuant to a sinking fund obligation or otherwise,
or is redeemable at the option of the holder thereof, in whole or in part, on or
prior to July 30, 2009, or (b) is convertible into or exchangeable (unless at
the sole option of the issuer thereof) for (i) debt securities or (ii) any
capital stock referred to in (a) above, in each case at any time prior to July
30, 2009.

"Dollars," "dollars" or "$" means lawful money of the United States of
America.

"Equity Interests" means, with respect to any Person, any and all
shares, interests, participations or other equivalents, including membership
interests (however designated, whether voting or non-voting), of capital of such
Person, including, if such Person is a partnership, partnership interests
(whether general or limited) and any other interest or participation that
confers on a Person the right to receive a share of the profits and losses of,
or distributions of assets of, such partnership, whether outstanding on the date
hereof or issued after the date of this Agreement.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
the same may be amended from time to time.

"ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not
incorporated) that, together with Parent, is treated as a single employer under
Section 414 (b) or (c) of the Code, or solely for purposes of Section 302 of
ERISA and Section 412 of the Code, is treated as a single employer under Section
414 of the Code.

"ERISA Event" means (a) any "reportable event", as defined in Section



4043 of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder, with respect to a Plan
(other than an event for which the 30-day notice period is waived); (b) the
existence with respect to any Plan of an "accumulated funding deficiency" (as
defined in Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA), whether or not
waived; (c) the filing pursuant to Section 412(d) of the Code or Section 303 (d)
of ERISA of an application for a waiver of the minimum funding standard with
respect to any Plan; (d) the incurrence by Parent or any of its ERISA Affiliates
of any liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any
Plan; (e) the receipt by Parent or any of its ERISA Affiliates from the PBGC or
a plan administrator of any notice relating to the
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intention to terminate any Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer
any Plan; (f) the incurrence by Parent or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any
liability with respect to the withdrawal from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan;
and (g) the receipt by Parent or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any notice, or
the receipt by any Multiemployer Plan from Parent or any of its ERISA Affiliates
of any notice, concerning the imposition of Withdrawal Liability or a
determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, or is expected to be, insolvent or
in reorganization, within the meaning of Title IV of ERISA.

"Event of Bankruptcy" means an event in which:

(i) a Person shall generally not pay its debts as such debts become
due or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally or shall
make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors,

(ii) any proceeding shall be instituted by a Person seeking to
adjudicate it bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking liquidation, winding up,
reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, protection, relief or composition of it
or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization
or relief of debtors, or seeking the entry of an order for relief or the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or other similar official for it or any
substantial part of its property,

(iii) a Person shall take any corporate or partnership action to
authorize any of the actions set forth in clauses (i) or (ii) above, or

(iv) any proceeding shall be instituted against a Person seeking to
adjudicate it bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking liquidation, winding up,
reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, protection, relief or composition of it
or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization
or relief of debtors, or seeking the entry of an order for relief or the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or other similar official for it or any
substantial part of its property and, if such Person is an Originator who is not
then acting as the Servicer, such appointment continues undischarged or such
proceeding continues undismissed or unstayed for a period of sixty (60)
consecutive days.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

"Excluded Taxes" means, with respect to any Indemnified Party or any
other recipient of any payment to be made by or on account of any obligation of
any Originator hereunder, income or franchise taxes imposed on (or measured by)
its net income by the United States of America, or by the jurisdiction under the
laws of which such recipient is organized or in which its principal office is
located.

"Finance Charges" means, with respect to a Contract, any finance,
interest, late payment charges or similar charges owing by an Obligor pursuant
to such Contract.
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"Financial Officer" of any Person means the chief financial officer,
principal accounting officer, Treasurer or Controller of such Person.

"fiscal quarter" means a quarter ending on the last day of each
February, May, August and November.

"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles applied on a
consistent basis.

"General Intangibles" shall mean, collectively, with respect to each
Originator, all "general intangibles," as such term is defined in the UCC, of
such Originator and, in any event shall include, without limitation, (i) all of
such Originator's rights, title and interest in, to and under all Contracts and
Insurance Policies, (ii) all know-how and warranties relating to any of the
Receivables, (iii) any and all other rights, claims, choses-in-action and causes
of action of such Originator against any other Person and the benefits of any
and all collateral or other security given by any other Person in connection
therewith, (iv) all guarantees, endorsements and indemnifications on, or of, any
of the Receivables, (v) all Records, (vi) all licenses, consents, permits,
variances, certifications, authorizations and approvals, however characterized,



of any Governmental Authority (or any Person acting on behalf of a Governmental
Authority) now or hereafter acquired or held by such Originator pertaining to
operations now or hereafter conducted by such Originator or any of the
including, without limitation, building permits, certificates of occupancy,
environmental certificates, industrial permits or licenses and certificates of
operation, and (vii) all rights to reserves, deferred payments, deposits,
refund, indemnification or claims to the extent the foregoing relate to any
Receivables and claims for tax or other refunds against any Governmental
Authority relating to any Receivables.

"Governmental Authority" means any Federal, state, local or foreign
court or governmental agency, authority, instrumentality or regulatory body.

"Indebtedness" of any person means, without duplication, (a) all
obligations of such person for borrowed money or with respect to deposits or
advances of any kind, (b) all obligations of such person evidenced by bonds,
debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) all obligations of such person
upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such
person under conditional sale or other title retention agreements relating to
property or assets purchased by such person other than customary reservations of
title under agreements with suppliers or lessors entered into in the ordinary
course of business, (e) all obligations of such person issued or assumed as the
deferred purchase price of property or services (excluding trade accounts
payable and accrued obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business),

(f) all Indebtedness of others secured by (or for which the holder of such
Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by)
any Lien on property owned or acquired by such person, whether or not the
obligations secured thereby have been assumed, (g) all Contingent Obligations of
such person, (h) all Capital Lease Obligations of such person, (i) all
obligations of such person in respect of interest rate protection agreements,
foreign currency exchange agreements or other interest or exchange rate hedging
arrangements, (j) all outstanding
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obligations of such person as an account party in respect of letters of credit
and bankers' acceptances, and (k) all Disqualified Capital Stock issued by such
person with the amount of Indebtedness represented by such Disqualified Capital
Stock being deemed to be the greater of its voluntary or involuntary liquidation
preference and its maximum repurchase price, including accrued and unpaid
dividends. The Indebtedness of any person shall include the Indebtedness of any
partnership in which such person is a general partner.

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1.

"Indemnified Taxes" means Taxes other than Excluded Taxes.

"Initial Contributed Receivables" has the meaning set forth in Section

"Insurance Policies" means, collectively, with respect to each
Originator, all insurance policies with respect to any Receivable(s) now or
hereafter held by such Originator or naming such Originator as insured,
additional insured or loss payee, and all rights, claims and recoveries relating
thereto (including, without limitation, all dividends, returned premiums and
other rights to receive money in respect of any of the foregoing).

"Lock-Box" has the meaning specified in the Purchase Agreement.

"Material Adverse Effect" means a material adverse effect on (i) the
business, Property, results of operations, prospects or condition, financial or
otherwise, of Parent and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (ii) the ability of
any Originator to perform its obligations under any Transaction Document to
which it is a party or of the Performance Guarantor to perform its obligations
under the Performance Undertaking, (iii) the legality, validity or
enforceability of this Agreement or any other Transaction Document, (iv) the
Buyer's ownership interest (or the Agent's security interest, for the benefit of
the Secured Parties) in the Receivables generally or in any significant portion
of the Receivables, the Related Security or the Collections with respect
thereto, or (v) the collectibility of the Receivables generally or of any
material portion of the Receivables.

"Monthly Reporting Date" means the 16th day of each month after the
date of this Agreement (or if any such day is not a Business Day, the next
succeeding Business Day thereafter).

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

"Multiemployer Plan" means a multiemployer plan as defined in Section



4001 (a) (3) of ERISA.

"Net Worth" means as of the last Business Day of each Calculation
Period preceding any date of determination, the excess, if any, of (a) the
aggregate Outstanding Balance
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of the Receivables at such time, over (b) the sum of (i) the Aggregate Invested
Amount outstanding at such time, plus (ii) the aggregate outstanding principal
balance of the Subordinated Loans (including any Subordinated Loan proposed to
be made on the date of determination).

"Organizational Documents" means, for any Person, the documents for
its formation and organization, which, for example, (a) for a corporation are
its corporate charter and bylaws, (b) for a partnership are its certificate of
partnership (if applicable) and partnership agreement, (c) for a limited
liability company are its certificate of formation or organization and its
operating agreement, regulations or the like and (d) for a trust is the trust
agreement, declaration of trust, indenture or bylaws under which it is created.

"Original Balance" means, with respect to any Receivable coming into
existence after the Initial Cutoff Date, the Outstanding Balance of such
Receivable on the date it was created.

"Originator" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to the
Agreement.

"Other Taxes" means any and all present or future stamp or documentary
taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies arising
from any payment made under any Transaction Document or from the execution,
delivery or enforcement of, or otherwise with respect to, any Transaction
Document.

"Outstanding Balance" of any Receivable at any time means the then
outstanding principal balance thereof.

"Parent" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to the Agreement.

"PBGC" means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and
defined in ERISA.

"Plan" means any employee pension benefit plan (other than a
Multiemployer Plan) subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or Section
412 of the Code or Section 307 of ERISA, and in respect of which Parent or any
ERISA Affiliate is (or, if such plan were terminated, would under Section 4069
of ERISA be deemed to be) an "employer" as defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

"Prime Rate" means a rate per annum equal to the prime rate of
interest announced from time to time by Wachovia Bank, N.A. or its successor
(which is not necessarily the lowest rate charged to any customer), changing
when and as said prime rate changes.

"Property" means any right, title or interest in or to property or
assets of any kind whatsoever, whether real, personal or mixed and whether
tangible or intangible and including Equity Interests or other ownership
interests of any person.
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"Purchase" means the purchase by Buyer from an Originator pursuant to
Section 1.2 (a) of the Agreement of the Receivables originated by such Originator

and the Related Security and Collections related thereto, together with all
related rights in connection therewith.

"Purchase Agreement" has the meaning set forth in the Preliminary
Statements to the Agreement.

"Purchase Price" means, with respect to the Purchase from each
Originator, the aggregate price to be paid by Buyer to such Originator for such
Purchase in accordance with Section 1.3 of the Agreement for the Receivables
originated by such Originator and the associated Collections and Related
Security being sold to Buyer, which price shall equal on any date (i) the
product of (x) the Outstanding Balance of such Receivables on such date,
multiplied by (y) one minus the Discount Factor in effect on such date, minus
(ii) any Purchase Price Credits to be credited against the Purchase Price
otherwise payable in accordance with Section 1.4 of the Agreement.

the Agreement.



"Purchase Report" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2 (b) of the

Agreement.

"Receivable" means each Account owed to an Originator (at the times it
arises, and before giving effect to any transfer or conveyance under the
Agreement) or to Buyer (after giving effect to the transfers under the
Agreement) including, without limitation, the obligation to pay any Finance
Charges with respect thereto: provided, however, that with respect to Actuant
Corporation, only an Account arising in connection with the sale of goods or the
rendering of services by its Enerpac Division and Powerpacker Division shall be
included in "Receivable" and with respect to Versa Technologies, Inc., only an
Account arising in connection with the sale of goods or the rendering of
services by its Powergear Division shall be included in "Receivable".
Indebtedness and other rights and obligations arising from any one transaction,
including, without limitation, indebtedness and other rights and obligations
represented by an individual invoice, shall constitute a Receivable separate
from a Receivable consisting of the indebtedness and other rights and
obligations arising from any other transaction; provided, further, that any
indebtedness, rights or obligations referred to in the immediately preceding
sentence shall be a Receivable regardless or whether the account debtor or such
Originator treats such indebtedness, rights or obligations as a separate payment
obligation.

"Records" means any and all lists, books, records, correspondence,
ledgers, print-outs, files (whether in printed form or stored electronically),
tapes and other papers or materials containing information relating to any of
the Receivables including, without limitation, all customer lists,
identification of suppliers, data, plans, blueprints, specifications, designs,
drawings, appraisals, recorded knowledge, surveys, studies, engineering reports,
test reports, manuals, standards, processing standards, performance standards,
catalogs, research data, computer and automatic machinery software and programs
and the like pertaining to the operations of the applicable Originator or any of
the Receivables, field repair data, sales data and
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other information relating to sales of products now or hereafter manufactured,
distributed or franchised by such Originator, accounting information pertaining
to any of the Receivables and all media in which or on which any of the
information or knowledge or data or records relating to such operations or any
of the Receivables may be recorded or stored and all computer programs used for
the compilation or printout of such information, knowledge, records or data.

"Related Security" means, with respect to any Receivable:

(A) all margin accounts, futures positions, book debts and other
forms of obligations and receivables now or hereafter owned or held by or
payable to the applicable Originator relating in any way to or arising from
the sale or lease of goods or the rendering of services by such Originator
or any other party, including the right to payment of any interest or
finance charge with respect thereto, together with all merchandise
represented by any of the accounts,

(B) all such merchandise that may be reclaimed or repossessed or
returned to the applicable Originator,

(C) all of the applicable Originator's rights as an unpaid
vendor, including stoppage in transit, reclamation, replevin and
sequestration,

(D) all assets pledged, assigned, hypothecated or granted to, and
all letters of credit, guarantee claims, Adverse Claims and security
interests held by the applicable Originator to secure payment of any
Accounts and which are delivered for or on behalf of any Obligor,

(E) all accessions to all of the foregoing described properties
and interests in properties,

(F) all powers of attorney for the execution of any evidence of
indebtedness or security or other writing in connection with the foregoing,

(G) all evidence of the filing of financing statements and other
statements and the registration of other instruments in connection
therewith and amendments thereto, notices to other creditors or secured
parties and certificates from filing or other registration offices

(H) all General Intangibles related to such Receivable,

(I) all of the applicable Originator's right, title and interest
in each Lock-Box and each Collection Account, and

(J) all proceeds of any of the foregoing.
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"Reportable Event" means any of the events set forth in Section
4043 (c) of ERISA or the regulations thereunder, other than any such event for
which the 30-day notice requirement under ERISA has been waived in regulations
issued by the PBGC.

"Required Capital Amount" means, as of any date of determination, an
amount equal to the greater of (a) 3% of the Purchase Limit under the Purchase
Agreement, and (b) the product of (i) 1.5 times the product of the Default Ratio
times the Default Horizon Ratio, each as determined from the most recent Monthly
Report received from the Servicer under the Purchase Agreement, and (ii) the
Outstanding Balance of all Receivables as of such date, as determined from the
most recent Monthly Report received from the Servicer under the Purchase
Agreement.

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

"S&P" means Standard and Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The
McGraw Hill Companies, Inc.

"Settlement Date" means (A) the 2nd Business Day after each Monthly
Reporting Date, and (B) the last day of the relevant Interest Period in respect
of each Receivable Interests funded through a Liquidity Funding.

"Subordinated Loan" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3(a) of the

Agreement.

"Subordinated Note" means a promissory note in substantially the form
of Exhibit VI hereto as more fully described in Section 1.3 of the Agreement, as
the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time
to time.

"Subsidiary" of a Person means (i) any corporation more than 50% of
the outstanding securities having ordinary voting power of which shall at the
time be owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or by one or
more of its Subsidiaries or by such Person and one or more of its Subsidiaries,
or (ii) any partnership, association, limited liability company, joint venture
or similar business organization more than 50% of the ownership interests having
ordinary voting power of which shall at the time be so owned or controlled.

"Taxes" means any and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts,
duties, deductions, charges or withholdings imposed by any Governmental
Authority.

"Termination Date" means the earliest to occur of (i) the Facility
Termination Date (as defined in the Purchase Agreement), (ii) the Business Day
immediately prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event set forth in Section

Originators following the occurrence of any other Termination Event, and (iv)
the date which is 10 Business Days after Buyer's receipt of written notice from
any Originator that it wishes to terminate the facility evidenced by this
Agreement.

"Termination Event" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1 of the

Agreement.
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"Transaction Documents" means, collectively, this Agreement, each
Collection Account Agreement, the Subordinated Notes, and all other instruments,
documents and agreements executed and delivered in connection herewith.

"UCC" means the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the applicable
state or jurisdiction.

"Unmatured Termination Event" means an event which, with the passage
of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a Termination Event.

"Voting Stock" means any class or classes of capital stock of Parent
pursuant to which the holders thereof have the general voting power under
ordinary circumstances to elect at least a majority of the Board of Directors of
Parent.

"Wholly Owned Subsidiary" means, as to any Person, (a) any corporation
100% of whose capital stock (other than directors' qualifying shares) is at the
time owned by such Person and/or one or more Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of such
Person and (b) any partnership, association, joint venture, limited liability
company or other entity in which such Person and/or one or more Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of such Person has a 100% equity interest at such time (other than



directors', managing partners' or managing members' qualifying equity
interests).

"Withdrawal Liability" means liability to a Multiemployer Plan as a
result of a complete or partial withdrawal from such Multiemployer Plan, as such
terms are defined in Part I of Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA.

All accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be
construed in accordance with GAAP. All terms used in Article 9 of the UCC in the
State of Illinois, and not specifically defined herein, are used herein as
defined in such Article 9.
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Exhibit II

Exhibit II Chief Executive Offices; Locations of Records;

Federal Employer Identification Numbers; Other Names

Chief Executive Office for Each Originator:

6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Locations of Records for Each Originator:

6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Federal Employer Identification Number for Each Originator:

Actuant Corporation: 39-0168610
Del City Wire Co., Inc.: 73-0666761
GB Tools and Supplies, Inc.: 39-0964876
Versa Technologies, Inc.: 39-1143618
Engineered Solutions, L.P.: 31-1757546

Legal, Trade and Assumed Names for Each Originator:

Actuant Corporation: Applied Power Inc. (1/11/01)

Del City Wire Co., Inc.: n/a

GB Tools and Supplies, Inc.: Gardner Bender, Inc. (12/22/00); APW Tools and
Supplies, Inc. (9/21/00); GB Electrical, Inc.

(4/19/99)
Versa Technologies, Inc.: n/a
Engineered Solutions, L.P.: n/a
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Lock-boxes; Collection Accounts; Collection Banks

<TABLE>

Legal Entity Business Unit Existing Existing Existing Revised
Revised
Bank Lockbox # Dda # Bank
Lockbox #

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>

<C>

Actuant Receivables (new "SPE") n/a n/a n/a Bank One
n/a

Actuant Corporation Enerpac Bank of 98093 8765-0-60760 Bank One
22730

America



GB Tools & Supplies, Inc. Gardner Bender (GB) Marshall & 88397 122-2546 Bank One
22732

Ilsley
" Calterm Bank of n/a 8765-9-60398 Bank One
22732
America
" Ancor Products Bank of n/a 8765-0-01091 Bank One
n/a
America
Del City Wire Co. Inc. Del City Bank of n/a 8765-0-01092 Bank One
22736
America
Engineered Solutions
Actuant Corporation Power Packer Bank of 98093 8765-0-60760 Bank One
22738
America
Versa Technologies, Inc. Power Gear Marshall & 10199 486-6114 Bank One
22742
Ilsley
Engineered Solutions LP Engineered Solutions Bank One 22626 10-81348 Bank One
22626
(sub of VT Holdings, Inc.) Americas
(i.e., currently Dewald only)
<CAPTION>
Legal Entity Revised Concentration
Dda # Effective
5/31/01
<S> <C> <C>
Actuant Receivables 10-87832 ZBA to 10-61597
Corporation
Tools & Supplies
Actuant Corporation 10-87766 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
GB Tools & Supplies, Inc. 10-87774 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
" 10-87774 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
" 10-87782 ZBA to new SPE



al/c

Engineered Solutions ZBA to new SPE

- mmmm— e al/c

Actuant Corporation 10-87808 ZBA to new SPE
a/c

Versa Technologies, Inc. 10-87816 ZBA to new SPE
ac

Engineered Solutions LP 10-81348 ZBA to new SPE

(sub of VT Holdings, Inc.) a/c

</TABLE>
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Exhibit IV

[Form of] Compliance Certificate

This Compliance Certificate is furnished pursuant to that certain
Receivables Sale Agreement dated as of May 30, 2001, among Actuant Corporation

("Parent"), Del City Wire Co., Inc., GB Tools and Supplies, Inc., Versa
Technologies, Inc., Engineered Solutions, L.P. and Actuant Receivables
Corporation (the "Agreement"). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined

herein are used with the meanings attributed thereto in the Agreement.
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT:
1. I am the duly elected of Parent.

2. I have reviewed the terms of the Agreement and I have made, or
have caused to be made under my supervision, a detailed review of the
transactions and conditions of Parent and its Subsidiaries during the accounting
period covered by the attached financial statements.

3. The examinations described in paragraph 2 did not disclose, and I
have no knowledge of, the existence of any condition or event which constitutes
a Termination Event or an Unmatured Termination Event, as each such term is
defined under the Agreement, during or at the end of the accounting period
covered by the attached financial statements or as of the date of this
Certificate[, except as set forth below].

[4. Described below are the exceptions, if any, to paragraph 3 by
listing, in detail, the nature of the condition or event, the period during
which it has existed and the action which Parent has taken, is taking, or
proposes to take with respect to each such condition or
event: 1.

The foregoing certifications, together with the computations set forth
in Schedule I hereto and the financial statements delivered with this

Certificate in support hereof, are made and delivered this day of
, 200 .
[Name]
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Exhibit V

[attached]
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Exhibit VI

Form of Subordinated Note



SUBORDINATED NOTE
May 30, 2001

1. Note. FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, Actuant Receivables
Corporation, a Nevada corporation ("SPV"), hereby unconditionally promises to
pay to the order of [ORIGINATOR NAME], a(n) corporation
("Originator"), in lawful money of the United States of America and in
immediately available funds, on or before the date following the Termination
Date which is one year and one day after the date on which (i) the Outstanding
Balance of all Receivables sold by Originator under the "Sale Agreement"
referred to below has been reduced to zero and (ii) Originator has paid to Buyer
all indemnities, adjustments and other amounts which may be owed thereunder in
connection with the Purchase thereunder (the "Collection Date"), the aggregate
unpaid principal sum outstanding of all "Subordinated Loans" made from time to
time by Originator to SPV pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of that
certain Receivables Sale Agreement dated as of May 30, 2001 among Originator and
certain of its affiliates, as sellers, and SPV, as buyer (as amended, restated,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Sale Agreement").
Reference to Section 1.3 of the Sale Agreement is hereby made for a statement of
the terms and conditions under which the loans evidenced hereby have been and
will be made. All terms which are capitalized and used herein and which are not
otherwise specifically defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Sale Agreement.

2. Interest. SPV further promises to pay interest on the outstanding
unpaid principal amount hereof from the date hereof until payment in full hereof
at a rate equal to the l-month LIBOR rate published in The Wall Street Journal
on the first Business Day of each month (or portion thereof) during the term of
this Subordinated Note, computed for actual days elapsed on the basis of a year
consisting of 360 days and changing on the first business day of each month
hereafter ("LIBOR"); provided, however, that if SPV shall default in the payment
of any principal hereof, SPV promises to pay, on demand, interest at the rate
equal to LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum on any such unpaid amounts, from the date
such payment is due to the date of actual payment. Interest shall be payable on
the first Business Day of each month in arrears; provided, however, that SPV may
elect on the date any interest payment is due hereunder to defer such payment
and upon such election the amount of interest due but unpaid on such date shall
constitute principal under this Subordinated Note. The outstanding principal of
any loan made under this Subordinated Note shall be due and payable on the
Collection Date and may be repaid or prepaid at any time without premium or
penalty.

3. Principal Payments. Originator is authorized and directed by SPV
to enter on the grid attached hereto, or, at its option, in its books and
records, the date and amount of each loan made by it which is evidenced by this
Subordinated Note and the amount of each payment
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of principal made by SPV, and absent manifest error, such entries shall

constitute prima facie evidence of the accuracy of the information so entered;
provided that neither the failure of Originator to make any such entry or any
error therein shall expand, limit or affect the obligations of SPV hereunder.

4. Subordination. Originator shall have the right to receive, and
SPV shall make, any and all payments and prepayments relating to the loans made
under this Subordinated Note provided that, after giving effect to any such
payment or prepayment, the aggregate Outstanding Balance of Receivables (as each
such term is defined in the Purchase Agreement hereinafter referred to) owned by
SPV at such time exceeds the sum of (a) the Aggregate Unpaids (as defined in the
Purchase Agreement) outstanding at such time under the Purchase Agreement, plus
(b) the aggregate outstanding principal balance of all loans made under this
Subordinated Note. Originator hereby agrees that at any time during which the
conditions set forth in the proviso of the immediately preceding sentence shall
not be satisfied, Originator shall be subordinate in right of payment to the
prior payment of any indebtedness or obligation of SPV owing to the Agent or any
Purchaser under that certain Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of May 30,
2001 by and among SPV, Actuant Corporation, as initial Servicer, various
"Purchasers" from time to time party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, N.A., as the
"Agent" (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time, the "Purchase Agreement"). The subordination provisions contained herein
are for the direct benefit of, and may be enforced by, the Agent and the
Purchasers and/or any of their respective assignees (collectively, the "Senior
Claimants") under the Purchase Agreement. Until the date on which the "Aggregate
Invested Amount" outstanding under the Purchase Agreement has been repaid in
full and all other obligations of SPV and/or the Servicer thereunder and under
the "Fee Letter" referenced therein (all such obligations, collectively, the



"Senior Claim") have been indefeasibly paid and satisfied in full, Originator
shall not institute against SPV any proceeding of the type described in the
definition of "Event of Bankruptcy" in the Sale Agreement unless and until the
Collection Date has occurred. Should any payment, distribution or security or
proceeds thereof be received by Originator in violation of this Section 4,
Originator agrees that such payment shall be segregated, received and held in
trust for the benefit of, and deemed to be the property of, and shall be
immediately paid over and delivered to the Agent for the benefit of the Senior
Claimants.

5. Bankruptcy; Insolvency. Upon the occurrence of any proceeding of
the type described in the definition of "Event of Bankruptcy" in the Sale
Agreement involving SPV as debtor, then and in any such event the Senior
Claimants shall receive payment in full of all amounts due or to become due on
or in respect of the Aggregate Invested Amount and the Senior Claim (including
"Yield" as defined and as accruing under the Purchase Agreement after the
commencement of any such proceeding, whether or not any or all of such Yield is
an allowable claim in any such proceeding) before Originator is entitled to
receive payment on account of this Subordinated Note, and to that end, any
payment or distribution of assets of SPV of any kind or character, whether in
cash, securities or other property, in any applicable insolvency proceeding,
which would otherwise be payable to or deliverable upon or with respect to any
or all indebtedness under this Subordinated Note, is hereby assigned to and
shall be paid or delivered
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by the Person making such payment or delivery (whether a trustee in bankruptcy,
a receiver, custodian or liquidating trustee or otherwise) directly to the Agent
for application to, or as collateral for the payment of, the Senior Claim until
such Senior Claim shall have been paid in full and satisfied.

6. Amendments. This Subordinated Note shall not be amended or

modified except in accordance with Section 7.1 of the Sale Agreement. The terms
of this Subordinated Note may not be amended or otherwise modified without the
prior written consent of the Agent for the benefit of the Purchasers.

7. GOVERNING LAW. THIS SUBORDINATED NOTE HAS BEEN MADE AND DELIVERED
AT CHICAGO, ILLINOIS, AND SHALL BE INTERPRETED AND THE RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF
THE PARTIES HERETO DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS AND DECISIONS OF THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS. WHEREVER POSSIBLE EACH PROVISION OF THIS SUBORDINATED NOTE
SHALL BE INTERPRETED IN SUCH MANNER AS TO BE EFFECTIVE AND VALID UNDER
APPLICABLE LAW, BUT IF ANY PROVISION OF THIS SUBORDINATED NOTE SHALL BE
PROHIBITED BY OR INVALID UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, SUCH PROVISION SHALL BE
INEFFECTIVE TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PROHIBITION OR INVALIDITY, WITHOUT
INVALIDATING THE REMAINDER OF SUCH PROVISION OR THE REMAINING PROVISIONS OF THIS
SUBORDINATED NOTE.

8. Waivers. All parties hereto, whether as makers, endorsers, or
otherwise, severally waive presentment for payment, demand, protest and notice
of dishonor. Originator additionally expressly waives all notice of the
acceptance by any Senior Claimant of the subordination and other provisions of
this Subordinated Note and expressly waives reliance by any Senior Claimant upon
the subordination and other provisions herein provided.

9. Assignment. This Subordinated Note may not be assigned, pledged

or otherwise transferred to any party other than Originator without the prior
written consent of the Agent, and any such attempted transfer shall be void.

ACTUANT RECEIVABLES CORPORATION

By:
Title:
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Schedule
to

SUBORDINATED NOTE
SUBORDINATED LOANS AND PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Amount of Amount of Unpaid
Subordinated Principal Principal Notation Made
Date Loan Paid Balance by (Initials)



</TABLE>
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Exhibit VII

[Form of] Purchase Report

For the Calculation Period beginning [date] and ending [date]

TO: BUYER AND THE AGENT (AS BUYER's ASSIGNEE)
<TABLE>
<S>

Less: Aggregate Outstanding Balance of all Receivables
sold during such period which were not Eligible
Receivables on the date when sold:

Equals: Aggregate Outstanding Balance of all Eligible
Receivables sold during the period (A - B):

Equals: Gross Purchase Price Payable during the period
(C - D)

Less: Total Purchase Price Credits arising during the
Period:

Equals: Net Purchase Price payable during the Period
(E - F):

Cash Purchase Price Paid to Originator during the
Period:

<C> <C> <C>
$ A
($ ) (B)
$ =C
($ ) (D)
$ =E
(F)
($ )
$ =G
H
$
I



Less: Repayments of Subordinated Loans received during

the Period: ($
Equals: Purchase Price paid in Cash or Subordinated
Loans during the period
(H+ I - J):
Aggregate Outstanding Balance of Receivables
contributed during the Period: S
</TABLE>
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Schedule 2.1 (e)
Pending Litigation
1. Actuant Corporation and its subsidiaries

(collectively the

"Company") self-insures a significant portion of its product liability exposure
by maintaining a significant retention provision under its insurance program.
The retention (relative to accident occurrences for the fiscal years of the

retention program) are as follows:

Retention Per Aggregate
Year/1l/ Occurrence Retention
1978 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
1979 1,000,000 1,250,000
1980 500,000 1,500,000
1981 1,000,000 1,000,000
1982 700,000 700,000
1983 700,000 700,000
1984 700,000 700,000
1985 750,000 750,000
1986 800,000 800,000
1987 1,000,000 1,000,000
1988 1,000,000 1,000,000
1989 1,000,000 1,000,000
1990 1,000,000 1,000,000
1991 1,000,000 1,000,000
1992 500,000 1,000,000
1993 500,000 1,000,000
1994 300,000 1,000,000
1995 300,000 1,000,000
1996 300,000 1,000,000
1997 300,000 1,000,000
1998 300,000 1,000,000
1999 300,000 1,000,000
2000 300,000 1,000,000

/1/Each year is for the fiscal year ended August 31 of such year,

except

that (i) effective January 1, 1990 the Company changed its policy year
to the calendar year. Accordingly, 1990 refers to calendar year 1990.
1989 refers to the period from September 1, 1988 through December 31,
1989 and (ii) 1991 is for the period from January 1, 1991

August 31, 1991. 1992, 1993, 1994, 1995, 1996,
2000, are for the fiscal year periods.
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1997, 1998,

through
1999 and

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2000, the figures set forth in the table
above relate only to product liability claims and there is a $100,000 retention

for liability claims other than product liability. Further,

the Company carries

excess liability insurance in the current aggregate amount of $50,000,000 in
excess of the primary aggregate limit of $1,000,000. There are a number of

product liability cases pending against the Company, but the Company's total
exposure for these years would not, in the opinion of the Company,
retention amounts set forth above. Of course, if detailed information on these

cases 1is desired, the Company can provide such information.

exceed the

You are aware of the

reserves which the Company carries on its balance sheet for general liability

exposure.

2. In late January 2001, the Company received an indemnity
claim from Teleflex Incorporated. Teleflex had purchased the Company's former
Air Cargo Equipment Corporation subsidiary during the previous year, and claimed



that it had expended substantial sums in correcting defective containers sold by
Air Cargo to Emery Air Freight. After deducting the minimum specified in the
parties' contract, Teleflex claimed it was entitled to be indemnified in the
amount of $1,458,840. On March 9, 2001 Quarles & Brady wrote to Teleflex on
behalf of the Company, and stated that the Company denied there had been any
breach of the parties' contract which would entitle Teleflex to indemnity, and
that Teleflex had failed to comply with the contractually-specified indemnity
process by giving the Company prompt written notice of the claim, tendering
defense of the claim and affording Actuant the opportunity to protect its
interests by assuming the defense. On March 26, 2001 Teleflex sent a response
letter in which it stated its disagreement with the Company's position and
reiterated its assertion that the Company had breached the parties' contract by
failing to disclose Emery warranty claims. On April 11, 2001 Quarles & Brady
responded to that letter on behalf of the Company, again stating that the
Company rejected the claim. No response to this letter has been received to
date.

3. In late January 2001, the Company received a letter from
Hutchinson, S.A., tendering the defense of a claim by Northwest Airlines. The
Northwest Airlines claim was made against Barry Controls, a business unit which
the Company had sold to a subsidiary of Hutchinson in April 2000, and related to
Barry Controls' sale of certain noise and vibration control devices known as the
ATMA system. Northwest's claim was for refund of the $6.3 million purchase price
it had paid for the ATMA equipment and for unspecified incidental, consequential
and other damages allegedly caused by failures of the ATMA system. On January
24, 2001, the Company sent Hutchinson a letter in which it accepted tender of
the Northwest claim, reserving its rights to contest Hutchinson's right of
indemnification if the facts so warrant. The Company's investigation of the
claim continues. In May 2001, the Company was contacted by Northwest and asked
whether it wished to enter into discussions regarding the settlement of
Northwest's claim. The Company offered to do so, provided such discussions
included the merits of Northwest's claim. On May 23, 2001 Northwest notified the
Company that it did not wish to meet with the Company on those terms, and
intended to commence arbitration. The Purchase Order between Barry Controls and
Northwest, pursuant to which the ATMA units were apparently purchased, states
that disputes are to be resolved through mediation and arbitration.
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Both the Company and Barry Controls have informed Northwest that they insist
upon mediation of the dispute.

4. In November 2000, the Company was sued by Richard E.
Schnell, a former employee who had sold his business to the Company in 1995.
Schnell's complaint alleges various breaches of his business acquisition and
employment contracts with the Company, as well as certain alleged acts of fraud
and misrepresentation, and appears to seek damages in the range of $500,000 to
$600,000. The Company filed motions attacking certain of these claims, and the
Court recently granted certain of these motions but allowed Schnell an
opportunity to re-plead certain of his claims.

5. The Company received a letter dated March 10, 1999 from
attorneys for Lemelson Medical, Education & Research Foundation ("the Lemelson
Foundation") purporting to give the Company notice of infringement of 17 patents
and to offer a license under those patents. The patents all relate to either
machine vision systems or automatic identification systems, most commonly known
as bar code scanners, which the Company purchased from third party suppliers.
The Company has obtained an opinion of patent counsel that it does not infringe
any valid, enforceable claim of any of the patent claims identified in the
letter. The Lemelson Foundation has filed a Complaint naming the Company and
over one hundred other defendants and served it on the Company on August 2,
2000. The Company has retained the Phoenix, Arizona law firm of Roshka, Heyman &
DeWulf to represent it in this matter. Please refer additional inquiries
regarding this matter to Attorney John DeWulf.
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Schedule A

DOCUMENTS TO BE DELIVERED TO BUYER
PRIOR TO THE INITIAL PURCHASE

1. Executed copies of the Receivables Sale Agreement, duly executed by the
parties thereto.

2. Copy of each Originator's Credit and Collection Policy to attach to the
Receivables Sale Agreement as an Exhibit.

3. A certificate of each Originator's [Assistant] Secretary certifying:

(a) A copy of the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of such
Originator, authorizing Originator's execution, delivery and
performance of the Receivables Sale Agreement and the other documents
to be delivered by it thereunder;



(b) A copy of the Organizational Documents of such Originator
(also certified, to the extent that such documents are filed with any
governmental authority, by the Secretary of State of the jurisdiction
of organization of such Originator on or within thirty (30) days prior
to closing);

(c) Good Standing Certificates for such Originator issued by the
Secretaries of State of its state of incorporation and each
jurisdiction where it has material operations; and

(d) The names and signatures of the officers authorized on its
behalf to execute the Receivables Sale Agreement and any other
documents to be delivered by it thereunder.

4. Pre-filing state and federal tax lien, judgment lien and UCC lien searches
against each Originator from the following jurisdictions:

Actuant Corporation: Wisconsin DFI; Milwaukee County, WI

Del City Wire Co., Inc.: Wisconsin DFI; Milwaukee County, WI;
Okla. County, OK

GB Tools and Supplies, Inc.: Wisconsin DFI; Milwaukee County, WI

Versa Technologies, Inc.: Wisconsin DFI; Milwaukee County, WI

Engineered Solutions, L.P.: Wisconsin DFI; Milwaukee County, WI;

Indiana SOS

5. Proper financing statements in form suitable for filing under the UCC on or
before the date of the initial Purchase (as defined in the Receivables Sale
Agreement) in all jurisdictions as may be necessary or, in the opinion of
Buyer (or its assigns), desirable, under the UCC of all appropriate
jurisdictions or any comparable law in order to perfect the ownership
interests contemplated by the Receivables Sale Agreement, including,
without limitation, the UCC as in effect in the jurisdiction where each
Originator's jurisdiction of organization.
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6. UCC partial releases in form suitable for filing necessary to release all
security interests and other rights of any Person in the Receivables and
Related Security previously granted by each Originator, together with an
executed copy of any instrument of release delivered in connection
therewith.

7. Executed Collection Account Agreements for each Lock-Box and Collection
Account at Bank One, NA or M&I Bank.

8. A favorable opinion of legal counsel for each Originator licensed to give
opinions under Illinois law reasonably acceptable to Buyer (and the Agent,
as Buyer's assignee) as to the following:

(a) Such Originator is a [corporation/limited partnership]
duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the
state of

(b) Such Originator has all requisite authority to conduct its
business in each jurisdiction where failure to be so qualified would have a
material adverse effect on such Originator's business.

(c) The execution and delivery by such Originator of the
Receivables Sale Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which it is a
party and its performance of its obligations thereunder have been duly
authorized by all necessary organizational action and proceedings on the part of
such Originator and will not:

(1) require any action by or in respect of, or filing with,
any governmental body, agency or official (other than the filing of UCC
financing statements) ;

(11) contravene, or constitute a default under, any provision
of applicable law or regulation or of its Organizational Documents or
of any agreement, judgment, injunction, order, decree or other
instrument binding upon such Originator; or

(iii) result in the creation or imposition of any Adverse
Claim on assets of such Originator or any of its Subsidiaries (except
as contemplated by the Receivables Sale Agreement).

(d) The Receivables Sale Agreement and each other Transaction
Document to which it is a party has been duly executed and delivered by such
Originator and constitutes the legally wvalid, and binding obligation of such
Originator enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent the
enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws
affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and subject also to the
availability of equitable remedies if equitable remedies are sought.
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(e) In the event that the receivables Sale Agreement is held
to create a transfer for security purposes rather than a true sale or other
outright assignment, the provisions of the Receivables Sale Agreement are
effective to create valid security interests in favor of Buyer in all of such
Originator's right, title and interest in and to the Receivables and Related

Security described therein which constitute "accounts," "chattel paper" or
"general intangibles" (each as defined in the UCC) (collectively, the "Opinion
Collateral"), as security for the payment of a loan deemed to have been made by

Buyer to such Originator in an amount equal to the Purchase Price (as defined
therein) of the Receivables (as defined therein) acquired from such Originator,
together with all other obligations of such Originator thereunder.

(f) Each of the UCC-1 Financing Statements naming such
Originator as debtor, Buyer, as secured party, and Agent, as assignee of secured
party to be filed in the [describe filing offices], is in appropriate form for

filing therein. Upon filing of such UCC-1 Financing Statements in such filing
offices and payment of the required filing fees, the security interest in favor
of Buyer in the Opinion Collateral will be perfected and assigned of record to
the Agent.

(g) Based solely on our review of the [describe UCC Search
Reports], and assuming (i) the filing of the Financing Statements and payment of
the required filing fees in accordance with paragraph (f) and (ii) the absence
of any intervening filings between the date and time of the Search Reports and
the date and time of the filing of the Financing Statements, the security
interest of Buyer in the Opinion Collateral is prior to any security interest
granted in the Opinion Collateral by such Originator, the priority of which is
determined solely by the filing of a financing statement in the [describe filing
offices].

(h) To the best of the opinion giver's knowledge, there is no
action, suit or other proceeding against such Originator or any Affiliate of
such Originator, which would materially adversely affect the business or
financial condition of such Originator and its Affiliates taken as a whole or
which would materially adversely affect the ability of such Originator to
perform its obligations under the Receivables Sale Agreement.

(1) Such Originator is not an "investment company" as such
term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

9. A "true sale" opinion and "substantive consolidation" opinion of counsel
for Originator with respect to the transactions contemplated by the
Receivables Sale Agreement.

10. A Certificate of each Originator's [chief financial officer] certifying
that, as of the closing date, no Termination Event or Unmatured Termination
Event exists and is continuing.

11. Executed copies of (i) all consents from and authorizations by any Persons
and (ii) all waivers and amendments to existing credit facilities, that are
necessary in connection with the Receivables Sale Agreement.

12. Executed Subordinated Note by Buyer in favor of each Originator.
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13. If applicable, a direction letter executed by each Originator authorizing
Buyer (and the Agent, as its assignee) and directing warehousemen to allow
Buyer (and the Agent, as its assignee) to inspect and make copies from such
Originator's books and records maintained at off-site data processing or

storage facilities.
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iii
RECEIVABLES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS RECEIVABLES PURCHASE AGREEMENT, dated as of May 30, 2001 is
entered into by and among:

(a) Actuant Receivables Corporation, a Nevada corporation ("Seller"),

(b) Actuant Corporation, a Wisconsin corporation ("Parent"), as
initial Servicer,

(c) Blue Ridge Asset Funding Corporation, a Delaware corporation
("Blue Ridge"), and

(d) Wachovia Bank, N.A., as agent for Blue Ridge and its assigns under
the Transaction Documents and under the Liquidity Agreement (together with
its successors and assigns in such capacity, the "Agent").

Unless defined elsewhere herein, capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall
have the meanings assigned to such terms in Exhibit I.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS

Seller desires to transfer and assign Receivable Interests from time
to time.

Blue Ridge shall purchase Receivable Interests from Seller from time
to time either by issuing its Commercial Paper or by availing itself of a
Liquidity Funding to the extent available.

Wachovia Bank, N.A. has been requested and is willing to act as Agent
on behalf of Blue Ridge and its assigns in accordance with the terms
hereof.

ARTICLE TI.
PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS

Section 1.1 Purchase Facility.

(a) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement
(including, without limitation, Article VI), from time to time prior to the
Facility Termination Date, Seller may request that Blue Ridge purchase from
Seller undivided ownership interests in the Receivables and the associated
Related Security and Collections, and Blue Ridge shall make such Purchase;
provided that no Purchase shall be made by Blue Ridge if, after giving effect
thereto, either (i) the Aggregate Invested Amount would exceed the Purchase
Limit, or (ii) the aggregate of the Receivable Interests would exceed 100%. It
is the intent of Blue Ridge to fund the Purchases by the issuance of Commercial
Paper. If for any reason Blue Ridge is unable, or determines that it is
undesirable, to issue Commercial Paper to fund or maintain its investment in the
Receivable Interests, or is unable for any reason to repay such Commercial Paper
upon the

maturity thereof, Blue Ridge will avail itself of a Liquidity Funding to the
extent available. If Blue Ridge funds or refinances its investment in a
Receivable Interest through a Liquidity Funding, in lieu of paying CP Costs on
the Invested Amount pursuant to Article III hereof, Seller will pay Yield
thereon at the Alternate Base Rate or the LIBO Rate, selected in accordance with
Article IV hereof. Nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute a commitment of
Blue Ridge to issue Commercial Paper.

(b) Seller may, upon at least 10 Business Days' notice to the Agent,
terminate in whole or reduce in part, the unused portion of the Purchase Limit;
provided that each partial reduction of the Purchase Limit shall be in an amount
equal to $2,000,000 (or a larger integral multiple of $1,000,000 if in excess
thereof) .

Section 1.2 Incremental Purchases. Seller shall provide the Agent with at
least two (2) Business Days' prior written notice in a form set forth as Exhibit
II hereto of each Incremental Purchase (each, a "Purchase Notice"). Each
Purchase Notice shall be subject to Section 6.2 hereof and, except as set forth
below, shall be irrevocable and shall specify the requested Purchase Price
(which shall not be less than $1,000,000 or a larger integral multiple of
$100,000) and the Purchase Date (which, in the case of any Incremental Purchase
after the initial Purchase hereunder, shall only be on a Settlement Date).
Following receipt of a Purchase Notice, the Agent will determine whether Blue



Ridge will fund the requested Incremental Purchase through the issuance of
Commercial Paper or through a Liquidity Funding. If Blue Ridge determines to
fund an Incremental Purchase through a Liquidity Funding, Seller may cancel the
Purchase Notice or, in the absence of such a cancellation, the Incremental
Purchase will be funded through a Liquidity Funding. On each Purchase Date, upon
satisfaction of the applicable conditions precedent set forth in Article VI,
Blue Ridge shall deposit to the Facility Account, in immediately available
funds, no later than 2:00 p.m. (New York time), an amount equal to the requested
Purchase Price.

Section 1.3 Decreases. Seller shall provide the Agent with prior written
notice in conformity with the Required Notice Period (a "Reduction Notice") of
any proposed reduction of Aggregate Invested Amount. Such Reduction Notice shall
designate (i) the date (the "Proposed Reduction Date") upon which any such
reduction of Aggregate Invested Amount shall occur (which date shall give effect
to the applicable Required Notice Period), and (ii) the amount of Aggregate
Invested Amount to be reduced which shall be applied ratably to all Receivable
Interests in accordance with the respective Invested Amounts thereof (the
"Aggregate Reduction"). Only one (1) Reduction Notice shall be outstanding at
any time.

Section 1.4 Deemed Collections; Purchase Limit.

(a) If on any day:

(1) the Outstanding Balance of any Receivable is reduced or
cancelled as a result of any defective or rejected goods or services, any
Contractual Dilution or other cash discount or adjustment by any Originator
or any Affiliate thereof, or as a result of any governmental or regulatory
action, or

(ii) the Outstanding Balance of any Receivable is reduced or
canceled as a result of a setoff in respect of any claim by the Obligor
thereof (whether such claim arises out of the same or a related or an
unrelated transaction), or

(111) the Outstanding Balance of any Receivable is reduced on account
of the obligation of any Originator or any Affiliate thereof to pay to the
related Obligor any rebate or refund, or

(iv) the Outstanding Balance of any Receivable is less than the
amount included in calculating the Net Pool Balance for purposes of any
Monthly Report (for any reason other than receipt of Collections or such
Receivable becoming a Defaulted Receivable), or

(v) any of the representations or warranties of Seller set forth in
Section 5.1(g), (i), (3), (r), (s), (t) or (u) were not true when made with
respect to any Receivable,

then, on such day, Seller shall be deemed to have received a Collection of such
Receivable (A) in the case of clauses (i)-(iv) above, in the amount of such
reduction or cancellation or the difference between the actual Outstanding
Balance and the amount included in calculating such Net Pool Balance, as
applicable; and (B) in the case of clause (v) above, in the amount of the
Outstanding Balance of such Receivable and, not later than 2 Business Days
thereafter shall pay to the Agent's Account the amount of any such Collection
deemed to have been received in the same manner as actual cash collections are
distributed under the terms of this Agreement.

(b) Seller shall ensure that the Aggregate Invested Amount at no
time exceeds the Purchase Limit. If at any time the Aggregate Invested Amount
exceeds the Purchase Limit, Seller shall pay to the Agent immediately an amount
to be applied to reduce the Aggregate Invested Amount (as allocated by the
Agent), such that after giving effect to such payment the Aggregate Invested
Amount is less than or equal to the Purchase Limit.

(c) Seller shall also ensure that the Receivable Interests shall at
no time exceed in the aggregate 100%. If the aggregate of the Receivable
Interests exceeds 100%, Seller shall pay to the Agent on or before the next
succeeding Settlement Date (or, if such excess is discovered on a Settlement
Date, on such Settlement Date) an amount to be applied to reduce the Aggregate
Invested Amount (as allocated by the Agent), such that after giving effect to
such payment the aggregate of the Receivable Interests equals or is less than
100%.

Section 1.5 Payment Requirements and Computations. All amounts to be paid
or deposited by any Seller Party pursuant to any provision of this Agreement
shall be paid or deposited in accordance with the terms hereof no later than
12:00 noon (New York time) on the day when due in immediately available funds,
and if not received before 12:00 noon (New York time) shall be deemed to be



received on the next succeeding Business Day. If such amounts are payable to the
Agent for the account of Blue Ridge, they shall be paid to the Agent's Account,
for the account of Blue Ridge until otherwise notified by the Agent. All
computations of CP Costs, Yield, per annum fees calculated as part of any CP
Costs, per annum fees hereunder and per annum fees under the Fee Letter shall be
made on the basis of a year of 360 days for the
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actual number of days elapsed. If any amount hereunder shall be payable on a day
which is not a Business Day, such amount shall be payable on the next succeeding
Business Day.
ARTICLE IT.
PAYMENTS AND COLLECTIONS
Section 2.1 Payments of Recourse Obligations. Seller hereby promises to

pay the following (collectively, the "Recourse Obligations"):

(a) all amounts due and owing under Section 1.3 or 1.4 on the
dates specified therein;

(b) the fees set forth in the Fee Letter on the dates specified
therein;
(c) all accrued and unpaid Yield on the Receivable Interests

accruing Yield at the Alternate Base Rate or the Default Rate on each
Settlement Date applicable thereto;

(d) all accrued and unpaid Yield on the Receivable Interests
accruing Yield at the LIBO Rate on the last day of each Interest Period
applicable thereto;

(e) all accrued and unpaid CP Costs on the Receivable Interests
funded with Commercial Paper on each Settlement Date; and

(f) all Broken Funding Costs and Indemnified Amounts upon demand.

Section 2.2 Collections Prior to the Facility Termination Date; Repayment

(a) Prior to the Facility Termination Date, any Deemed Collections
received by the Servicer and Blue Ridge's Portion of any Collections received by
the Servicer shall be set aside and held in trust by the Servicer for the
payment of any accrued and unpaid Aggregate Unpaids or for a Reinvestment as
provided in this Section 2.2. 1If at any time any Collections are received by
the Servicer prior to the Facility Termination Date, Seller hereby requests and
Blue Ridge hereby agrees to make, simultaneously with such receipt, a
reinvestment (each, a "Reinvestment") with Blue Ridge's Portion of the balance
of each and every Collection received by the Servicer such that after giving
effect to such Reinvestment, the Invested Amount of such Receivable Interest
immediately after such receipt and corresponding Reinvestment shall be equal to
the amount of Invested Amount immediately prior to such receipt.

(b) On each Settlement Date prior to the Facility Termination
Date, the Servicer shall remit to the Agent's Account the amounts set aside
during the preceding Settlement Period that have not been subject to a
Reinvestment and (after deduction of its Servicing Fee) apply such amounts (if
not previously paid in accordance with Section 2.1) to the Aggregate Unpaids in
the order specified:

first, ratably to the payment of all accrued and unpaid CP Costs,
Yield and Broken Funding Costs (if any) that are then due and owing,

second, ratably to the payment of all accrued and unpaid fees under
the Fee Letter (if any) that are then due and owing,

third, if required under Section 1.3 or 1.4, to the ratable reduction
of Aggregate Invested Amount,

fourth, for the ratable payment of all other unpaid Recourse
Obligations, if any, that are then due and owing, and

fifth, the balance, if any, to Seller or otherwise in accordance with
Seller's instructions.

(c) If the Collections are insufficient to pay the Servicing Fee
and the Aggregate Unpaids specified above on any Settlement Date, Seller shall
make demand upon Parent for repayment of any outstanding Demand Advances in an



aggregate amount equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of such shortfall in
Collections, and (ii) the aggregate outstanding principal balance of the Demand
Advances, together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and Parent
hereby agrees to pay such amount to the Agent's Account on such Settlement Date.

Section 2.3 Repayment of Demand Advances on the Facility Termination Date;

Collections.

(a) On the Facility Termination Date, Parent hereby agrees to
repay the aggregate outstanding principal balance of all Demand Advances,
together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, to the Agent's Account,
without demand or notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived
by Parent.

(b) On the Facility Termination Date and on each day thereafter,
the Servicer shall set aside and hold in trust, for the Secured Parties, all
Collections received on each such day. On and after the Facility Termination
Date, the Servicer shall, on each Settlement Date and on each other Business Day
specified by the Agent (after deduction of any accrued and unpaid Servicing Fee
as of such date): (i) remit to the Agent's Account the amounts set aside
pursuant to the preceding two sentences, and (ii) apply such amounts to reduce
the Aggregate Unpaids as follows:

first, to the reimbursement of the Agent's costs of collection and
enforcement of this Agreement,

second, ratably to the payment of all accrued and unpaid CP Costs,
Yield and Broken Funding Costs,

third, ratably to the payment of all accrued and unpaid fees under the
Fee Letter,

fourth, to the ratable reduction of Aggregate Invested Amount,
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fifth, for the ratable payment of all other Aggregate Unpaids, and
sixth, after the Final Payout Date, to Seller.

Payment Recission. payment of any of the Aggregate Unpaids shall be
considered paid or applied hereunder to the extent that, at any time, all or any
portion of such payment or application is rescinded by application of law or
judicial authority, or must otherwise be returned or refunded for any reason.
Seller shall remain obligated for the amount of any payment or application so
rescinded, returned or refunded, and shall promptly pay to the Agent (for
application to the Person or Persons who suffered such recission, return or
refund) the full amount thereof, plus interest thereon at the Default Rate from
the date of any such recission, return or refunding.

Clean Up Call. addition to Seller's rights pursuant to Section 1.3,
Seller shall have the right (after providing written notice to the Agent in
accordance with the Required Notice Period), at any time following the reduction
of the Aggregate Invested Amount to a level that is less than 10.0% of the
original Purchase Limit, to repurchase all, but not less than all, of the then
outstanding Receivable Interests. The purchase price in respect thereof shall
be an amount equal to the Aggregate Unpaids through the date of such repurchase,
payable in immediately available funds to the Agent's Account. Such repurchase
shall be without representation, warranty or recourse of any kind by, on the
part of, or against Blue Ridge or the Agent.

ARTICLE III.
COMMERCIAL PAPER FUNDING

Section 3.1 CP Costs. Seller shall pay CP Costs with respect to the
Invested Amount of all Receivable Interests funded through the issuance of
Commercial Paper. Each Receivable Interest that is funded substantially with
Pooled Commercial Paper will accrue CP Costs each day on a pro rata basis, based
upon the percentage share that the Invested Amount in respect of such Receivable
Interest represents in relation to all assets held by Blue Ridge and funded
substantially with related Pooled Commercial Paper.

Section 3.2 Calculation of CP Costs. Not later than the 3/rd/ Business Day
immediately preceding each Monthly Reporting Date, Blue Ridge shall calculate
the aggregate amount of CP Costs applicable to its Receivable Interests for the
Calculation Period then most recently ended and shall notify Seller of such
aggregate amount.



Section 3.3 CP Costs Payments. On each Settlement Date, Seller shall pay
to the Agent (for the benefit of Blue Ridge) an aggregate amount equal to all
accrued and unpaid CP Costs in respect of the Invested Amount of all Receivable
Interests funded with Commercial Paper for the Calculation Period then most
recently ended in accordance with Article II.

Section 3.4 Default Rate. From and after the occurrence of an
Amortization Event, all Receivable Interests shall accrue Yield at the Default
Rate.

ARTICLE IV.
LIQUIDITY FUNDINGS

Section 4.1 Liquidity Fundings. Prior to the occurrence of an
Amortization Event, the outstanding Invested Amount of each Receivable Interest
funded with a Liquidity Funding shall accrue Yield for each day during its
Interest Period at either the LIBO Rate or the Alternate Base Rate in accordance
with the terms and conditions hereof. Until Seller gives the required notice to
the Agent of another Yield Rate in accordance with Section 4.4, the initial
Yield Rate for any Receivable Interest funded with a Liquidity Funding shall be
the Alternate Base Rate (unless the Default Rate is then applicable). If any
undivided interest in a Receivable Interest initially funded with Commercial
Paper is sold to the Liquidity Banks pursuant to the Liquidity Agreement, such
undivided interest in such Receivable Interest shall be deemed to have a
Interest Period commencing on the date of such sale.

Section 4.2 Yield Payments. On the Settlement Date for each Receivable
Interest that is funded with a Liquidity Funding, Seller shall pay to the Agent
(for the benefit of the Liquidity Banks) an aggregate amount equal to the
accrued and unpaid Yield thereon for the entire Interest Period of each such
Liquidity Funding in accordance with Article II.

Section 4.3 Selection and Continuation of Interest Periods.

(a) With consultation from (and approval by) the Agent, Seller
shall from time to time request Interest Periods for the Receivable Interests
funded with Liquidity Fundings, provided that if at any time any Liquidity
Funding is outstanding, Seller shall always request Interest Periods such that
at least one Interest Period shall end on the date specified in clause (A) of
the definition of Settlement Date.

(b) Seller or the Agent, upon notice to and consent by the other
received at least three (3) Business Days prior to the end of a Interest Period
(the "Terminating Tranche") for any Liquidity Funding, may, effective on the
last day of the Terminating Tranche: (i) divide any such Liquidity Funding into
multiple Liquidity Fundings, (ii) combine any such Liquidity Funding with one or
more other Liquidity Fundings that have a Terminating Tranche ending on the same
day as such Terminating Tranche or (iii) combine any such Liquidity Funding with
a new Liquidity Funding to be made by the Liquidity Banks on the day such
Terminating Tranche ends.

Section 4.4 Liquidity Funding Yield Rates. Seller may select the LIBO
Rate (subject to Section 4.5 below) or the Alternate Base Rate for each
Liquidity Funding. Seller shall by 12:00 noon (New York time): (i) at least
three (3) Business Days prior to the expiration of any Terminating Tranche with
respect to which the LIBO Rate is being requested as a new Yield Rate and (ii)
at least one (1) Business Day prior to the expiration of any Terminating Tranche
with respect to which the Alternate Base Rate is being requested as a new Yield
Rate, give the Agent irrevocable notice of the new Yield Rate for the Liquidity
Funding associated with such Terminating Tranche. Until Seller gives notice to
the Agent of another Yield Rate, the initial Yield Rate for any Receivable
Interest assigned or participated to the Liquidity Banks pursuant to the
Liquidity Agreement shall be the Alternate Base Rate (unless the Default Rate 1is
then applicable).

Section 4.5 Suspension of the LIBO Rate.

(a) If any Liquidity Bank notifies the Agent that it has
determined that funding its ratable share of the Liquidity Fundings at a LIBO
Rate would violate any applicable law, rule, regulation, or directive of any
governmental or regulatory authority, whether or not having the force of law, or
that (i) deposits of a type and maturity appropriate to match fund its Liquidity
Funding at such LIBO Rate are not available or (ii) such LIBO Rate does not
accurately reflect the cost of acquiring or maintaining a Liquidity Funding at
such LIBO Rate, then the Agent shall suspend the availability of such LIBO Rate



and require Seller to select the Alternate Base Rate for any Liquidity Funding
accruing Yield at such LIBO Rate.

(b) If less than all of the Liquidity Banks give a notice to the
Agent pursuant to Section 4.5(a), each Liquidity Bank which gave such a notice
shall be obliged, at the request of Seller, Blue Ridge or the Agent, to assign
all of its rights and obligations hereunder to (i) another Liquidity Bank or
(ii) another funding entity nominated by Seller or the Agent that is an Eligible
Assignee willing to participate in the Liquidity Agreement through the Liquidity
Termination Date in the place of such notifying Liquidity Bank; provided that
(i) the notifying Liquidity Bank receives payment in full of all Aggregate
Unpaids owing to it (whether due or accrued), and (ii) the replacement Liquidity
Bank otherwise satisfies the requirements of the Liquidity Agreement.

Section 4.6 Default Rate. From and after the occurrence of an
Amortization Event, all Liquidity Fundings shall accrue Yield at the Default
Rate.

ARTICLE V.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties of the Seller Parties. Each
Seller Party hereby represents and warrants to the Agent and Blue Ridge, as to
itself, as of the date hereof and as of the date of each Incremental Purchase
and the date of each Reinvestment that:

(a) Organization; Powers. Such Seller Party (a) is duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing or active status under the laws of the
jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has all requisite power and authority to
own its Property and to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed
to be conducted, (c) is qualified to do business in, and is in good standing in,
every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except where the
failure so to qualify could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material
Adverse Effect, and (d) has the power and authority to execute, deliver and
perform its obligations under each of the Transaction Documents and each other
agreement or instrument contemplated hereby to which it is or will be a party.

(b) Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by such
Seller Party of each of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party (a)
have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate and, if required,
stockholder action and (b) will not (i) violate (A) any provision of law,
statute, rule or regulation, or of the certificate or articles of incorporation
or other constitutive documents or by-laws of such Seller Party, (B) any order
of any Governmental Authority or (C) any provision of any indenture, agreement
or other instrument to which such Seller Party is a party or by which any of
them or any of their Property is or may be bound, (ii) be in conflict with,
result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or
both) a default under, or give rise to any right to accelerate or to require the
prepayment, repurchase or redemption of any obligation under any such indenture,
agreement or other instrument or (iii) result in the creation or imposition of
any Adverse Claim upon or with respect to any Property now owned or hereafter
acquired by such Seller Party (other than any Adverse Claim created hereunder or
under the other Transaction Documents) .

(c) No Conflict. The execution and delivery by such Seller Party of
this Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which it is a party, and
the performance of its obligations hereunder and thereunder do not contravene or
violate (i) its Organizational Documents, (ii) any law, rule or regulation
applicable to it, (iii) any restrictions under any agreement, contract or
instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its property is
bound, or (iv) any order, writ, judgment, award, injunction or decree binding on
or affecting it or its property, and do not result in the creation or imposition
of any Adverse Claim on assets of such Seller Party or its Subsidiaries (except
as created under the Transaction Documents) except, in any case, where such
contravention or violation could not reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect; and no transaction contemplated hereby requires compliance with
any bulk sales act or similar law.

(d) Governmental Approvals. Other than the filing of the financing

statements required hereunder, no action, consent or approval of, registration
or filing with or any other action by any Governmental Authority is or will be
required in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.

(e) Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.1(e), there are

not any actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before any



Governmental Authority now pending or, to the knowledge of such Seller Party,
threatened against or affecting such Seller Party or any of its Subsidiaries or
any business, Property or rights of any such Person (i) that
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involve any Transaction Document or the transactions contemplated thereby or
(ii) as to which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse determination
and that, if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected, individually or
in the aggregate, to result in a Material Adverse Effect

(f) Enforceability. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered by such Seller Party and constitutes, and each other Transaction
Document to which such Seller Party is a party when executed and delivered by
the such Seller Party will constitute, a legal, valid and binding obligation of
such Seller Party enforceable against such Seller Party in accordance with its
terms, except as such enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws relating to or limiting
creditors' rights generally and by general principles of equity (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law).

(g) Accuracy of Information. ©No information, report, financial
statement, exhibit or schedule furnished by or on behalf of such Seller Party to
the Buyer or the Agent in connection with the negotiation of any Transaction
Document or included therein or delivered pursuant thereto contained, contains
or will contain any material misstatement of fact or omitted, omits or will omit
to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were, are or will be made, not
misleading as of the date such information is dated or certified; provided that
to the extent any such information, report, financial statement, exhibit or
schedule was based upon or constitutes a forecast or projection, such Seller
Party represents only that it acted in good faith and utilized reasonable
assumptions and due care in the preparation of such information, report,
financial statement, exhibit or schedule.

(h) Use of Proceeds. No portion of the proceeds of any purchase
hereunder will be used for a purpose that violates, or would be inconsistent
with, any law, rule or regulation applicable to such Seller Party including,
without limitation, Regulation T, U or X of the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System.

(1) Good Title. Seller is the legal and beneficial owner of the
Receivables and Related Security with respect thereto, free and clear of any
Adverse Claim, except as created by the Transaction Documents. There have been
duly filed all financing statements or other similar instruments or documents
necessary under the UCC (or any comparable law) of all appropriate jurisdictions
to perfect Seller's ownership interest in each Receivable, its Collections and
the Related Security.

(3) Perfection. This Agreement is effective to create a valid
security interest in favor of the Agent for the benefit of the Secured Parties
in the Purchased Assets to secure payment of the Aggregate Unpaids, free and
clear of any Adverse Claim except as created by the Transactions Documents.
There have been duly filed all financing statements or other similar instruments
or documents necessary under the UCC (or any comparable law) of all appropriate
jurisdictions to perfect the Agent's (on behalf of the Secured Parties) security
interest in the Purchased Assets. Such Seller Party's jurisdiction of
organization is a jurisdiction whose law
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generally requires information concerning the existence of a nonpossessory
security interest to be made generally available in a filing, record or
registration system as a condition or result of such a security interest's
obtaining priority over the rights of a lien creditor which respect to
collateral.

(k) Places of Business and Locations of Records. The principal
places of business and chief executive office of such Seller Party and the
offices where it keeps all of its Records are located at the address(es) listed
on Exhibit III or such other locations of which the Agent has been notified in
accordance with Section 7.2(a) in jurisdictions where all action required by
Section 13.3(a) has been taken and completed. Seller's Federal Employer
Identification Number is correctly set forth on Exhibit III.

(1) Collections. The conditions and requirements set forth in
Section 7.1(j) and Section 8.2 have at all times been satisfied and duly
performed. The names, addresses and jurisdictions of organization of all



Collection Banks, together with the account numbers of the Collection Accounts
of Seller at each Collection Bank and the post office box number of each Lock-
Box, are listed on Exhibit IV. Seller has not granted any Person, other than the
Agent as contemplated by this Agreement, dominion and control of any Lock-Box or
Collection Account, or the right to take dominion and control of any such Lock-
Box or Collection Account at a future time or upon the occurrence of a future
event.

(m) Material Adverse Effect. (i) The initial Servicer represents
and warrants that since August 31, 2000, no event has occurred that would have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition or operations of the initial
Servicer and its Subsidiaries or the ability of the initial Servicer to perform
its obligations under this Agreement, and (ii) Seller represents and warrants
that since the date of this Agreement, no event has occurred that would have a
material adverse effect on (A) the financial condition or operations of Seller,
(B) the ability of Seller to perform its obligations under the Transaction
Documents, or (C) the collectibility of the Receivables generally or any
material portion of the Receivables.

(n) Names. The name in which Seller has executed this Agreement is
identical to the name of Seller as indicated on the public record of its state
of organization which shows Seller to have been organized. In the past five (5)
years, Seller has not used any corporate names, trade names or assumed names
other than the name in which it has executed this Agreement.

(o) Ownership of Seller. Parent owns, directly or indirectly, 100%
of the issued and outstanding Equity Interests of Seller, free and clear of any
Adverse Claim. Such Equity Interests are validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable, and there are no options, warrants or other rights to acquire
securities of Seller.

(p) Not a Holding Company or an Investment Company. Such Seller
Party is not a "holding company" or a "subsidiary holding company" of a "holding
company" within the meaning of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935,
as amended, or any successor statute. Such Seller Party is not an "investment
company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended,
or any successor statute.
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(a) Compliance with Law. Such Seller Party has complied with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, writs, judgments, injunctions,
decrees or awards to which it may be subject, except where the failure to so
comply could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Each
Receivable, together with the Contract related thereto, does not contravene any
laws, rules or regulations applicable thereto (including, without limitation,
laws, rules and regulations relating to truth in lending, fair credit billing,
fair credit reporting, equal credit opportunity, fair debt collection practices
and privacy), and no part of such Contract is in violation of any such law, rule
or regulation, except where such contravention or violation could not reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(r) Compliance with Credit and Collection Policy. Such Seller Party
has complied in all material respects with the Credit and Collection Policy with
regard to each Receivable and the related Contract, and has not made any
material change to such Credit and Collection Policy, except such material
change as to which the Agent has been notified in accordance with Section
7.1(a) (vii) .

(s) Payments to Applicable Originator. With respect to each
Receivable transferred to Seller under the Receivables Sale Agreement, Seller
has given reasonably equivalent value to the applicable Originator in
consideration therefor and such transfer was not made for or on account of an
antecedent debt. No transfer by any Originator of any Receivable under the
Receivables Sale Agreement is or may be voidable under any section of the
Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978 (11 U.S.C. (S) (S) 101 et seq.), as amended.

(t) Enforceability of Contracts. Each Contract with respect to each
Receivable is effective to create, and has created, a legal, valid and binding
obligation of the related Obligor to pay the Outstanding Balance of the
Receivable created thereunder and any accrued interest thereon, enforceable
against the Obligor in accordance with its terms, except as such enforcement may
be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar
laws relating to or limiting creditors' rights generally and by general
principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a
proceeding in equity or at law).



(u) Eligible Receivables. Each Receivable included in the Net Pool
Balance as an Eligible Receivable on the date of any Monthly Report was an
Eligible Receivable on such date.

(v) Purchase Limit and Maximum Receivable Interests. Immediately
after giving effect to each Incremental Purchase hereunder, the Aggregate
Invested Amount is less than or equal to the Purchase Limit and the aggregate of
the Receivable Interests does not exceed 100%.

(w) Accounting. The manner in which such Seller Party accounts for
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Receivables Sale
Agreement does not jeopardize the true sale analysis.
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ARTICLE VI.
CONDITIONS OF PURCHASES

Section 6.1 Conditions Precedent to Initial Incremental Purchase. The
initial Incremental Purchase of a Receivable Interest under this Agreement is
subject to the conditions precedent that (a) the Agent shall have received on or
before the date of such Purchase those documents listed on Schedule A and (b)
the Agent shall have received all fees and expenses required to be paid on such
date pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Fee Letter.

Section 6.2 Conditions Precedent to All Purchases and Reinvestments.
Each Incremental Purchase and each Reinvestment shall be subject to the further
conditions precedent that (a) in the case of each such Purchase: (i) the
Servicer shall have delivered to the Agent on or prior to the date of such
Purchase, in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent, all Monthly Reports
as and when due under Section 8.5 and (ii) upon the Agent's request, the
Servicer shall have delivered to the Agent at least three (3) Business Days
prior to such Purchase an interim Monthly Report showing the amount of Eligible
Receivables; (b) the Agent shall have received such other approvals, opinions or
documents as it may reasonably request and (c) on each Purchase Date, the
following statements shall be true (and acceptance of the proceeds of such
Incremental Purchase or Reinvestment shall be deemed a representation and
warranty by Seller that such statements are then true):

(i) the representations and warranties set forth in
Section 5.1 are true and correct on and as of the date of such Incremental
Purchase or Reinvestment as though made on and as of such Purchase Date;

(i) no event has occurred and is continuing, or would
result from such Incremental Purchase or Reinvestment, that will constitute an
Amortization Event, and no event has occurred and is continuing, or would result
from such Incremental Purchase or Reinvestment, that would constitute an
Unmatured Amortization Event; and

(iii) the Aggregate Invested Amount does not exceed the
Purchase Limit and the aggregate Receivable Interests do not exceed 100%.

It is expressly understood that each Reinvestment shall, unless otherwise
directed by the Agent or Blue Ridge, occur automatically on each day that the
Servicer shall receive any Collections without the requirement that any further
action be taken on the part of any Person and notwithstanding the failure of
Seller to satisfy any of the foregoing conditions precedent in respect of such
Reinvestment. The failure of Seller to satisfy any of the foregoing conditions
precedent in respect of any Reinvestment shall give rise to a right of the
Agent, which right may be exercised at any time on demand of the Agent, to
rescind the related purchase and direct Seller to pay to the Agent's Account,
for the benefit of Blue Ridge, an amount equal to the Collections prior to the
Facility Termination Date that shall have been applied to the affected
Reinvestment.
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ARTICLE VII.
COVENANTS
Section 7.1 Affirmative Covenants of the Seller Parties. Until the date

on which the Aggregate Unpaids have been indefeasibly paid in full and this
Agreement terminates in accordance with its terms, each Seller Party hereby
covenants, as to itself, as set forth below:

Financial Reporting. Seller Party will maintain, for itself and



each of its Subsidiaries, a system of accounting established and administered in
accordance with GAAP, and furnish or cause to be furnished to the Agent:

(1) Annual Reporting. Within 90 days after the end of
each fiscal year of Parent: (A) Parent's balance sheet and related
statements of income and cash flows showing the financial condition of
Parent and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the close of such fiscal
year and the results of their operations during such year, all in
reasonable detail and audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or other
independent public accountants of recognized national standing and
accompanied by an opinion of such accountants (which shall not be
qualified in any material respect) to the effect that such consolidated
financial statements fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition and results of operations of Parent and its
Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently
applied, setting forth in each case in comparative form the corresponding
statements for the preceding fiscal year; and (B) comparable unaudited
financial statements for Seller.

(ii) Quarterly Reporting. Within 45 days after the end of
each of the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year of Parent:
(A) Parent's consolidated balance sheet and related statements of income
and cash flows showing the financial condition of Parent and its
consolidated Subsidiaries as of the close of such fiscal quarter and the
results of their operations during such fiscal quarter and the then
elapsed portion of the fiscal year, all in reasonable detail and
certified by one of its Financial Officers as fairly presenting in all
material respects the financial condition and results of operations of
Parent and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in
accordance with GAAP consistently applied, subject to normal year-end
audit adjustments, setting forth in each case in comparative form the
corresponding statements for the corresponding period in the preceding
fiscal year, and (B) comparable unaudited financial statements for
Seller.

(iii) Compliance Certificate. Together with the financial
statements required hereunder, a compliance certificate in substantially
the form of Exhibit V signed by a Financial Officer of such Seller Party
and dated the date of such annual financial statement or such quarterly
financial statement, as the case may be.

(iv) Shareholders Statements and Reports. Promptly upon
the furnishing thereof to the shareholders of Parent, copies of all
financial statements, reports and proxy statements so furnished.
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(v) S.E.C. Filings. Promptly after the same become
publicly available, copies of all periodic and other reports, proxy
statements and other materials filed by Parent or any Subsidiary with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or any Governmental Authority
succeeding to any or all of the functions of said Commission, or with any
national securities exchange, or distributed to holders of its
Indebtedness pursuant to the terms of the documentation governing such
Indebtedness (or any trustee, agent or other representative therefor), as
the case may be.

(vi) Copies of Notices. Promptly upon its receipt of any
notice, request for consent, financial statements, certification, report
or other communication under or in connection with any Transaction
Document from any Person other than the Agent or Blue Ridge, copies of
the same.

(vii) Change in Credit and Collection Policy. At least
thirty (30) days prior to the effectiveness of any material change in or
material amendment to the Credit and Collection Policy, a copy of the
Credit and Collection Policy then in effect and a notice (A) indicating
such proposed change or amendment, and (B) if such proposed change or
amendment would be reasonably likely to adversely affect the
collectibility of the Receivables or decrease the credit quality of any
newly created Receivables, requesting the Agent's consent thereto.

(viii) Other Information. Promptly, from time to time,
such other information, documents, records or reports relating to the
Receivables originated by such Originator or the condition or operations,
financial or otherwise, of such Originator as Buyer (or its assigns) may
from time to time reasonably request in order to protect the interests of



Buyer (and its assigns) under or as contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) Notices. Such Seller Party will notify the Agent in writing
of any of the following promptly upon learning of the occurrence thereof,
describing the same and, if applicable, the steps being taken with respect
thereto:

(1) Amortization Events or Unmatured Amortization

Events. The occurrence of each Amortization Event and each Unmatured
Amortization Event, by a statement of a Financial Officer of such Seller
Party.

(ii) Material Adverse Effect. The occurrence of any
event or condition that has had, or could reasonably be expected to have,
a Material Adverse Effect.

(111) Termination Date. The occurrence of the
"Termination Date" under and as defined in the Receivables Sale
Agreement.

(iv) Defaults Under Other Agreements. The occurrence of
an event of default (as to which any notice period or cure period has
expired without cure) under any other financing arrangement pursuant to
which such Seller Party is a debtor or an obligor which, in the case of a
Seller Party other than Seller, involves a line of credit or
Indebtedness, in each case, of $1 million or more.
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(v) Notices under Receivables Sale Agreement. Copies of

all notices delivered under the Receivables Sale Agreement.

Downgrade of Servicer. downgrade in the rating of any Indebtedness
of Servicer by S&P or Moody's, setting forth the Indebtedness affected
and the nature of such change.

(vi) ERISA Events. The occurrence of any ERISA Event.

(vii) Change in Credit and Collection Policy. At least
thirty (30) days prior to the effectiveness of any material change in or
material amendment to the Credit and Collection Policy, a copy of the
Credit and Collection Policy then in effect and a notice (A) indicating
such change or amendment, and (B) if such proposed change or amendment
would be reasonably likely to adversely affect the collectibility of the
Receivables or decrease the credit quality of any newly created
Receivables, requesting the Agent's consent thereto.

(c) Compliance with Laws and Preservation of Corporate

Existence. Such Seller Party will comply in all respects with all applicable

laws, rules, regulations, orders, writs, judgments, injunctions, decrees or
awards to which it may be subject, except where the failure to so comply could
not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Such Seller Party
will preserve and maintain its corporate existence, rights, franchises and
privileges in the jurisdiction of its incorporation, and qualify and remain
qualified in good standing as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction where
its business is conducted, except where the failure to so preserve and maintain
or qualify could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Audits. Seller Party will furnish to the Agent from time to time
such information with respect to it and the Receivables as the Agent may
reasonably request. Such Seller Party will, from time to time during regular
business hours as requested by the Agent upon reasonable notice and at the sole
cost of such Seller Party, permit the Agent, or its agents or representatives
(and shall cause each Originator to permit the Agent or its agents or
representatives): (i) to examine and make copies of and abstracts from all
Records in the possession or under the control of such Person relating to the
Purchased Assets, including, without limitation, the related Contracts, and (ii)
to visit the offices and properties of such Person for the purpose of examining
such materials described in clause (i) above, and to discuss matters relating to
such Person's financial condition or the Purchased Assets or any Person's
performance under any of the Transaction Documents or any Person's performance
under the Contracts and, in each case, with any of the officers or employees of



Seller or the Servicer having knowledge of such matters (each of the foregoing
examinations and visits, a "Review"); provided, however, that, so long as no
Amortization Event has occurred and is continuing, (A) the Seller Parties shall
only be responsible for the costs and expenses of one (1) Review in any one
calendar year, and (B) the Agent will not request more than four (4) Reviews in
any one calendar year.
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(d) Keeping and Marking of Records and Books.
(1) The Servicer will (and will cause each Originator to) maintain

and implement administrative and operating procedures (including, without
limitation, an ability to recreate records evidencing Receivables in the
event of the destruction of the originals thereof), and keep and maintain
all documents, books, records and other information reasonably necessary or
advisable for the collection of all Receivables (including, without
limitation, records adequate to permit the immediate identification of each
new Receivable and all Collections of and adjustments to each existing
Receivable). The Servicer will (and will cause each Originator to) give the
Agent notice of any material change in the administrative and operating
procedures referred to in the previous sentence.

(11) Such Seller Party will (and will cause each Originator to): (A)
on or prior to the date hereof, mark its standard monthly accounts
receivable aging reports regarding the Receivables with a legend,
acceptable to the Agent, describing the Agent's security interest in the
Purchased Assets and (B) upon the request of the Agent following the
occurrence and during the continuance of an Amortization Event: (x) mark
each Contract with a legend describing the Agent's security interest and
(y) deliver to the Agent all Contracts (including, without limitation, all
multiple originals of any such Contract constituting an instrument, a
certificated security or chattel paper) relating to the Receivables.

(e) Compliance with Contracts and Credit and Collection Policy.
Such Seller Party will (and will cause each Originator to) timely and fully (i)
perform and comply with all provisions, covenants and other promises required to
be observed by it under the Contracts related to the Receivables, and (ii)
comply in all respects with the Credit and Collection Policy in regard to each
Receivable and the related Contract.

(f) Performance and Enforcement of Receivables Sale Agreement.
Seller will, and will require each Originator to, perform each of their
respective obligations and undertakings under and pursuant to the Receivables
Sale Agreement, will purchase Receivables thereunder in strict compliance with
the terms thereof and will vigorously enforce the rights and remedies accorded
to Seller under the Receivables Sale Agreement. Seller will take all actions to
perfect and enforce its rights and interests (and the rights and interests of
the Agent, as Seller's assignee) under the Receivables Sale Agreement as the
Agent may from time to time reasonably request, including, without limitation,
making claims to which it may be entitled under any indemnity, reimbursement or
similar provision contained in the Receivables Sale Agreement.

(g) Ownership. Seller will (or will cause each Originator to) take
all necessary action to (i) vest legal and equitable title to the Purchased
Assets purchased under the Receivables Sale Agreement irrevocably in Seller,
free and clear of any Adverse Claims (other than Adverse Claims in favor of the
Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties) including, without limitation,
the filing of all financing statements or other similar instruments or documents
necessary under the UCC (or any comparable law) of all appropriate jurisdictions
to
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perfect Seller's interest in such Purchased Assets and such other action to
perfect, protect or more fully evidence the interest of Seller therein as the
Agent may reasonably request), and (ii) establish and maintain, in favor of the
Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, a valid and perfected first
priority security interest in all Purchased Assets, free and clear of any
Adverse Claims, including, without limitation, the filing of all financing
statements or other similar instruments or documents necessary under the UCC (or
any comparable law) of all appropriate jurisdictions to perfect the Agent's (for
the benefit of the Secured Parties) security interest in the Purchased Assets
and such other action to perfect, protect or more fully evidence the interest of
the Agent for the benefit of the Secured Parties as the Agent may reasonably
request.

(h) Reliance. Seller acknowledges that the Agent and Blue Ridge are
entering into the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in reliance upon
Seller's identity as a legal entity that is separate from each Originator.



Therefore, from and after the date of execution and delivery of this Agreement,
Seller shall take all reasonable steps, including, without limitation, all steps
that the Agent or Blue Ridge may from time to time reasonably request, to
maintain Seller's identity as a separate legal entity and to make it manifest to
third parties that Seller is an entity with assets and liabilities distinct from
those of each Originator and any Affiliates thereof (other than Seller) and not
just a division of any Originator or any such Affiliate. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing and in addition to the other covenants set forth
herein, Seller will:

(A) conduct its own business in its own name and
require that all full-time employees of Seller, if any, identify themselves as
such and not as employees of any Originator (including, without limitation, by
means of providing appropriate employees with business or identification cards
identifying such employees as Seller's employees);

(B) compensate all employees, consultants and agents
directly, from Seller's own funds, for services provided to Seller by such
employees, consultants and agents and, to the extent any employee, consultant or
agent of Seller is also an employee, consultant or agent of any Originator or
any Affiliate thereof, allocate the compensation of such employee, consultant or
agent between Seller and such Originator or such Affiliate, as applicable, on a
basis that reflects the services rendered to Seller and such Originator or such
Affiliate, as applicable;

(C) clearly identify its offices (by signage or
otherwise) as its offices and, if such office is located in the offices of any
Originator, Seller shall lease such office at a fair market rent;

(D) have a separate telephone number, which will be
answered only in its name and separate stationery and checks in its own name;

(E) conduct all transactions with each Originator and
the Servicer (including, without limitation, any delegation of its obligations
hereunder as Servicer) strictly on an arm's-length basis, allocate all overhead
expenses (including, without limitation, telephone and other utility charges)
for items shared between Seller and such Originator on the
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basis of actual use to the extent practicable and, to the extent such allocation
is not practicable, on a basis reasonably related to actual use;

(F) at all times have a Board of Directors consisting
of three members, at least one member of which is an Independent Director;

(G) observe all corporate formalities as a distinct
entity, and ensure that all corporate actions relating to (A) the selection,
maintenance or replacement of the Independent Director, (B) the dissolution or
liquidation of Seller or (C) the initiation of, participation in, acquiescence
in or consent to any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar
proceeding involving Seller, are duly authorized by unanimous vote of its Board
of Directors (including the Independent Director);

(H) maintain Seller's books and records separate from
those of each Originator and any Affiliate thereof and otherwise readily
identifiable as its own assets rather than assets of any Originator or any
Affiliate thereof;

(I) prepare its financial statements separately from
those of each Originator and insure that any consolidated financial statements
of any Originator or any Affiliate thereof that include Seller and that are
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any other governmental
agency have notes clearly stating that Seller is a separate corporate entity and
that its assets will be available first and foremost to satisfy the claims of
the creditors of Seller;

(J) except as herein specifically otherwise provided,
to the maximum extent within Seller's control, maintain the funds or other
assets of Seller separate from, and not commingled with, those of any Originator
or any Affiliate thereof and only maintain bank accounts or other depository
accounts to which Seller alone is the account party, into which Seller alone
makes deposits and from which Seller alone (or the Agent hereunder) has the
power to make withdrawals;

(K) pay all of Seller's operating expenses from
Seller's own assets (except for certain payments by any Originator or other
Persons pursuant to allocation arrangements that comply with the requirements of
this Section 7.1(1));

(L) operate its business and activities such that: it
does not engage in any business or activity of any kind, or enter into any
transaction or indenture, mortgage, instrument, agreement, contract, lease or
other undertaking, other than the transactions contemplated and authorized by
this Agreement and the Receivables Sale Agreement; and does not create, incur,



guarantee, assume or suffer to exist any indebtedness or other liabilities,
whether direct or contingent, other than (1) as a result of the endorsement of
negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the
ordinary course of business, (2) the incurrence of obligations under this
Agreement, (3) the incurrence of obligations, as expressly contemplated in the
Receivables Sale Agreement, to make payment to the applicable Originator
thereunder for the purchase of Receivables from such Originator under the
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Receivables Sale Agreement, and (4) the incurrence of operating expenses in the
ordinary course of business of the type otherwise contemplated by this
Agreement;

(M) maintain its corporate charter in conformity with
this Agreement, such that it does not amend, restate, supplement or otherwise
modify its Organizational Documents in any respect that would impair its ability
to comply with the terms or provisions of any of the Transaction Documents,
including, without limitation, Section 7.1(i) of this Agreement;

(N) maintain the effectiveness of, and continue to
perform under the Receivables Sale Agreement and the Performance Undertaking,
such that it does not amend, restate, supplement, cancel, terminate or otherwise
modify the Receivables Sale Agreement or the Performance Undertaking, or give
any consent, waiver, directive or approval thereunder or waive any default,
action, omission or breach under the Receivables Sale Agreement or the
Performance Undertaking or otherwise grant any indulgence thereunder, without
(in each case) the prior written consent of the Agent;

(O) maintain its corporate separateness such that it
does not merge or consolidate with or into, or convey, transfer, lease or
otherwise dispose of (whether in one transaction or in a series of transactions,
and except as otherwise contemplated herein) all or substantially all of its
assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) to, or acquire all or
substantially all of the assets of, any Person, nor at any time create, have,
acquire, maintain or hold any interest in any Subsidiary.

(P) maintain at all times the Required Capital Amount
(as defined in the Receivables Sale Agreement) and refrain from making any
dividend, distribution, redemption of capital stock or payment of any
subordinated indebtedness which would cause the Required Capital Amount to cease
to be so maintained; and

(Q) take such other actions as are necessary on its
part to ensure that the facts and assumptions set forth in the opinion issued by
Quarles & Brady LLP, as counsel for Seller, in connection with the closing or
initial Purchase under this Agreement and relating to substantive consolidation
issues, and in the certificates accompanying such opinion, remain true and
correct in all material respects at all times.

(1) Collections. Such Seller Party will cause (1) all proceeds
from all Lock-Boxes to be directly deposited by a Collection Bank into a
Collection Account and (2) each Lock-Box and Collection Account to be subject at
all times to a Collection Account Agreement that is in full force and effect;
provided, however, that unless otherwise requested by the Agent assignee), no
Collection Account Agreement will be required with respect to any Lock-Box or
Collection Account at Bank of America, N.A. so long as the existing Lock-Box and
Collection Account at such bank are closed by September 15, 2001. In the event
any payments relating to the Purchased Assets are remitted directly to Seller or
any Affiliate of Seller, Seller will remit (or will cause all such payments to
be remitted) directly to a Collection Bank and deposited into a Collection
Account within two (2) Business Days following receipt thereof, and, at all
times prior to such remittance, Seller will itself hold or, if applicable, will
cause such payments to be
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held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the Agent and Blue Ridge.

Seller will maintain exclusive ownership, dominion and control (subject to the
terms of this Agreement) of each Lock-Box and Collection Account and shall not
grant the right to take dominion and control of any Lock-Box or Collection
Account at a future time or upon the occurrence of a future event to any Person,
except to the Agent as contemplated by this Agreement.

(3) Taxes. Such Seller Party will file all tax returns and reports
required by law to be filed by it and will promptly pay all taxes and
governmental charges at any time owing, except any such taxes which are not yet
delinquent or are being diligently contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings and for which adequate reserves in accordance with GAAP shall have
been set aside on its books. Seller will pay when due any taxes payable in
connection with the Receivables, exclusive of taxes on or measured by income or
gross receipts of the Agent or Blue Ridge.



(k) Payment to Applicable Originator. With respect to any
Receivable purchased by Seller from any Originator, such sale shall be effected
under, and in strict compliance with the terms of, the Receivables Sale
Agreement, including, without limitation, the terms relating to the amount and
timing of payments to be made to such Originator in respect of the purchase
price for such Receivable.

Section 7.2 Negative Covenants of the Seller Parties. Until the date on
which the Aggregate Unpaids have been indefeasibly paid in full and this
Agreement terminates in accordance with its terms, each Seller Party hereby
covenants, as to itself, that:

(a) Name Change, Offices and Records. Such Seller Party will not
change its name, identity or structure (within the meaning of any applicable
enactment of the UCC), relocate its chief executive office at any time while the
location of its chief executive office is relevant to perfection of the Agent's
security interest, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, in the Receivables,
Related Security and Collections, or change any office where Records are kept
unless it shall have: (i) given the Agent at least forty-five (45) days' prior
written notice thereof and (ii) delivered to the Agent all financing statements,
instruments and other documents requested by the Agent in connection with such
change or relocation.

(b) Change in Payment Instructions to Obligors. Except as may be
required by the Agent pursuant to Section 8.2 (b), such Seller Party will not add
or terminate any bank as a Collection Bank, or make any change in the
instructions to Obligors regarding payments to be made to any Lock-Box or
Collection Account, unless the Agent shall have received, at least ten (10) days
before the proposed effective date therefor, (i) written notice of such
addition, termination or change and evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Agent that all Adverse Claims to such Lock-Box or Collection Account have been
released and (ii) with respect to the addition of a Collection Bank or a
Collection Account or Lock-Box, an executed Collection Account Agreement with
respect to the new Collection Account or Lock-Box; provided, however, that the
Servicer may make changes in instructions to Obligors regarding payments if such
new instructions require such Obligor to make payments to another existing
Collection Account.
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(c) Modifications to Contracts and Credit and Collection Policy. Such
Seller Party will not, and will not permit any Originator to, make any material
change to the Credit and Collection Policy that could materially adversely
affect the collectibility of the Receivables or decrease the credit quality of
any newly created Receivables. Except as provided in Section 8.2(d), the
Servicer will not, and will not permit any Originator to, extend, amend or
otherwise modify the terms of any Receivable or any Contract related thereto
other than in accordance with the Credit and Collection Policy.

(d) Sales, Liens. Seller will not sell, assign (by operation of law
or otherwise) or otherwise dispose of, or grant any option with respect to, or
create or suffer to exist any Adverse Claim upon (including, without limitation,
the filing of any financing statement) or with respect to, any of the Purchased
Assets, or assign any right to receive income with respect thereto (other than,
in each case, the creation of a security interest therein in favor of the Agent
as provided for herein), and Seller will defend the right, title and interest of
the Secured Parties in, to and under any of the foregoing property, against all
claims of third parties claiming through or under Seller or any Originator.

(e) Use of Proceeds. Seller will not use the proceeds of the
Purchases for any purpose other than (i) paying for Receivables and Related
Security under and in accordance with the Receivables Sale Agreement, including
without limitation, making payments on the Subordinated Notes to the extent
permitted thereunder and under the Receivables Sale Agreement, (ii) making
Demand Advances to Parent at any time prior to the Facility Termination Date
while it is acting as Servicer and no Amortization Event or Unmatured
Amortization Event exists and is continuing, (iii) paying its ordinary and
necessary operating expenses when and as due, and (iv) making Restricted Junior
Payments to the extent permitted under this Agreement.

(f) Termination Date Determination. Seller will not designate the
Termination Date (as defined in the Receivables Sale Agreement), or send any
written notice to any Originator in respect thereof, without the prior written
consent of the Agent, except with respect to the occurrence of such Termination
Date arising pursuant to Section 5.1(d) of the Receivables Sale Agreement.

(g) Restricted Junior Payments. Seller will not make any Restricted



Junior Payment if after giving effect thereto, Seller's Net Worth (as defined in
the Receivables Sale Agreement) would be less than the Required Capital Amount
(as defined in the Receivables Sale Agreement) .

(h) Seller Indebtedness. Seller will not incur or permit to exist any
Indebtedness or liability on account of deposits except: (i) the Aggregate
Unpaids, (ii) the Subordinated Loans, and (iii) other current accounts payable
arising in the ordinary course of business and not overdue.

(i) Prohibition on Additional Negative Pledges. No Seller Party will
enter into or assume any agreement (other than this Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents) prohibiting the creation or assumption of any Adverse
Claim upon the Purchased Assets except as contemplated by the Transaction
Documents, or otherwise prohibiting or restricting any
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transaction contemplated hereby or by the other Transaction Documents, and no
Seller Party will enter into or assume any agreement creating any Adverse Claim
upon the Subordinated Notes.

ARTICLE VIII.
ADMINISTRATION AND COLLECTION

Section 8.1 Designation of Servicer.

(a) The servicing, administration and collection of the
Receivables shall be conducted by such Person (the "Servicer") so designated
from time to time in accordance with this Section 8.1. Parent is hereby
designated as, and hereby agrees to perform the duties and obligations of, the
Servicer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Agent may at any time
following the occurrence and during the continuance of an Amortization Event,
designate as Servicer any Person to succeed Parent or any successor Servicer;
provided that the Rating Agency Condition is satisfied.

(b) Parent may delegate, and Parent hereby advises the Agent and
Blue Ridge that it has delegated, to the other Originators, as sub-servicers of
the Servicer, certain of its duties and responsibilities as Servicer hereunder
in respect of the Receivables originated by such other Originator. Without the
prior written consent of the Agent and the Required Liquidity Banks, Parent
shall not be permitted to delegate any of its duties or responsibilities as
Servicer to any Person other than (i) the other Originators, and (ii) with
respect to certain Defaulted Receivables, outside collection agencies in
accordance with its customary practices (each other Originator and outside
collection agency, when acting as such a delegate, a "Permitted Sub-Servicer").
No Permitted Sub-Servicer shall be permitted to further delegate to any other
Person any of the duties or responsibilities of the Servicer delegated to it by
Parent. If at any time the Agent shall designate as Servicer any Person other
than Parent, all duties and responsibilities theretofore delegated by Parent to
the other Originators may, at the discretion of the Agent, be terminated
forthwith on notice given by the Agent to Parent and to Seller and the other
Originators.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing subsection (b): (i) Parent shall
be and remain primarily liable to the Agent and Blue Ridge for the full and
prompt performance of all duties and responsibilities of the Servicer hereunder
and (ii) the Agent and Blue Ridge shall be entitled to deal exclusively with
Parent in matters relating to the discharge by the Servicer of its duties and
responsibilities hereunder. The Agent and Blue Ridge shall not be required to
give notice, demand or other communication to any Person other than Parent in
order for communication to the Servicer and its sub-servicer or other delegate
with respect thereto to be accomplished. Parent, at all times that it is the
Servicer, shall be responsible for providing any sub-servicer or other delegate
of the Servicer with any notice given to the Servicer under this Agreement.

Section 8.2 Duties of Servicer.

(a) The Servicer shall take or cause to be taken all such actions
as may be necessary or advisable to collect each Receivable from time to time,
all in accordance with
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applicable laws, rules and regulations, with reasonable care and diligence, and

in accordance with the Credit and Collection Policy.

(b) The Servicer will instruct all Obligors to pay all Collections
directly to a Lock-Box or Collection Account. The Servicer shall effect a



Collection Account Agreement substantially in the form of the agreement
contained in Exhibit VI (or in a form otherwise acceptable to the Agent) with
each bank party to a Collection Account at any time; provided, however, that
unless otherwise requested by the Agent, no Collection Account Agreement will be
required with respect to any Lock-Box or Collection Account at Bank of America,
N.A. so long as the existing Lock-Box and Collection Account at such bank are
closed by September 15, 2001. In the case of any remittances received in any
Lock-Box or Collection Account that shall have been identified, to the
satisfaction of the Servicer, to not constitute Collections or other proceeds of
the Receivables or the Related Security, the Servicer shall promptly remit such
items to the Person identified to it as being the owner of such remittances.
From and after the date the Agent delivers to any Collection Bank a Collection
Notice pursuant to Section 8.3, the Agent may request that the Servicer, and the
Servicer thereupon promptly shall instruct all Obligors with respect to the
Receivables, to remit all payments thereon to a new depositary account specified
by the Agent and, at all times thereafter, Seller and the Servicer shall not
deposit or otherwise credit, and shall not permit any other Person to deposit or
otherwise credit to such new depositary account any cash or payment item other
than Collections.

(c) The Servicer shall administer the Collections in accordance with
the procedures described herein and in Article II. The Servicer shall set aside
and hold in trust for the account of Seller and Blue Ridge their respective
shares of the Collections in accordance with Article II. The Servicer shall,
upon the request of the Agent, segregate, in a manner acceptable to the Agent,
all cash, checks and other instruments received by it from time to time
constituting Collections from the general funds of the Servicer or Seller prior
to the remittance thereof in accordance with Article II. If the Servicer shall
be required to segregate Collections pursuant to the preceding sentence, the
Servicer shall segregate and deposit with a bank designated by the Agent such
allocable share of Collections of Receivables set aside for Blue Ridge on the
first Business Day following receipt by the Servicer of such Collections, duly
endorsed or with duly executed instruments of transfer.

(d) The Servicer may, in accordance with the Credit and Collection
Policy, extend the maturity of any Receivable or adjust the Outstanding Balance
of any Receivable as the Servicer determines to be appropriate to maximize
Collections thereof; provided, however, that such extension or adjustment shall
not alter the status of such Receivable as a Delinquent Receivable or Defaulted
Receivable or limit the rights of the Agent or Blue Ridge under this Agreement.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, following the
occurrence and during the continuance of an Amortization Event, the Agent shall
have the absolute and unlimited right to direct the Servicer to commence or
settle any legal action with respect to any Receivable or to foreclose upon or
repossess any Related Security.

(e) The Servicer shall hold in trust for Seller and the Agent and
Blue Ridge all Records that (i) evidence or relate to the Receivables, the
related Contracts and Related Security
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or (ii) are otherwise necessary or desirable to collect the Receivables and
shall, as soon as practicable upon demand of the Agent, deliver or make
available to the Agent all such Records, at a place selected by the Agent. The
Servicer shall, as soon as practicable following receipt thereof turn over to
rightful owner or its designee any cash collections or other cash proceeds
received with respect to Indebtedness not constituting Receivables. The Servicer
shall, from time to time at the request of the Agent or Blue Ridge, furnish to
Blue Ridge (promptly after any such request) a calculation of the amounts set
aside for Blue Ridge pursuant to Article II.

(f) Any payment by an Obligor in respect of any indebtedness owed
by it to Originator or Seller shall, except as otherwise specified by such
Obligor or otherwise required by contract or law and unless otherwise instructed
by the Agent, be applied as a Collection of any Receivable of such Obligor
(starting with the oldest such Receivable) to the extent of any amounts then due
and payable thereunder before being applied to any other receivable or other
obligation of such Obligor.

Section 8.3 Collection Notices. The Agent is authorized at any time to
date and to deliver to the Collection Banks the Collection Notices. Seller
hereby transfers to the Agent for the benefit of Blue Ridge, effective when the
Agent delivers such notice, the exclusive ownership and control of each Lock-Box
and the Collection Accounts. In case any authorized signatory of Seller whose
signature appears on a Collection Account Agreement shall cease to have such
authority before the delivery of such notice, such Collection Notice shall
nevertheless be valid as if such authority had remained in force. Seller hereby
authorizes the Agent, and agrees that the Agent shall be entitled (i) at any
time after delivery of the Collection Notices, to endorse Seller's name on
checks and other instruments representing Collections, (ii) at any time after
the occurrence of an Amortization Event, to enforce the Receivables, the related
Contracts and the Related Security, and (iii) at any time after the occurrence
of an Amortization Event, to take such action as shall be necessary or desirable



to cause all cash, checks and other instruments constituting Collections of
Receivables to come into the possession of the Agent rather than Seller.

Section 8.4 Responsibilities of Seller. Anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding, the exercise by the Agent, on behalf of Blue Ridge, of the
Agent's rights hereunder shall not release the Servicer, any Originator or
Seller from any of their duties or obligations with respect to any Receivables
or under the related Contracts. The Agent and Blue Ridge shall have no
obligation or liability with respect to any Receivables or related Contracts,
nor shall any of them be obligated to perform the obligations of Seller or any
Originator thereunder.
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Section 8.5 Monthly Reports. The Servicer shall prepare and forward to the
Agent (i) on each Monthly Reporting Date, a Monthly Report and an electronic
file of the data contained therein and (ii) at such times as the Agent shall
request, a listing by Obligor of all Receivables together with an aging of such
Receivables; provided, however, that if an Amortization Event exists and is
continuing, the Agent may request that the Servicer deliver a Monthly Report
more frequently than monthly.

Section 8.6 Servicing Fee. As compensation for the Servicer's servicing
activities on their behalf, the Servicer shall be paid the Servicing Fee in
arrears on each Settlement Date out of Collections.

ARTICLE IX.
AMORTIZATION EVENTS

Section 9.1 Amortization Events. The occurrence of any one or more of the

following events shall constitute an Amortization Event:

(a) Any Seller Party shall fail to make any payment or deposit
required to be made by it under the Transaction Documents when due and, for any
such payment or deposit which is not in respect of principal or CP Costs, such
failure continues for 5 consecutive Business Days.

(b) Any representation, warranty, certification or statement made
by any Seller Party in any Transaction Document to which it is a party or in any
other document delivered pursuant thereto shall prove to have been incorrect
when made or deemed made.

(c) Any Seller Party shall fail to perform or observe any covenant
contained in Section 7.2 or 8.5 when due.

(d) Any Seller Party shall fail to perform or observe any other
covenant or agreement under any Transaction Documents and such failure shall
continue for ten (10) consecutive Business Days.

(e) Failure of Seller to pay any Indebtedness (other than the
Aggregate Unpaids) when due or the default by Seller in the performance of any
term, provision or condition contained in any agreement under which any such
Indebtedness was created or is governed, the effect of which is to cause, or to
permit the holder or holders of such Indebtedness to cause, such Indebtedness to
become due prior to its stated maturity; or any such Indebtedness of Seller
shall be declared to be due and payable or required to be prepaid (other than by
a regularly scheduled payment) prior to the date of maturity thereof.

(f) Parent or any Subsidiary (other than Seller) shall (i) fail to
pay any principal or interest, regardless of amount, due in respect of any
Indebtedness in a principal amount in excess of $5,000,000, when and as the same
shall become due and payable, or (ii) fail to observe or perform any other term,
covenant, condition or agreement contained in any
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agreement or instrument evidencing or governing any such Indebtedness if the
effect of any failure referred to in this clause (ii) is to cause, or to permit
the holder or holders of such Indebtedness or a trustee on its or their behalf
(with or without the giving of notice, the lapse of time or both) to cause, such
Indebtedness to become due prior to its stated maturity.

(g) An Event of Bankruptcy shall occur with respect to any Seller
Party.

(h) As at the end of any Calculation Period:

(i) the three-month rolling average Delinquency Ratio shall
exceed 2.90%,



(ii) the three-month rolling average Default Trigger Ratio shall
exceed 9.75%, or

(11d) the three-month rolling average Dilution Ratio shall
exceed 7.10%.

(i) A Change in Control shall occur.

(3) (i) One or more final judgments for the payment of money in an
aggregate amount of $10,750 or more shall be entered against Seller or (ii) one
or more judgments for the payment of money in an aggregate amount in excess of
$5,000,000 shall be rendered against Parent, any Subsidiary of Parent (Other
than Seller) or any combination thereof and the same shall remain undischarged
for a period of 30 consecutive days during which execution shall not be
effectively stayed, or any action shall be legally taken by a judgment creditor
to levy upon assets or properties of Parent or any Subsidiary to enforce any
such judgment.

(k) The "Termination Date" under and as defined in the Receivables
Sale Agreement shall occur under the Receivables Sale Agreement or any
Originator shall for any reason cease to transfer, or cease to have the legal
capacity to transfer, or otherwise be incapable of transferring Receivables to
Seller under the Receivables Sale Agreement.

(1) This Agreement shall terminate in whole or in part (except in
accordance with its terms), or shall cease to be effective or to be the legally
valid, binding and enforceable obligation of Seller, or any Obligor shall
directly or indirectly contest in any manner such effectiveness, validity,
binding nature or enforceability, or the Agent for the benefit of Blue Ridge
shall cease to have a valid and perfected first priority security interest in
the Purchased Assets.

(m) On any Settlement Date, after giving effect to the turnover of
Collections by the Servicer on such date and the application thereof to the
Aggregate Unpaids in accordance with this Agreement, the Aggregate Invested
Amount shall exceed the Purchase Limit.

(n) The Performance Undertaking shall cease to be effective or to be
the legally valid, binding and enforceable obligation of Performance Guarantor,
or Performance
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Guarantor shall directly or indirectly contest in any manner such effectiveness,
validity, binding nature or enforceability of its obligations thereunder.

(o) An ERISA Event shall have occurred that, when taken together with
all other such ERISA Events, could reasonably be expected to result in liability
of Parent and its ERISA Affiliates in an aggregate amount exceeding $1,000,000.

(p) The Internal Revenue Service shall file notice of a lien pursuant
to Section 6323 of the Tax Code with regard to any of the Purchased Assets and
such lien shall not have been released within seven (7) days, or the PBGC shall,
or shall indicate its intention to, file notice of a lien pursuant to Section
4068 of ERISA with regard to any of the Purchased Assets.

(g) Any event shall occur which (i) materially and adversely impairs
the ability of the Originators to originate Receivables of a credit quality that
is at least equal to the credit quality of the Receivables sold or contributed
to Seller on the date of this Agreement or (ii) has, or could be reasonably
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(r) The Net Pool Balance shall, on any date, be less than an amount
equal to the sum of (i) the Aggregate Invested Amount plus (ii) the Required
Reserve (after giving effect to any turnover of Collections by the Servicer on
such date and the application thereof to the Aggregate Unpaids in accordance
with this Agreement) .

(s) The Performance Guarantor shall breach any of the covenants
contained in Sections 6.08, 6.09, 6.10 or 6.11 of the that certain Credit
Agreement dated as of July 31, 2000 by and among Applied Power Inc. (doing
business as Actuant Corporation), the lenders named therein, Credit Suisse First
Boston, as Lead Arranger, Collateral Agent and Administrative Agent, First Union
National Bank, as Syndication Agent, and ING (U.S.) Capital LLC, as
Documentation Agent, as amended and in effect on the date of this Agreement or
as hereafter amended or modified pursuant to any written amendment to which the
Agent hereunder gives its express written consent.

Section 9.2 Remedies. Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an
Amortization Event, the Agent may, or upon the direction of the Required
Liquidity Banks shall, take any of the following actions: (i) replace the Person
then acting as Servicer if the Agent has not already done so, (ii) declare the
Facility Termination Date to have occurred, whereupon Reinvestments shall
immediately terminate and the Facility Termination Date shall forthwith occur,



all without demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are
hereby expressly waived by each Seller Party; provided, however, that upon the
occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy with respect to any Seller Party, the
Facility Termination Date shall automatically occur, without demand, protest or
any notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by each Seller
Party, (iii) deliver the Collection Notices to the Collection Banks, (iv)
exercise all rights and remedies of a secured party upon default under the UCC
and other applicable laws, and (v) notify Obligors of the Agent's security
interest in the Receivables and other Purchased Assets. The aforementioned
rights and remedies shall be without limitation, and shall be in addition to all
other rights and remedies of the Agent and Blue Ridge otherwise available under
any other provision of this Agreement, by operation of law, at equity or
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otherwise, all of which are hereby expressly preserved, including, without
limitation, all rights and remedies provided under the UCC, all of which rights
shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE X.
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 10.1 Indemnities by the Seller Parties. Without limiting any other
rights that the Agent or Blue Ridge may have hereunder or under applicable law,
(A) Seller hereby agrees to indemnify (and pay upon demand to) the Agent, Blue
Ridge, each of the Liquidity Banks and each of the respective assigns, officers,
directors, agents and employees of the foregoing (each, an "Indemnified Party")
from and against any and all damages, losses, claims, Other Taxes, Indemnified
Taxes, liabilities, costs, expenses and for all other amounts payable, including
reasonable attorneys' fees (which attorneys may be employees of the Agent or
another Indemnified Party) and disbursements (all of the foregoing being
collectively referred to as "Indemnified Amounts") awarded against or incurred
by any of them arising out of or as a result of this Agreement or the
acquisition, either directly or indirectly, by Blue Ridge or any of its
Liquidity Banks of an interest in the Receivables, and (B) the Servicer hereby
agrees to indemnify (and pay upon demand to) each Indemnified Party for
Indemnified Amounts awarded against or incurred by any of them arising out of
the Servicer's activities as Servicer hereunder excluding, however, in all of
the foregoing instances under the preceding clauses (A) and (B):

(a) Indemnified Amounts to the extent a final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction holds that such Indemnified Amounts resulted from
gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Indemnified Party
seeking indemnification;

(b) Indemnified Amounts to the extent the same includes losses in
respect of Receivables that are uncollectible on account of the insolvency,
bankruptcy or lack of creditworthiness of the related Obligor; or

(c) Excluded Taxes;

provided, however, that nothing contained in this sentence shall limit the
liability of any Seller Party or limit the recourse of Blue Ridge to any Seller
Party for amounts otherwise specifically provided to be paid by such Seller
Party under the terms of this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing indemnification, Seller shall indemnify the Agent and Blue Ridge for
Indemnified Amounts (including, without limitation, losses in respect of
uncollectible receivables, regardless of whether reimbursement therefor would
constitute recourse to Seller or the Servicer) relating to or resulting from:

(i) any representation or warranty made by any Seller Party
or any Originator (or any officers of any such Person) under or in connection
with this Agreement, any other Transaction Document or any other information or
report delivered by any such Person pursuant hereto or thereto, which shall have
been false or incorrect when made or deemed made;
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(ii) the failure by Seller, the Servicer or any Originator to
comply with any applicable law, rule or regulation with respect to any
Receivable or Contract related thereto, or the nonconformity of any Receivable
or Contract included therein with any such applicable law, rule or regulation or
any failure of any Originator to keep or perform any of its obligations, express
or implied, with respect to any Contract;

(iii) any failure of Seller, the Servicer or any Originator to
perform its duties, covenants or other obligations in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement or any other Transaction Document;

(iv) any products liability, personal injury or damage suit,
or other similar claim arising out of or in connection with merchandise,
insurance or services that are the subject of any Contract or any Receivable;



(v) any dispute, claim, offset or defense (other than
discharge in bankruptcy of the Obligor) of the Obligor to the payment of any
Receivable (including, without limitation, a defense based on such Receivable or
the related Contract not being a legal, valid and binding obligation of such
Obligor enforceable against it in accordance with its terms), or any other claim
resulting from the sale of the merchandise or service related to such Receivable
or the furnishing or failure to furnish such merchandise or services;

(vi) the commingling of Collections of Receivables at any time
with other funds;

(vii) any investigation, litigation or proceeding related to or
arising from this Agreement or any other Transaction Document, the transactions
contemplated hereby, the use of the proceeds of any Purchase, the Purchased
Assets or any other investigation, litigation or proceeding relating to Seller,
the Servicer or any Originator in which any Indemnified Party becomes involved
as a result of any of the transactions contemplated hereby;

(viii) any inability to litigate any claim against any Obligor
in respect of any Receivable as a result of such Obligor being immune from civil
and commercial law and suit on the grounds of sovereignty or otherwise from any
legal action, suit or proceeding;

(ix) any Amortization Event of the type described in Section
9.1(9);

(x) any failure of Seller to acquire and maintain legal and
equitable title to, and ownership of any of the Purchased Assets from the
applicable Originator, free and clear of any Adverse Claim (other than as
created hereunder); or any failure of Seller to give reasonably equivalent value
to any Originator under the Receivables Sale Agreement in consideration of the
transfer by such Originator of any Receivable, or any attempt by any Person to
void such transfer under statutory provisions or common law or equitable action;

(x1) any failure to vest and maintain vested in the Agent for
the benefit of Blue Ridge, or to transfer to the Agent for the benefit of the
Secured Parties, a valid first
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priority perfected security interests in the Purchased Assets, free and clear of
any Adverse Claim (except as created by the Transaction Documents);

(xii) the failure to have filed, or any delay in filing,
financing statements or other similar instruments or documents under the UCC of
any applicable jurisdiction or other applicable laws with respect to any
Purchased Assets, and the proceeds thereof, whether at the time of any Purchase
or at any subsequent time;

(xiii) any action or omission by any Seller Party which
reduces or impairs the rights of the Agent or Blue Ridge with respect to any
Purchased Assets or the value of any Purchased Assets;

(xiv) any attempt by any Person to void any Purchase or the
Agent's security interest in the Purchased Assets under statutory provisions or
common law or equitable action; and

(xVv) the failure of any Receivable included in the
calculation of the Net Pool Balance as an Eligible Receivable to be an Eligible
Receivable at the time so included.

Section 10.2 1Increased Cost and Reduced Return. If after the date hereof,
any Funding Source shall be charged any fee, expense or increased cost on
account of the adoption of any applicable law, rule or regulation (including any
applicable law, rule or regulation regarding capital adequacy) or any change
therein, or any change in the interpretation or administration thereof by any
governmental authority, central bank or comparable agency charged with the
interpretation or administration thereof, or compliance with any request or
directive (whether or not having the force of law) of any such authority,
central bank or comparable agency (a "Regulatory Change"): (i) that subjects any
Funding Source to any charge or withholding on or with respect to any Funding
Agreement or a Funding Source's obligations under a Funding Agreement, or on or
with respect to the Receivables, or changes the basis of taxation of payments to
any Funding Source of any amounts payable under any Funding Agreement (except
for changes in the rate of tax on the overall net income of a Funding Source or
taxes excluded by Section 10.1) or (ii) that imposes, modifies or deems
applicable any reserve, assessment, insurance charge, special deposit or similar
requirement against assets of, deposits with or for the account of a Funding
Source, or credit extended by a Funding Source pursuant to a Funding Agreement
or (iii) that imposes any other condition the result of which is to increase the
cost to a Funding Source of performing its obligations under a Funding
Agreement, or to reduce the rate of return on a Funding Source's capital as a
consequence of its obligations under a Funding Agreement, or to reduce the



amount of any sum received or receivable by a Funding Source under a Funding
Agreement or to require any payment calculated by reference to the amount of
interests or loans held or interest received by it, then, upon demand by the
Agent, Seller shall pay to the Agent, for the benefit of the relevant Funding
Source, such amounts charged to such Funding Source or such amounts to otherwise
compensate such Funding Source for such increased cost or such reduction.

Section 10.3 Expenses. Seller shall pay to the Agent and Blue Ridge on
demand all costs and out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the preparation,
execution, delivery and
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administration of this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby and the
other documents to be delivered hereunder, including without limitation, the
cost of Blue Ridge's auditors auditing the books, records and procedures of
Seller, reasonable fees and out-of-pocket expenses of legal counsel for Blue
Ridge and the Agent (which such counsel may be employees of Blue Ridge or the
Agent) with respect thereto and with respect to advising Blue Ridge and the
Agent as to their respective rights and remedies under this Agreement. Seller
shall pay to the Agent on demand any and all costs and expenses of the Agent and
Blue Ridge, if any, including reasonable counsel fees and expenses in connection
with the enforcement of this Agreement and the other documents delivered
hereunder and in connection with any restructuring or workout of this Agreement
or such documents, or the administration of this Agreement following an
Amortization Event.

ARTICLE XI.
THE AGENT

Section 11.1 Authorization and Action. Blue Ridge, on behalf of itself and
its assigns, hereby designates and appoints Wachovia to act as its agent under
the Liquidity Agreement, this Agreement and under each other Transaction
Document, and authorizes the Agent to take such actions as agent on its behalf
and to exercise such powers as are delegated to the Agent by the terms of the
Liquidity Agreement, this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents together
with such powers as are reasonably incidental thereto, including, without
limitation, the power to perfect all security interests granted under the
Transaction Documents. The provisions of Articles 6 and 7 of the Liquidity
Agreement are hereby incorporated by this reference with the same force and
effect as if fully set forth herein, and shall govern the relationship between
the Agent, on the one hand, and Blue Ridge, on the other.

ARTICLE XII.
ASSIGNMENTS AND PARTICIPATIONS

Section 12.1 Assignments and Participations by Blue Ridge. Each of the
parties hereto, on behalf of its successors and assigns, hereby agrees and
consents to the complete or partial sale by Blue Ridge of all or any portion of
its rights under, interest in, title to and obligations under this Agreement to
the Liquidity Banks pursuant to the Liquidity Agreement, regardless of whether
such sale constitutes an assignment or the sale of a participation in such
rights and obligations.

Section 12.2 Prohibition on Assignments by Seller Parties. No Seller Party
may assign any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the Agent and each of Blue Ridge and without satisfying
the Rating Agency Condition.

32
ARTICLE XIITI.
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.1 Waivers and Amendments.

(a) No failure or delay on the part of the Agent or Blue Ridge in
exercising any power, right or remedy under this Agreement shall operate as a
waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power,
right or remedy preclude any other further exercise thereof or the exercise of
any other power, right or remedy. The rights and remedies herein provided shall
be cumulative and nonexclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law. Any
waiver of this Agreement shall be effective only in the specific instance and
for the specific purpose for which given.

(b) No provision of this Agreement may be amended, supplemented,
modified or waived except in writing in accordance with the provisions of this



Section 13.1(b). Blue Ridge, Seller and the Agent, at the direction of the
Required Liquidity Banks, may enter into written modifications or waivers of any
provisions of this Agreement, provided, however, that no such modification or
waiver shall:

(1) without the consent of Blue Ridge and each affected
Liquidity Bank, (A) extend the Liquidity Termination Date or the date of any
payment or deposit of Collections by Seller or the Servicer, (B) reduce the rate
or extend the time of payment of Yield or any CP Costs (or any component of
Yield or CP Costs), (C) reduce any fee payable to the Agent for the benefit of
Blue Ridge, (D) change the Invested Amount of any Receivable Interest, (E)
amend, modify or waive any provision of the definition of Required Liquidity
Banks or this Section 13.1(b), (F) consent to or permit the assignment or
transfer by Seller of any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement,
(G) change the definition of "Eligible Receivable," "Loss Reserve," "Dilution
Reserve," "Yield Reserve," "Servicing Reserve," "Servicing Fee Rate," "Required
Reserve" or "Required Reserve Factor Floor" or (H) amend or modify any defined
term (or any defined term used directly or indirectly in such defined term) used
in clauses (A) through (G) above in a manner that would circumvent the intention
of the restrictions set forth in such clauses; or

(ii) without the written consent of the then Agent, amend,
modify or waive any provision of this Agreement if the effect thereof is to
affect the rights or duties of such Agent,

and any material amendment, waiver or other modification of this Agreement shall
require satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition.

Section 13.2 Notices. Except as provided in this Section 13.2, all
communications and notices provided for hereunder shall be in writing (including
bank wire, telecopy or electronic facsimile transmission or similar writing) and
shall be given to the other parties hereto at their respective addresses or
telecopy numbers set forth on the signature pages hereof or at such other
address or telecopy number as such Person may hereafter specify for the purpose
of notice to
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each of the other parties hereto. Each such notice or other communication shall
be effective (i) if given by telecopy, upon the receipt thereof, (ii) if given
by mail, three (3) Business Days after the time such communication is deposited
in the mail with first class postage prepaid or (iii) if given by any other
means, when received at the address specified in this Section 13.2. Seller
hereby authorizes the Agent to effect Purchases and Interest Period and Yield
Rate selections based on telephonic notices made by any Person whom the Agent in
good faith believes to be acting on behalf of Seller. The Seller Parties agree
to deliver promptly to the Agent a written confirmation of each telephonic
notice signed by a Financial Officer of a Seller Party; provided, however, the
absence of such confirmation shall not affect the validity of such notice. If
the written confirmation differs from the action taken by the Agent, the records
of the Agent shall govern absent manifest error.

Section 13.3 Protection of Agent's Security Interest.

(a) Seller agrees that from time to time, at its expense, it will
promptly execute and deliver all instruments and documents, and take all
actions, that may be necessary or desirable, or that the Agent may request, to
perfect, protect or more fully evidence the Agent's security interest in the
Purchased Assets, or to enable the Agent or Blue Ridge to exercise and enforce
their rights and remedies hereunder. At any time, the Agent may, or the Agent
may direct Seller or the Servicer to, notify the Obligors of Receivables, at
Seller's expense, of the ownership or security interests of Blue Ridge under
this Agreement and may also direct that payments of all amounts due or that
become due under any or all Receivables be made directly to the Agent or its
designee. Seller or the Servicer (as applicable) shall, at the Agent's request,
withhold the identities of the Agent and Blue Ridge in any such notification.

(b) If any Seller Party fails to perform any of its obligations
hereunder, the Agent or Blue Ridge may (but shall not be required to) perform,
or cause performance of, such obligations, and the Agent's or Blue Ridge's costs
and expenses incurred in connection therewith shall be payable by Seller as
provided in Section 10.3. Each Seller Party irrevocably authorizes the Agent at
any time and from time to time in the sole discretion of the Agent, and appoints
the Agent as its attorney-in-fact, to act on behalf of such Seller Party (i) to
execute on behalf of Seller as debtor and to file financing statements necessary
or desirable in the Agent's sole discretion to perfect and to maintain the
perfection and priority of the interest of Blue Ridge in the Receivables and
(ii) to file a carbon, photographic or other reproduction of this Agreement or
any financing statement with respect to the Receivables as a financing statement
in such offices as the Agent in its sole discretion deems necessary or desirable
to perfect and to maintain the perfection and priority of the Agent's security
interest in the Purchased Assets, for the benefit of the Secured Parties. This
appointment is coupled with an interest and is irrevocable. From and after July



1, 2001: (A) each of the Seller Parties hereby authorizes the Agent to file
financing statements and other filing or recording documents with respect to the
Receivables and Related Security (including any amendments thereto, or
continuation or termination statements thereof), without the signature or other
authorization of such Seller Party, in such form and in such offices as the
Agent reasonably determines appropriate to perfect or maintain the perfection of
the security interest of the Agent hereunder, (B) each of the Seller Parties
acknowledges and agrees that it is not authorized to, and will not, file
financing statements or other filing or recording
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documents with respect to the Receivables or Related Security (including any
amendments thereto, or continuation or termination statements thereof), without
the express prior written approval by the Agent, consenting to the form and
substance of such filing or recording document, and (C) each of the Seller
Parties approves, authorizes and ratifies any filings or recordings made by or
on behalf of the Agent in connection with the perfection of the security
interests in favor of Seller or the Agent.

Section 13.4 Confidentiality.

(a) Each of the Seller Parties shall maintain and shall cause
each of its employees and officers to maintain the confidentiality of this
Agreement and the other confidential or proprietary information with respect to
the Agent and Blue Ridge and their respective businesses obtained by it or them
in connection with the structuring, negotiating and execution of the
transactions contemplated herein, except that such Seller Party and its officers
and employees may disclose such information to such Seller Party's external
accountants and attorneys and as required by any applicable law or order of any
judicial or administrative proceeding.

(b) Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, each Seller
Party hereby consents to the disclosure of any nonpublic information with
respect to it (i) to the Agent, the Liquidity Banks or Blue Ridge by each other,
(ii) by the Agent or Blue Ridge to any prospective or actual assignee or
participant of any of them and (iii) by the Agent to any rating agency,
Commercial Paper dealer or provider of a surety, guaranty or credit or liquidity
enhancement to Blue Ridge or any entity organized for the purpose of purchasing,
or making loans secured by, financial assets for which Wachovia acts as the
administrative agent and to any officers, directors, employees, outside
accountants and attorneys of any of the foregoing, provided that each such
Person is informed of the confidential nature of such information. In addition,
Blue Ridge and the Agent may disclose any such nonpublic information pursuant to
any law, rule, regulation, direction, request or order of any judicial,
administrative or regulatory authority or proceedings (whether or not having the
force or effect of law).

Section 13.5 Bankruptcy Petition. Seller, the Servicer, the Agent and each
Liquidity Bank hereby covenants and agrees that, prior to the date that is one
year and one day after the payment in full of all outstanding senior
indebtedness of Blue Ridge, it will not institute against, or join any other
Person in instituting against, Blue Ridge any bankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other similar proceeding
under the laws of the United States or any state of the United States.

Section 13.6 Limitation of Liability. Except with respect to any claim
arising out of the willful misconduct or gross negligence of Blue Ridge, the
Agent or any Liquidity Bank, no claim may be made by any Seller Party or any
other Person against Blue Ridge, the Agent or any Liquidity Bank or their
respective Affiliates, directors, officers, employees, attorneys or agents for
any special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages in respect of any claim
for breach of contract or any other theory of liability arising out of or
related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or any act, omission
or event occurring in connection therewith; and each
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Seller Party hereby waives, releases, and agrees not to sue upon any claim for
any such damages, whether or not accrued and whether or not known or suspected
to exist in its favor.

Section 13.7 CHOICE OF LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED AND CONSTRUED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE
PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS THEREOF OTHER THAN SECTION 5-1401 OF THE GENERAL
OBLIGATIONS LAW (EXCEPT IN THE CASE OF THE OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS, TO THE
EXTENT OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY STATED THEREIN) AND EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT THE
PERFECTION OF THE OWNERSHIP INTEREST OF SELLER OR THE SECURITY INTEREST OF THE
AGENT, FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE SECURED PARTIES, IN ANY OF THE COLLATERAL IS
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF A JURISDICTION OTHER THAN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.



Section 13.8 CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE NON-EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY UNITED STATES
FEDERAL OR ILLINOIS STATE COURT SITTING IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS, IN ANY ACTION OR
PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED
BY SUCH PERSON PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT, AND EACH SUCH PARTY HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY AGREES THAT ALL CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING MAY
BE HEARD AND DETERMINED IN ANY SUCH COURT AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY OBJECTION
IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE AS TO THE VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN SUCH A COURT OR THAT SUCH COURT IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.
NOTHING HEREIN SHALL LIMIT THE RIGHT OF THE AGENT OR ANY PURCHASER TO BRING
PROCEEDINGS AGAINST ANY SELLER PARTY IN THE COURTS OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION.
ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING BY ANY SELLER PARTY AGAINST THE AGENT OR ANY PURCHASER
OR ANY AFFILIATE OF THE AGENT OR ANY PURCHASER INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH
THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED BY SUCH SELLER PARTY PURSUANT TO THIS
AGREEMENT SHALL BE BROUGHT ONLY IN A COURT IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS.

Section 13.9 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL
BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER
(WHETHER SOUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF,
RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT, ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED BY ANY
SELLER PARTY PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED
HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER.
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Section 13.10 Integration; Binding Effect; Survival of Terms.

(a) This Agreement and each other Transaction Document contain
the final and complete integration of all prior expressions by the parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall constitute the entire
agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof
superseding all prior oral or written understandings.

(b) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted
assigns (including any trustee in bankruptcy). This Agreement shall create and
constitute the continuing obligations of the parties hereto in accordance with
its terms and shall remain in full force and effect until terminated in
accordance with its terms; provided, however, that the rights and remedies with
respect to (i) any breach of any representation and warranty made by any Seller
Party pursuant to Article V, (ii) the indemnification and payment provisions of
Article X, and Sections 13.4 and 13.5 shall be continuing and shall survive any
termination of this Agreement.

(c) Each of the Seller Parties, Blue Ridge and the Agent hereby
acknowledges and agrees that the Liquidity Banks are hereby made express third
party beneficiaries of this Agreement and each of the other Transaction
Documents.

Section 13.11 Counterparts; Severability; Section References. This
Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed
to be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and
the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to
this Agreement by telecopier shall be effective as delivery of a manually
executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement. Any provisions of
this Agreement which are prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall,
as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or
unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any
such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction. Unless otherwise
expressly indicated, all references herein to "Article," "Section," "Schedule"
or "Exhibit" shall mean articles and sections of, and schedules and exhibits to,
this Agreement.

Section 13.12 Characterization.

(a) It is the intention of the parties hereto that each Purchase
hereunder shall constitute and be treated as an absolute and irrevocable sale,
which Purchase shall provide the Blue Ridge with the full benefits of ownership
of the applicable Receivable Interest. Except as specifically provided in this
Agreement, each sale of a Receivable Interest hereunder is made without recourse
to Seller; provided, however, that (i) Seller shall be liable to Blue Ridge and
the Agent for all representations, warranties, covenants and indemnities made by
Seller pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and (ii) such sale does not
constitute and is not intended to result in an assumption by Blue Ridge or the
Agent or any assignee thereof of any obligation of Seller or any Originator or
any other person arising in connection with the Receivables, the Related
Security, or the related Contracts, or any other obligations of Seller or any



Originator.
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(b) In addition to any ownership interest which the Agent or
Blue Ridge may from time to time acquire pursuant hereto, Seller hereby grants
to the Agent for the ratable benefit of Blue Ridge a valid and perfected
security interest in all of Seller's right, title and interest in, to and under
all Receivables now existing or hereafter arising, the Collections, each Lock-
Box, each Collection Account, all Related Security, all other rights and
payments relating to such Receivables, and all proceeds of any thereof prior to
all other liens on and security interests therein to secure the prompt and
complete payment of the Aggregate Unpaids. The Agent, on behalf of Blue Ridge,
shall have, in addition to the rights and remedies that it may have under this
Agreement, all other rights and remedies provided to a secured creditor under
the UCC and other applicable law, which rights and remedies shall be cumulative.

*signature pages follow*
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to
be executed and delivered by their duly authorized officers or attorneys-in-fact

as of the date hereof.

ACTUANT RECEIVABLES CORPORATION

By: /s/ Patrick C. Dorn

Name: Patrick C. Dorn
Title: President

Address: 3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy.
Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

Attn: Pat Dorn

Phone: (702) 735-1811
Fax: (702) 735-1785

ACTUANT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Terence M. Braatz

Name: Terence M. Braatz
Title: Treasurer

Address: 6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢6
Fax: (414) 228-6112
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BLUE RIDGE ASSET FUNDING CORPORATION

BY: WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., ITS ATTORNEY-IN-FACT

By: /s/ David Goodson

Name: David Goodson
Title: Vice President

Address:
Blue Ridge Asset Funding Corporation
c/o Wachovia Bank, N.A.
100 North Main Street
Winston-Salem, NC 27150

Attention: John Dillon

Telephone: (336) 732-2690
Facsimile: (336) 732-5021

With a copy to:



Blue Ridge Asset Funding Corporation
c/o AMACAR Group, L.L.C.

6525 Morrison Blvd., Suite 318
Charlotte, North Carolina 28211

Attention: Douglas K. Johnson

Telephone: (704) 365-0569
Facsimile: (704) 365-1362
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WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., as a Liquidity Bank and as Agent

By: /s/ Kenny Karpowicz
Name: Kenny Karpowicz
Title: Vice President

Address:

Wachovia Bank, N.A.
191 Peachtree Street, Mail Stop GA423
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Attention: Elizabeth R. Wagner
Telephone: (404) 332-1398
Facsimile: (404) 332-5152

with a copy to:

Wachovia Bank, N.A.
100 North Main Street, NC37031
Winston-Salem, NC 27150-3099

Attention: John Dillon
Telephone: (336) 732-2690
Facsimile: (336) 732-5021
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EXHIBIT I
DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
following meanings (such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular
and plural forms of the terms defined):

"Adjusted Dilution Ratio" means, at any time, the rolling average of
the Non-Contractual Dilution Ratio for the 12 Calculation Periods then most
recently ended.

"Adverse Claim" means a lien, security interest, charge or
encumbrance, or other right or claim in, of or on any Person's assets or
properties in favor of any other Person.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person
directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or indirect
common control with, such Person or any Subsidiary of such Person. A Person
shall be deemed to control another Person if the controlling Person owns 5% or
more of any class of voting securities of the controlled Person or possesses,
directly or indirectly, the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management or policies of the controlled Person, whether through ownership of
stock, by contract or otherwise.

"Agent" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.

"Agent's Account" means account #8735-098787 at Wachovia Bank, N.A.,
ABA #053100494.

"Aggregate Invested Amount" means, on any date of determination, the
aggregate Invested Amount of all Receivable Interests outstanding on such date.

"Aggregate Reduction" has the meaning specified in Section 1.3.
"Aggregate Unpaids" means, at any time, an amount equal to the sum of
(i) the Aggregate Invested Amount, plus (ii) all Recourse Obligations (whether

due or accrued) at such time.

"Agreement" means this Receivables Purchase Agreement, as it may be
amended or modified and in effect from time to time.



"Alternate Base Rate" means for any day, the rate per annum equal to
the higher as of such day of (i) the Prime Rate, or (ii) one-half of one percent
(0.50%) above the Federal Funds Rate. For purposes of determining the Alternate
Base Rate for any day, changes in the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate shall
be effective on the date of each such change.

"Amortization Date" means the earliest to occur of (i) May 26, 2006,
(ii) the day on which any of the conditions precedent set forth in Section 6.2
are not satisfied, (iii) the
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Business Day immediately prior to the occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy with
respect to any Seller Party, (iv) the Business Day specified in a written notice
from the Agent following the occurrence and during the continuance of any other
Amortization Event, and (v) the date which is not less than 10 Business Days
after the Agent's receipt of written notice from Seller that it wishes to
terminate the facility evidenced by this Agreement.

"Amortization Event" has the meaning specified in Article IX.

"Blue Ridge" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this
Agreement.

"Blue Ridge's Portion" means, on any date of determination, the sum of
the percentages represented by the Receivable Interests.

"Broken Funding Costs" means for any Receivable Interest which: (i)
has its Invested Amount reduced without compliance by Seller with the notice
requirements hereunder or (ii) does not become subject to an Aggregate Reduction
following the delivery of any Reduction Notice or (iii) is assigned by Blue
Ridge to the Liquidity Banks under the Liquidity Agreement or terminated prior
to the date on which it was originally scheduled to end; an amount equal to the
excess, if any, of (A) the CP Costs or Yield (as applicable) that would have
accrued during the remainder of the Interest Periods or the tranche periods for
Commercial Paper determined by the Agent to relate to such Receivable Interest
(as applicable) subsequent to the date of such reduction, assignment or
termination (or in respect of clause (ii) above, the date such Aggregate
Reduction was designated to occur pursuant to the Reduction Notice) of the
Invested Amount of such Receivable Interest if such reduction, assignment or
termination had not occurred or such Reduction Notice had not been delivered,
over (B) the sum of (x) to the extent all or a portion of such Invested Amount
is allocated to another Receivable Interest, the amount of CP Costs or Yield
actually accrued during the remainder of such period on such Invested Amount for
the new Receivable Interest, and (y) to the extent such Invested Amount is not
allocated to another Receivable Interest, the income, if any, actually received
during the remainder of such period by the holder of such Receivable Interest
from investing the portion of such Invested Amount not so allocated. All Broken
Funding Costs shall be due and payable hereunder upon demand.

"Business Day" means any day on which banks are not authorized or
required to close in New York, New York or Atlanta, Georgia, and The Depository
Trust Company of New York is open for business, and, if the applicable Business
Day relates to any computation or payment to be made with respect to the LIBO
Rate, any day on which dealings in dollar deposits are carried on in the London
interbank market.

"Calculation Period" means a fiscal month.

"Collection Account" means each concentration account, depositary
account, lock-box account or similar account in which any Collections are
collected or deposited and which is listed on Exhibit IV.
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"Collection Account Agreement" means an agreement substantially in the
form of Exhibit VI (or as otherwise approved by the Agent) among an Originator,
Seller, the Agent and a Collection Bank.

"Collection Bank" means, at any time, any of the banks holding one or
more Collection Accounts.

"Collection Notice" means a notice, in substantially the form attached
to any of the agreements contained in Exhibit VI, from the Agent to a Collection
Bank.

"Collections" means, with respect to any Receivable, all cash
collections and other cash proceeds in respect of such Receivable, including,
without limitation, all Finance Charges or other related amounts accruing in
respect thereof and all cash proceeds of Related Security with respect to such
Receivable.

"Commercial Paper" means promissory notes of Blue Ridge issued by Blue
Ridge in the commercial paper market.



"Contingent Obligation" of a Person means any agreement, undertaking
or arrangement by which such Person assumes, guarantees, endorses, contingently
agrees to purchase or provide funds for the payment of, or otherwise becomes or
is contingently liable upon, the obligation or liability of any other Person, or
agrees to maintain the net worth or working capital or other financial condition
of any other Person, or otherwise assures any creditor of such other Person
against loss, including, without limitation, any comfort letter, operating
agreement, take-or-pay contract or application for a letter of credit.

"Contract" means, with respect to any Receivable, any and all
instruments, agreements, invoices or other writings pursuant to which such
Receivable arises or which evidences such Receivable including, without
limitation, all "contracts" as, when and if such term is defined in the UCC, of
the applicable Originator (or Seller, as its assignee), and in any event, shall
include, without limitation, all sale, service, performance and equipment or
property lease contracts, agreements and grants (whether written or oral, or
third party or intercompany), and any other documents (whether written or oral)
between the applicable Originator and third parties, and all assignments,
amendments, restatements, supplements, extensions, renewals, replacements or
modifications thereof.

"Contractual Dilution" means, with respect to any Receivable, any
reduction in the Outstanding Balance of such Receivable due to a quantity
discount, discount for prompt payment or similar incentive, in each of the
foregoing cases, which discount is readily discernable and quantifiable from the
face of the invoice evidencing such Receivable.

"Contractual Dilution Ratio" means, as of any Cut-Off Date, a ratio
(expressed as a percentage), computed by dividing (i) the total amount of
decreases in Outstanding Balances due to Contractual Dilutions during the
Calculation Period ending on such Cut-Off Date, by (ii) the aggregate sales
generated by the Originators during the Calculation Period prior to the
Calculation Period ending on such Cut-Off Date.
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"CP Costs" means, for each day, the sum of (i) discount or interest
accrued on Pooled Commercial Paper on such day, plus (ii) any and all accrued
commissions in respect of placement agents and Commercial Paper dealers, and
issuing and paying agent fees incurred, in respect of such Pooled Commercial
Paper for such day, plus (iii) other costs associated with funding small or odd-
lot amounts with respect to all receivable purchase or financing facilities
which are funded by Pooled Commercial Paper for such day, minus (iv) any accrual
of income net of expenses received on such day from investment of collections
received under all receivable purchase or financing facilities funded
substantially with Pooled Commercial Paper, minus (v) any payment received on
such day net of expenses in respect of Broken Funding Costs related to the
prepayment of any investment of Blue Ridge pursuant to the terms of any
receivable purchase or financing facilities funded substantially with Pooled
Commercial Paper. In addition to the foregoing costs, if Seller shall request
any Purchase during any period of time determined by the Agent in its sole
discretion to result in incrementally higher CP Costs applicable to such
Purchase, the principal associated with any such Purchase shall, during such
period, be deemed to be funded by Blue Ridge in a special pool (which may
include capital associated with other receivable purchase or financing
facilities) for purposes of determining such additional CP Costs applicable only
to such special pool and charged each day during such period against such
principal.

"Credit and Collection Policy" means Seller's credit and collection
policies and practices relating to Contracts and Receivables existing on the
date hereof and summarized in Exhibit VII hereto, as modified from time to time
in accordance with this Agreement.

"Cut-Off Date" means the last day of a Calculation Period.

"Days Sales Outstanding" means, as of any day, an amount equal to the
product of (x) 91, multiplied by (y) the amount obtained by dividing (i) the
aggregate outstanding balance of Receivables as of the most recent Cut-Off Date,
by (ii) the aggregate amount of Receivables created during the three (3)
Calculation Periods including and immediately preceding such Cut-Off Date.

"Deemed Collections" means Collections deemed received by Seller under
Section 1.4 (a).

"Default Horizon Ratio" means, as of any Cut-Off Date, the ratio
(expressed as a decimal) computed by dividing (i) the aggregate sales generated
by the Originators during the 3 Calculation Periods ending on such Cut-0Off Date,
by (ii) the Net Pool Balance as of such Cut-off Date.

"Default Rate" means a rate per annum equal to the sum of (i) the
Alternate Base Rate plus (ii) 2.00%, changing when and as the Alternate Base

Rate changes.

"Default Ratio" means, as of any Cut-Off Date, the ratio (expressed as



a percentage) computed by dividing (x) the total amount of Receivables which
became Defaulted Receivables during the Calculation Period that includes such
Cut-0ff Date, by (y) the aggregate
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sales generated by the Originators during the Calculation Period occurring 4
months prior to the Calculation Period ending on such Cut-Off Date.

"Default Trigger Ratio" means , as of any Cut-Off Date, the ratio
(expressed as a percentage) computed by dividing (x) the total Outstanding
Balance of all Defaulted Receivables as of such date, by (y) the total
Outstanding Balance of all Receivables as of such date.

"Defaulted Receivable" means a Receivable: (1) as to which the
Obligor thereof has suffered an Event of Bankruptcy; (ii) which, consistent with
the Credit and Collection Policy, would be written off Seller's books as
uncollectible; or (iii) as to which any payment, or part thereof, remains unpaid
for 91 days or more from the original due date for such payment.

"Delinquency Ratio" means, at any time, a percentage equal to (i) the
aggregate Outstanding Balance of all Receivables that were Delinquent
Receivables at such time divided by (ii) the aggregate Outstanding Balance of
all Receivables at such time.

"Delinquent Receivable" means a Receivable as to which any payment, or
part thereof, remains unpaid for 61-90 days from the original due date for such
payment.

"Demand Advance" means any advance made by Seller to Parent at any
time while it is acting as the Servicer, which advance (a) is payable upon
demand, (b) is not evidenced by an instrument, chattel paper or a certificated
security, (c) bears interest at a market rate determined by Seller and the
Servicer from time to time, (d) is not subordinated to any other Indebtedness or
obligation of the Servicer, and (e) may not be offset by Parent against amounts
due and owing from Seller to it under its Subordinated Note; provided, however,
that no Demand Advance may be made after the Facility Termination Date or on any
date prior to the Facility Termination Date on which an Amortization Event or an
Unmatured Amortization Event exists and is continuing.

"Dilution" means the amount of any reduction or cancellation of the
Outstanding Balance of a Receivable as described in Section 1.4 (a).

"Dilution Horizon Ratio" means, as of any Cut-off Date, a ratio
(expressed as a decimal), computed by dividing (i) the aggregate sales generated
by the Originators during the 2 Calculation Periods ending on such Cut-0Off Date,
by (ii) the Net Pool Balance as of such Cut-Off Date.

"Dilution Ratio" means, as of any Cut-Off Date, a ratio (expressed as
a percentage), computed by adding the Contractual Dilution Ratio and the Non-
Contractual Dilution Ratio as of such Cut-Off Date.

"Dilution Reserve" means, for any Calculation Period, the product
(expressed as a percentage) of:
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(a) the sum of (i) two (2) times the Adjusted Dilution Ratio as of
the immediately preceding Cut-Off Date, plus (ii) the Dilution Volatility
Component as of the immediately preceding Cut-Off Date, times

(b) the Dilution Horizon Ratio as of the immediately preceding Cut-
Off Date.

"Dilution Volatility Component” means the product (expressed as a
percentage) of (i) the difference between (a) the highest three (3)-month
rolling average Non-Contractual Dilution Ratio over the past 12 Calculation
Periods and (b) the Adjusted Dilution Ratio, and (ii) a fraction, the numerator
of which is equal to the amount calculated in (i) (a) of this definition and the
denominator of which is equal to the amount calculated in (i) (b) of this
definition.

"Downgraded Liquidity Bank" means a Liquidity Bank which has been the
subject of a Downgrading Event.

"Downgrading Event" with respect to any Person means the lowering of
the rating with regard to the short-term securities of such Person to below (i)
A-1 by S&P, or (ii) P-1 by Moody's.

"Eligible Assignee" means a commercial bank having a combined capital
and surplus of at least $250,000,000 with a rating of its (or its parent holding
company's) short-term securities equal to or higher than (i) A-1 by S&P and (ii)
P-1 by Moody's.

"Eligible Receivable" means, at any time, a Receivable:



(1) the Obligor of which (a) if a natural person, is a
resident of the United States or, if a corporation or other business
organization, is organized under the laws of the United States or any political
subdivision thereof and has its chief executive office in the United States; (b)
is not an Affiliate of any of the parties hereto; and (c) is not a government or
a governmental subdivision or agency;

(11) which was not a Defaulted Receivable on the date on which
it was acquired by Seller from the applicable Originator,

(iii) which by its terms is due and payable within 60 days of
the original billing date therefor and has not had its payment terms extended
more than once; provided, however, that if such Receivable is a Trade Show
Receivable, up to 2% of total Eligible Receivables may consist of Trade Show
Receivables which, by their terms, are due and payable within 180 days of the
original billing date therefor and have not have their payment terms extended
more than once;

(iv) which is an "account" within the meaning of Article 9 of
the UCC of all applicable jurisdictions,

(v) which is denominated and payable only in United States
dollars in the United States,
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(vi) which arises under a Contract which, together with such
Receivable, is in full force and effect and constitutes the legal, valid and
binding obligation of the related Obligor enforceable against such Obligor in
accordance with its terms,

(vii) which arises under a Contract which (A) does not require
the Obligor under such Contract to consent to the transfer, sale, pledge or
assignment of the rights and duties of the applicable Originator or any of its
assignees under such Contract and (B) does not contain a confidentiality
provision that purports to restrict the ability of Blue Ridge to exercise its
rights under this Agreement, including, without limitation, its right to review
the Contract,

(viii) which arises under a Contract that contains an obligation
to pay a specified sum of money, contingent only upon the sale of goods or the
provision of services by the applicable Originator,

(ix) which, together with the Contract related thereto, does
not contravene any law, rule or regulation applicable thereto (including,
without limitation, any law, rule and regulation relating to truth in lending,
fair credit billing, fair credit reporting, equal credit opportunity, fair debt
collection practices and privacy) and with respect to which no part of the
Contract related thereto is in violation of any such law, rule or regulation,

(x) which satisfies all applicable requirements of the Credit
and Collection Policy,

(x1) which was generated in the ordinary course of the
applicable Originator's business,

(xii) which arises solely from the sale of goods or the
provision of services to the related Obligor by the applicable Originator, and
not by any other Person (in whole or in part),

(xiii) which is not subject to any dispute, counterclaim, right
of rescission, set-off, counterclaim or any other defense (including defenses
arising out of violations of usury laws) of the applicable Obligor against the
applicable Originator or any other Adverse Claim, and the Obligor thereon holds
no right as against such Originator to cause such Originator to repurchase the
goods or merchandise the sale of which shall have given rise to such Receivable
(except with respect to sale discounts effected pursuant to the Contract, or
defective goods returned in accordance with the terms of the Contract);
provided, however, that if such dispute, offset, counterclaim or defense affects
only a portion of the Outstanding Balance of such Receivable, then such
Receivable may be deemed an Eligible Receivable to the extent of the portion of
such Outstanding Balance which is not so affected, and provided, further, that
Receivables of any Obligor which has any accounts payable by the applicable
Originator or by a wholly-owned Subsidiary of such Originator (thus giving rise
to a potential offset against such Receivables) may be treated as Eligible
Receivables to the extent that the Obligor of such Receivables has agreed
pursuant to a written agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent,
that such Receivables shall not be subject to such offset,
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(xiv) as to which the applicable Originator has satisfied and

fully performed all obligations on its part with respect to such Receivable
required to be fulfilled by it, and no further action is required to be



performed by any Person with respect thereto other than payment thereon by the
applicable Obligor,

(xv) as to which each of the representations and warranties
contained in Sections 5.1(g), (i), (3), (r), (s), (t) and (u) is true and
correct, and

(xvi) all right, title and interest to and in which has been
validly transferred by the applicable Originator directly to Seller under and in
accordance with the Receivables Sale Agreement, and Seller has good and
marketable title thereto free and clear of any Adverse Claim.

"Excluded Taxes" means "Excluded Taxes" under and as defined in the
Receivables Sale Agreement to the extent that such taxes are consistent with the
transactions under this Agreement being treated, for tax purposes, as though the
Agent and the Purchasers made a loan to Seller secured by the Receivables and
Related Security.

"Facility Account" means Seller's account no. 10-87832 at Bank One,
NA, in Chicago, Illinois, ABA No. 071000013.

"Facility Termination Date" means the earlier of (i) the Liquidity
Termination Date and (ii) the Amortization Date.

"Federal Bankruptcy Code" means Title 11 of the United States Code
entitled "Bankruptcy," as amended and any successor statute thereto.

"Federal Funds Effective Rate" means, for any period, a fluctuating
interest rate per annum for each day during such period equal to (i) the
weighted average of the rates on overnight federal funds transactions with
members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by federal funds brokers, as
published for such day (or, if such day is not a Business Day, for the preceding
Business Day) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in the Composite Closing
Quotations for U.S. Government Securities; or (ii) if such rate is not so
published for any day which is a Business Day, the average of the quotations at
approximately 11:30 a.m. (New York time) for such day on such transactions
received by the Agent from three federal funds brokers of recognized standing
selected by it.

"Fee Letter" means that certain letter agreement dated as of May 30,
2001 among Seller, Parent and the Agent, as it may be amended, restated or
otherwise modified and in effect from time to time.

"Final Payout Date" means the date on which all Aggregate Unpaids have
been paid in full and the Purchase Limit has been reduced to zero.
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"Funding Agreement" means (i) this Agreement, (ii) the Liquidity
Agreement and (iii) any other agreement or instrument executed by any Funding
Source with or for the benefit of Blue Ridge.

"Funding Source" means (i) any Liquidity Bank or (ii) any insurance
company, bank or other funding entity providing liquidity, credit enhancement or
back-up purchase support or facilities to Blue Ridge.

"Incremental Purchase" means a purchase of one or more Receivable
Interests which increases the total outstanding Aggregate Invested Amount
hereunder.

"Indebtedness" of a Person means such Person's (i) obligations for
borrowed money, (ii) obligations representing the deferred purchase price of
property or services (other than accounts payable arising in the ordinary course
of such Person's business payable on terms customary in the trade), (iii)
obligations, whether or not assumed, secured by liens or payable out of the
proceeds or production from property now or hereafter owned or acquired by such
Person, (iv) obligations which are evidenced by notes, acceptances, or other
instruments, (v) capitalized lease obligations, (vi) net liabilities under
interest rate swap, exchange or cap agreements, (vii) Contingent Obligations and
(viii) liabilities in respect of unfunded vested benefits under plans covered by
Title IV of ERISA.

"Indemnified Amounts" has the meaning specified in Section 10.1.
"Indemnified Party" has the meaning specified in Section 10.1.
"Indemnified Taxes" means Taxes other than Excluded Taxes.

"Independent Director" shall mean a member of the Board of Directors
of Seller who is not at such time, and has not been at any time during the
preceding five (5) years: (A) a director, officer, employee or affiliate of
Performance Guarantor, any Originator or any of their respective Subsidiaries or
Affiliates (other than Seller), or (B) the beneficial owner (at the time of such
individual's appointment as an Independent Director or at any time thereafter
while serving as an Independent Director) of any of the outstanding common



shares of Seller, any Originator, or any of their respective Subsidiaries or
Affiliates, having general voting rights.

"Interest Period" means, with respect to any Receivable Interest
funded through a Liquidity Funding:

(a) if Yield for such Receivable Interest is calculated on the basis
of the LIBO Rate, a period of one, two, three or six months, or such other
period as may be mutually agreeable to the Agent and Seller, commencing on
a Business Day selected by Seller or the Agent pursuant to this Agreement.
Such Interest Period shall end on the day in the applicable succeeding
calendar month which corresponds numerically to the beginning day of such
Interest Period, provided, however, that if there is no such numerically
corresponding day in such succeeding month, such Interest Period shall end
on the last Business Day of such succeeding month; or
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(b) if Yield for such Receivable Interest is calculated on the basis
of the Alternate Base Rate, a period commencing on a Business Day selected
by Seller and agreed to by the Agent, provided that no such period shall
exceed one month.

If any Interest Period would end on a day which is not a Business Day, such
Interest Period shall end on the next succeeding Business Day, provided,
however, that in the case of Interest Periods corresponding to the LIBO Rate, if
such next succeeding Business Day falls in a new month, such Interest Period
shall end on the immediately preceding Business Day. In the case of any
Interest Period which commences before the Facility Termination Date and would
otherwise end on a date occurring after the Facility Termination Date, such
Interest Period shall end on the Facility Termination Date. The duration of
each Interest Period which commences after the Facility Termination Date shall
be of such duration as selected by the Agent.

"Invested Amount" of any Receivable Interest means, at any time, (A)
the Purchase Price of such Receivable Interest, minus (B) the sum of the
aggregate amount of Collections and other payments received by the Agent which
in each case are applied to reduce such Invested Amount in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement; provided that such Invested Amount shall
be restored (in accordance with Section 2.5) in the amount of any Collections or
other payments so received and applied if at any time the distribution of such
Collections or payments are rescinded, returned or refunded for any reason.

"LIBO Rate" means, for any Interest Period, the rate per annum
determined on the basis of the offered rate for deposits in U.S. dollars of
amounts equal or comparable to the Invested Amount offered for a term comparable
to such Interest Period, which rates appear on a Bloomberg L.P. terminal,
displayed under the address "US0001M (Index) Q (Go)" effective as of 11:00 A.M.,
London time, two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period,
provided that if no such offered rates appear on such page, the LIBO Rate for
such Interest Period will be the arithmetic average (rounded upwards, if
necessary, to the next higher 1/100th of 1%) of rates quoted by not less than
two major banks in New York, New York, selected by the Agent, at approximately
10:00 a.m. (New York time), two Business Days prior to the first day of such
Interest Period, for deposits in U.S. dollars offered by leading European banks
for a period comparable to such Interest Period in an amount comparable to the
Invested Amount, divided by (b) one minus the maximum aggregate reserve
requirement (including all basic, supplemental, marginal or other reserves)
which is imposed against the Agent in respect of Eurocurrency liabilities, as
defined in Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
as in effect from time to time (expressed as a decimal), applicable to such
Interest Period plus (ii) 1.75% per annum. The LIBO Rate shall be rounded, if
necessary, to the next higher 1/16 of 1%.

"Liquidity Agreement" means that certain Liquidity Asset Purchase
Agreement dated as of May 30, 2001, by and among Blue Ridge, the Agent and the
banks from time to time party thereto, as the same may be amended, restated
and/or otherwise modified from time to time in accordance with the terms
thereof.

"Liquidity Bank" means each bank from time to time party to the
Liquidity Agreement (other than the Agent acting in its capacity as the Agent
thereunder) .
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"Ligquidity Commitment" means, as to each Liquidity Bank, its
commitment under the Liquidity Agreement. The Liquidity Commitments, in the
aggregate, shall equal 102% of the Purchase Limit hereunder.
"Liquidity Funding" means a purchase by any Liquidity Bank pursuant to
its Liquidity Commitment of all or any portion of, or any undivided interest in,

a Receivable Interest.

"Liquidity Termination Date" means the earlier to occur of the



following:

(a) the date on which the Ligquidity Banks' Liquidity Commitments
expire, cease to be available to Blue Ridge or otherwise cease to be in
full force and effect; or

(b) the date on which a Downgrading Event with respect to a Liquidity
Bank shall have occurred and been continuing for not less than 30 days, and
either (i) the Downgraded Liquidity Bank shall not have been replaced by an
Eligible Assignee pursuant to the Liquidity Agreement, or (ii) the
Liquidity Commitment of such Downgraded Liquidity Bank shall not have been
funded or collateralized in such a manner that will avoid a reduction in or
withdrawal of the credit rating applied to the Commercial Paper to which
such Liquidity Agreement applies by any of the rating agencies then rating
such Commercial Paper.

"Lock-Box" means each locked postal box with respect to which a bank
who has executed a Collection Account Agreement has been granted exclusive
access for the purpose of retrieving and processing payments made on the
Receivables and which is listed on Exhibit IV.

"Loss Reserve" means, for any Calculation Period, the product
(expressed as a percentage) of (a) 2.0, times (b) the highest three-month
rolling average Default Ratio during the 12 Calculation Periods ending on the
immediately preceding Cut-Off Date, times (c) the Default Horizon Ratio as of
the immediately preceding Cut-Off Date.

"Material Adverse Effect" means a material adverse effect on (i) the
financial condition or operations of any Seller Party and its Subsidiaries taken
as a whole, (ii) the ability of any Seller Party to perform its obligations
under this Agreement or the Performance Guarantor to perform its obligations
under the Performance Undertaking, (iii) the legality, validity or
enforceability of this Agreement or any other Transaction Document, (iv) the
Agent's security interest, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, in the
Receivables generally or in any significant portion of the Receivables, the
Related Security or the Collections with respect thereto, or (v) the
collectibility of the Receivables generally or of any material portion of the
Receivables.

"Monthly Report" means a report, in substantially the form of Exhibit
VIII hereto (appropriately completed), furnished by the Servicer to the Agent
pursuant to Section 8.5.

"Monthly Reporting Date" means the 17/th/ day of each month after the
date of this Agreement (or if any such day is not a Business Day, the next
succeeding Business Day
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thereafter) or such other days of any month as Agent may request in connection
with Section 8.5 hereof.

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

"Net Pool Balance" means, at any time, the aggregate Outstanding
Balance of all Eligible Receivables at such time reduced by (a) the aggregate
amount by which the Outstanding Balance of all Eligible Receivables of each
Obligor and its Affiliates exceeds the Obligor Concentration Limit for such
Obligor, and (b) the total amount of Contractual Dilutions during the
Calculation Period then most recently ended.

"Non-Contractual Dilution" means a Dilution which does not constitute
a Contractual Dilution.

"Non-Contractual Dilution Ratio" means, as of any Cut-Off Date, a
ratio (expressed as a percentage), computed by dividing (i) the total amount of
decreases in Outstanding Balances due to Non-Contractual Dilutions during the
Calculation Period ending on such Cut-Off Date, by (ii) the aggregate sales
generated by the Originators during the Calculation Period prior to the
Calculation Period ending on such Cut-Off Date.

"Obligor" means a Person obligated to make payments pursuant to a
Contract.

"Obligor Concentration Limit" means, at any time, in relation to the
aggregate Outstanding Balance of Receivables owed by any single Obligor and its
Affiliates (if any), the applicable concentration limit shall be determined as
follows for Obligors who have short term unsecured debt ratings currently
assigned to them by S&P and Moody's (or in the absence thereof, the equivalent
long term unsecured senior debt ratings), the applicable concentration limit
shall be determined according to the following table:

Allowable % of Eligible
S&P Rating Moody's Rating Receivables



A-1 p-1 8%
A-2 P-2 6%
A-3 P-3 3.5%
Below A-3 or Not Rated Below P-3 or Not
by either S&P or Rated by either S&P or 3.5%
Moody's Moody's

; provided, however, that (a) if any Obligor has a split rating, the applicable
rating will be the lower of the two, (b) if any Obligor is not rated by either
S&P or Moody's, the applicable Obligor Concentration Limit shall be the one set
forth in the last line of the table above, and (c) subject to satisfaction of
the Rating Agency Condition and/or an increase in the percentage set forth in
clause (a) (1) of the definition of "Required Reserve," upon Seller's request
from time to time, the Agent may agree to a higher percentage of Eligible
Receivables for a particular Obligor
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and its Affiliates (each such higher percentage, a "Special Concentration
Limit"), it being understood that any Special Concentration Limit may be
cancelled by the Agent upon not less than five (5) Business Days' written notice
to the Seller Parties.

"Originator" means each of Parent, Del City Wire Co., Inc., an
Oklahoma corporation, GB Tools and Supplies, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation,
Versa Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Engineered Solutions, L.P., an
Indiana limited partnership, and VT Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation, in its
capacity as a seller under the Receivables Sale Agreement.

"Outstanding Balance" of any Receivable at any time means the then
outstanding principal balance thereof.

"Parent" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.
"Performance Guarantor" means Parent.

"Performance Undertaking" means that certain Performance Undertaking,
dated as of May 30, 2001 by Performance Guarantor in favor of Seller,
substantially in the form of Exhibit IX, as the same may be amended, restated or
otherwise modified from time to time.

"Permitted Sub-Servicer" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1 (b).

"Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a
business trust), limited liability company, joint stock company, trust,
unincorporated association, joint venture or other entity, or a government or
any political subdivision or agency thereof.

"Pooled Commercial Paper" means Commercial Paper notes of Blue Ridge
subject to any particular pooling arrangement by Blue Ridge, but excluding
Commercial Paper issued by Blue Ridge for a tenor and in an amount specifically
requested by any Person in connection with any agreement effected by Blue Ridge.

"Prime Rate" means a rate per annum equal to the prime rate of
interest announced from time to time by Wachovia (which is not necessarily the
lowest rate charged to any customer), changing when and as said prime rate
changes.

"Proposed Reduction Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3.
"Purchase" means an Incremental Purchase or a Reinvestment.

"Purchase Date" means each Business Day on which a Purchase is made
hereunder.

"Purchase Limit" means $33,000,000.
"Purchase Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2.
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"Purchase Price" means, with respect to any Incremental Purchase of a
Receivable Interest, the amount paid to Seller for such Receivable Interest
which shall not exceed the least of (i) the amount requested by Seller in the
applicable Purchase Notice, (ii) the unused portion of the Purchase Limit on the
applicable purchase date and (iii) the excess, if any, of the Net Pool Balance
(less the Required Reserve) on the applicable purchase date over the aggregate
outstanding amount of Aggregate Invested Amount determined as of the date of the



most recent Monthly Report, taking into account such proposed Incremental
Purchase.

"Purchased Assets" means all of Seller's right, title and interest,
whether now owned and existing or hereafter arising in and to all of the
Receivables, the Related Security, the Collections and all proceeds of the
foregoing.

"Rating Agency Condition" means that Blue Ridge has received written
notice from S&P and Moody's that an amendment, a change or a waiver will not
result in a withdrawal or downgrade of the then current ratings on Blue Ridge's
Commercial Paper.

"Receivable" means any "Receivable" (under and as defined in the
Receivables Sale Agreement) in which the Seller now has or hereafter acquires
any right or interest.

"Receivable Interest" means, at any time, an undivided percentage
ownership interest (computed as set forth below) associated with a designated
amount of Invested Amount, selected pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof
in (i) each Receivable arising prior to the time of the most recent computation
or recomputation of such undivided interest, (ii) all Related Security with
respect to each such Receivable, and (iii) all Collections with respect to, and
other proceeds of, each such Receivable. Each such undivided percentage
interest shall equal:

IA + RR
"""" wes
where:
IA = the Invested Amount of such Receivable Interest.
NPB = the Net Pool Balance.
RR = the Required Reserve.

Such undivided percentage ownership interest shall be initially computed on its
date of purchase. Thereafter, until the Facility Termination Date, each
Receivable Interest shall be automatically recomputed (or deemed to be
recomputed) on each day prior to the Facility Termination Date. The variable
percentage represented by any Receivable Interest as computed (or deemed
recomputed) as of the close of the business day immediately preceding the
Facility Termination Date shall remain constant at all times thereafter.

"Receivables Sale Agreement" means that certain Receivables Sale
Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2001, among the Originators and Seller, as the
same may be amended, restated or otherwise modified from time to time.
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"Records" has the meaning specified in the Receivables Sale Agreement.

"Recourse Obligations" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

"Reduction Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3.

"Regulatory Change" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.2(a).

"Reinvestment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

"Related Security" means, with respect to any Receivable, all of
Seller's right, title and interest in, to and under:

(1) all "Related Security" (under and as defined in the Receivables
Sale Agreement) in which the Seller now has or hereafter acquires any right
or interest,

(ii) the Receivables Sale Agreement and the Performance Undertaking,

(1ii) the Demand Advances, and

(iv) all proceeds of any of the foregoing.

"Required Liquidity Banks" means, at any time, Liquidity Banks with

Liquidity Commitments in excess of 50% of the aggregate amount of all Liquidity

Commitments.

"Required Notice Period" means the number of days required notice set
forth below applicable to the Aggregate Reduction indicated below:

Period



2 Business Days less than 25% of the
Purchase Limit

5 Business Days greater than 25% but less
than 50% of the Purchase
Limit

10 Business Days greater than 50% of the

Purchase Limit

"Required Reserve" means, on any day during a Calculation Period, the
product of (a) the greater of (i) the Required Reserve Factor Floor and (ii) the
sum of the Loss Reserve, the Yield Reserve, the Dilution Reserve and the
Servicing Reserve, times (b) the Net Pool Balance as of the Cut-Off Date
immediately preceding such Calculation Period.
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"Required Reserve Factor Floor" means, for any Calculation Period, the
sum (expressed as a percentage) of (a) 16% plus (b) the product of the Adjusted
Dilution Ratio and the Dilution Horizon Ratio, in each case, as of the
immediately preceding Cut-Off Date.

"Restricted Junior Payment" means (i) any dividend or other
distribution, direct or indirect, on account of any shares of any class of
capital stock of Seller now or hereafter outstanding, except a dividend payable
solely in shares of that class of stock or in any junior class of stock of
Seller, (ii) any redemption, retirement, sinking fund or similar payment,
purchase or other acquisition for value, direct or indirect, of any shares of
any class of capital stock of Seller now or hereafter outstanding, (iii) any
payment or prepayment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest, fees or
other charges on or with respect to, and any redemption, purchase, retirement,
defeasance, sinking fund or similar payment and any claim for rescission with
respect to the Subordinated Loans (as defined in the Receivables Sale
Agreement), (iv) any payment made to redeem, purchase, repurchase or retire, or
to obtain the surrender of, any outstanding warrants, options or other rights to
acquire shares of any class of capital stock of Seller now or hereafter
outstanding, and (v) any payment of management fees by Seller (except for
reasonable management fees to any Originator or its Affiliates in reimbursement
of actual management services performed).

"S&P" means Standard and Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The
McGraw Hill Companies, Inc.

"Secured Parties" means the Indemnified Parties.
"Seller" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.

"Seller Parties" means, collectively, Seller and, so long as it is
acting as Servicer and/or Performance Guarantor, Parent.

"Servicer" means at any time the Person (which may be the Agent) then
authorized pursuant to Article VIII to service, administer and collect
Receivables.

"Servicing Fee" means, for each day in a Calculation Period:

(a) an amount equal to (i) the Servicing Fee Rate (or, at any time
while Parent or one of its Affiliates is the Servicer, such lesser
percentage as may be agreed between Seller and the Servicer on an arms'
length basis based on then prevailing market terms for similar services),
times (ii) the aggregate Outstanding Balance of all Receivables at the
close of business on the Cut-Off Date immediately preceding such
Calculation Period, times (iii) 1/360; or

(b) on and after the Servicer's reasonable request made at any time
when Parent or one of its Affiliates is no longer acting as Servicer
hereunder, an alternative amount specified by the successor Servicer not
exceeding (i) 110% of such Servicer's reasonable costs and expenses of
performing its obligations under this Agreement during the
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preceding Calculation Period, divided by (ii) the number of days in the
current Calculation Period.

"Servicing Fee Rate" means 1.0% per annum.

"Servicing Reserve" means, for any Calculation Period, the product
(expressed as a percentage) of (a) the Servicing Fee Rate, times (b) a fraction,
the numerator of which is the highest Days Sales Outstanding for the most recent
12 Calculation Periods and the denominator of which is 360.



"Settlement Date" means (A) the 2/nd/ Business Day after each Monthly
Reporting Date, and (B) the last day of the relevant Interest Period in respect
of each Receivable Interests funded through a Liquidity Funding.

"Settlement Period" means (A) in respect of each Receivable Interest
funded through the issuance of Commercial Paper, the immediately preceding
Calculation Period, and (B) in respect of each Receivable Interest funded
through a Liquidity Funding, the entire Interest Period of such Liquidity
Funding.

"Subsidiary" of a Person means (i) any corporation more than 50% of
the outstanding securities having ordinary voting power of which shall at the
time be owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or by one or
more of its Subsidiaries or by such Person and one or more of its Subsidiaries,
or (ii) any partnership, association, limited liability company, joint venture
or similar business organization more than 50% of the ownership interests having
ordinary voting power of which shall at the time be so owned or controlled.

"Taxes" means any and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts,
duties, deductions, charges or withholdings imposed by any Governmental
Authority.

"Terminating Tranche" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3 (b).

"Trade Show Receivable" means any Receivable created as a result of
participation in a trade show within the 45 days prior to the creation thereof.

"Transaction Documents" means, collectively, this Agreement, each
Purchase Notice, the Receivables Sale Agreement, each Collection Account
Agreement, the Performance Undertaking, the Fee Letter, each Subordinated Note
(as defined in the Receivables Sale Agreement) and all other instruments,
documents and agreements executed and delivered in connection herewith.

"UCC" means the Uniform Commercial Code as from time to time in effect
in the specified jurisdiction.

"Unmatured Amortization Event" means an event which, with the passage
of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute an Amortization
Event.
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"Wachovia" means Wachovia Bank, N.A. in its individual capacity and
its successors.

"Yield" means for each Interest Period relating to a Receivable
Interest funded through a Liquidity Funding, an amount equal to the product of
the applicable Yield Rate for such Receivable Interest multiplied by the
Invested Amount of such Receivable Interest for each day elapsed during such
Interest Period, annualized on a 360 day basis.

"Yield Rate" means, with respect to each Receivable Interest funded
through a Liquidity Funding, the LIBO Rate, the Alternate Base Rate or the
Default Rate, as applicable.

"Yield Reserve" means, for any Calculation Period, the product
(expressed as a percentage) of (i) 1.5 times (ii) the Alternate Base Rate as of

the immediately preceding Cut-Off Date times (iii) a fraction the numerator of

which is the highest Days Sales Outstanding for the most recent 12 Calculation
Periods and the denominator of which is 360.

All accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be
construed in accordance with GAAP. All terms used in Article 9 of the UCC in
the State of Illinois, and not specifically defined herein, are used herein as
defined in such Article 9.
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EXHIBIT II

FORM OF PURCHASE NOTICE

Actuant Receivables Corporation

PURCHASE NOTICE
dated , 20
for Purchase on , 20

Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent



191 Peachtree Street, N.E., GA-423
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Attention: Elizabeth R. Wagner, Fax No. (404) 332-5152
Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of
May 30, 2001 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time,
the "Receivables Purchase Agreement") among Actuant Receivables Corporation (the
"Seller"), Actuant Corporation, as initial Servicer, Blue Ridge Asset Funding
Corporation, and Wachovia Bank N.A., as Agent. Capitalized terms defined in the
Receivables Purchase Agreement are used herein with the same meanings.

1. The [Servicer, on behalf of the] Seller hereby certifies,
represents and warrants to the Agent and Blue Ridge that on and as of the
Purchase Date (as hereinafter defined):

(a) all applicable conditions precedent set forth in Article VI of
the Receivables Purchase Agreement have been satisfied;

(b) each of its representations and warranties contained in Section
5.1 of the Receivables Purchase Agreement will be true and correct, in all
material respects, as if made on and as of the Purchase Date;

(c) no event will have occurred and is continuing, or would result
from the requested Purchase, that constitutes an Amortization Event or
Unmatured Amortization Event;

(d) the Facility Termination Date has not occurred; and
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(e) after giving effect to the Purchase requested below, the
Aggregate Invested Amount will not exceed the Purchase Limit and the
aggregate Receivable Interests will not exceed 100%.

2. The [Servicer, on behalf of the] Seller hereby requests
that Blue Ridge make a Purchase on , 20__ (the "Purchase Date") as
follows:

(a) Purchase Price: $

(b) If the Purchase is funded with a Liquidity Funding,
[Servicer on behalf of the] Seller requests that the Invested Amount
(which will initially accrue Yield at the Alternate Base Rate) begin to
accrued Yield at a LIBO Rate for a Interest Period of months on
the third Business Day after the Purchase Date).

3. Please disburse the proceeds of the Purchase as follows:

[Apply $ to payment of Aggregate Unpaids due on the
Purchase Date]. [Wire transfer $ to account no. at
Bank, in [city, state], ABA No. , Reference:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the [Servicer, on behalf of the] Seller
has caused this Purchase Request to be executed and delivered as of this
day of ’

[Actuant Corporation, as Servicer, on behalf of:] Actuant
Receivables Corporation, as Seller

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT III
PLACES OF BUSINESS OF THE SELLER PARTIES; LOCATIONS OF RECORDS;
FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS
Chief Executive Office:

Seller:

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway

Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

Servicer:
6100 North Baker Road



Glendale, WI 53209

Locations of Records:
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway
Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Federal Employer Identification Number for Each Seller Party:

Actuant Corporation: 39-0168610
Actuant Receivables Corporation: 88-0497173

Legal, Trade and Assumed Names for Each Seller Party:

Actuant Corporation: Applied Power Inc. (1/11/01)
Actuant Receivables Corporation: n/a
62
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Exhibit IV
Lock-boxes; Collection Accounts; Collection Banks
LEGAL ENTITY BUSINESS UNIT EXISTING EXISTING EXISTING REVISED
BANK LOCKBOX # DDA # BANK

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>

Actuant Receivables (new "SPE") n/a n/a n/a Bank One

Corporation

Tools & Supplies

Actuant Corporation Enerpac Bank of 98093 8765-0-60760 Bank One
America

GB Tools & Supplies, Inc. Gardner Bender (GB) Marshall & 88397 122-2546 Bank One
Ilsley

" Calterm Bank of n/a 8765-9-60398 Bank One
America
" Ancor Products Bank of n/a 8765-0-01091 Bank One

America

Del City Wire Co. Inc. Del City Bank of n/a 8765-0-01092 Bank One
America



Actuant Corporation Power Packer Bank of 98093 8765-0-60760 Bank One

America
Versa Technologies, Inc. Power Gear Marshall & 10199 486-6114 Bank One
Ilsley
Engineered Solutions LP Engineered Solutions Bank One 22626 10-81348 Bank One
Americas
(sub of VT Holdings, Inc.) (i.e., currently Dewald only)
<CAPTION>
LEGAL ENTITY REVISED REVISED CONCENTRATION
LOCKBOX # DDA # EFFECTIVE
5/31/01
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Actuant Receivables n/a 10-87832 ZBA to 10-61597
Corporation
Tools & Supplies
Actuant Corporation 22730 10-87766 ZBA to new SPE
al/c
GB Tools & Supplies, Inc 22732 10-87774 ZBA to new SPE
al/c
" 22732 10-87774 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
" n/a 10-87782 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
Del City Wire Co. Inc 22736 10-87790 ZBA to new SPE
al/c
Engineered Solutions
Actuant Corporation 22738 10-87808 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
Versa Technologies, Inc 22742 10-87816 ZBA to new SPE
a/c
Engineered Solutions LP 22626 10-81348 ZBA to new SPE
al/c
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EXHIBIT V
[FORM OF] COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To: Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent

This Compliance Certificate is furnished pursuant to that
certain Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of May 30, 2001 among Actuant



Receivables Corporation (the "Seller"), Actuant Corporation (the "Servicer"),
Blue Ridge Asset Funding Corporation and Wachovia Bank, N.A., as agent (the
"Agreement") .

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT:

1. I am the duly elected of Seller.

2. I have reviewed the terms of the Agreement and I have
made, or have caused to be made under my supervision, a detailed review of the
transactions and conditions of Seller and its Subsidiaries during the accounting
period covered by the attached financial statements.

3. The examinations described in paragraph 2 did not
disclose, and I have no knowledge of, the existence of any condition or event
which constitutes an Amortization Event or Unmatured Amortization Event, as each
such term is defined under the Agreement, during or at the end of the accounting
period covered by the attached financial statements or as of the date of this
Certificate[, except as set forth in paragraph 5 below].

4. Schedule I attached hereto sets forth financial data
and computations evidencing the compliance with certain covenants of the
Agreement, all of which data and computations are true, complete and correct.

[5. Described below are the exceptions, if any, to
paragraph 3 by listing, in detail, the nature of the condition or event, the
period during which it has existed and the action which Seller has taken, is
taking, or proposes to take with respect to each such condition or event:

1
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The foregoing certifications, together with the computations set forth in
Schedule I hereto and the financial statements delivered with this Certificate

in support hereof, are made and delivered as of , 20 .
By:
Name :
Title:
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SCHEDULE I TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

A. Schedule of Compliance as of [Date] with Sections
of the Agreement. Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms used in this
Compliance Certificate have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement.

This schedule relates to the month ended:
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EXHIBIT VI
[FORM OF] COLLECTION ACCOUNT AGREEMENT
May 30, 2001

Bank One, NA and

Banc One National Processing Corporation
1 Bank One Plaza

Chicago, IL 60670-0935

Attention: Loretta McCarthy
Fax No.: (312) 928-0338

Re: Actuant Corporation and Subsidiaries/Actuant Receivables
Corporation

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the postal boxes identified on
Schedule I hereto in (the "Lock-Boxes") of which one or more of you has

exclusive control for the purpose of receiving mail and processing payments
therefrom pursuant to your agreement with Actuant Corporation, a Wisconsin
corporation (the "Parent"), Del City Wire Co., Inc., an Oklahoma corporation, GB
Tools and Supplies, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, Versa Technologies, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, and Engineered Solutions, L.P., an Indiana limited
partnership (each of the foregoing, including Parent, an "Originator" and
collectively, the "Originators"), pursuant to lock-box service agreements with

one of the Originators (the "Services Agreements"). You hereby confirm your



agreement to perform the services described therein. Among the services you have
agreed to perform therein, is to endorse all checks and other evidences of
payment, and credit such payments to the Originators' respective accounts with
you as identified on Schedule I hereto (the "Lock-Box Accounts"). We understand

that Bank One, NA (the "Collection Bank") and Banc One National Processing

Corporation ("BONPC") work together to provide services with respect to certain
of the Lock-Boxes and Lock-Box Accounts. Reference is also made to the deposit
accounts identified on Schedule I hereto (together with the Lock-Box Accounts,
the "Accounts"). All references herein to "you" and "your" shall mean the

Collection Bank and BONPC, as applicable.

Each of the Originators hereby informs you that (i) pursuant
to that certain Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2001 among the
Originators, as sellers, and Actuant Receivables Corporation, a Delaware
corporation ("SPV"), as purchaser, such Originator has transferred to SPV all of
such Originator's right, title and interest in and to the items from time to
time deposited into each Lock-Box and Accounts, and (ii) pursuant to that
certain Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2001 among SPV, as
borrower, Actuant
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Corporation, as initial servicer, Blue Ridge Asset Funding Corporation and
Wachovia Bank, N.A., individually and as agent (in such latter capacity, the
"Agent"), SPV has granted to the Agent a security interest in all of its right,
title and interest in and to the items from time to time deposited in each Lock-
Box and each Account.

Each of the Originators and SPV hereby irrevocably instructs
you, and you hereby agree, that upon receiving notice from the Agent in the form
attached hereto as Annex A (a "Control Notice"): (i) the name of each Account
will be changed to "Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent" (or any designee of the
Agent) and the Agent will have exclusive ownership of and access to the
Lock-Boxes and the Accounts, and none of the Originators, SPV, nor any of their
respective affiliates will have any control of the Lock-Boxes or the Accounts or
any access thereto, (ii) you will either continue to send the funds from the
Lock-Boxes to the Lock-Box Accounts, or will redirect such funds as the Agent
may otherwise request, (iii) you will transfer monies on deposit in the
Accounts, at any time, to the following account:

Bank Name: Wachovia Bank, N.A.

Location: Winston-Salem, NC

ABA Routing No.: ABA # 053100494

Credit Account No.: For credit to Blue Ridge Asset Funding Account
#8735-098787

Reference: Blue Ridge/Actuant Receivables Corporation

Attention: John Dillon, tel. (336) 732-2690

or as otherwise directed by the Agent, (iv) all services to be performed by you
under the Services Agreements will be performed on behalf of the Agent, and (v)
all correspondence or other mail which you have agreed to send to any of the
Originators or SPV will be sent to the Agent at the following address:

Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent

191 Peachtree Street

Mail Stop GA-423

Atlanta, GA 30303

Attn: Elizabeth K. Wagner,
Asset-Backed Finance

Fax: (404) 332- 5152

Moreover, upon such Control Notice, the Agent will have all rights and remedies
given to the Originators (and the SPV, as the Originators' assignee) under the
Services Agreements. Each of the Originators agrees, however, to continue to pay
all fees and other assessments due thereunder at any time.

The Originators, SPV and the Agent, as the case may be, are
responsible for, and you may rely upon, the contents of any notice or
instructions that you believe in good faith to be from the Originators, SPV or
the Agent, as the case may be, without any independent investigation. You shall
have no duty to inquire into the authority of the person in giving such
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notice or instruction. In the event that you receive conflicting notices or
instructions, you may refuse to act.

You shall not be deemed to have any knowledge (imputed or



otherwise) of: (a) any of the terms or conditions of any financing arrangement
or any document referred to therein between the Originators, SPV, and the Agent,
or any breach thereof, or (b) any occurrence or existence of a default. You have
no obligation to inform any person of such breach or to take any action in
connection with any of the foregoing, except such actions regarding the
Lockboxes and the Accounts as are specified in this Letter Agreement. You are
not responsible for the enforceability or validity of the security interest in
the Lockboxes or the Accounts.

You hereby acknowledge that monies deposited in the Accounts or
any other account established with you by the Agent for the purpose of receiving
funds from the Lock-Boxes are subject to the liens of the Agent, and will not be
subject to deduction, set-off, banker's lien or any other right you or any other
party may have against the Originators or SPV, except that you may debit the
Accounts for (a) any items, including, without limitation, any automated
clearinghouse transactions which are returned for any reason and any
adjustments; and (b) any amount then due from the Originators, SPV or the Agent
to you under this Letter Agreement or related to the items, the Accounts or any
items deposited therein that are otherwise not collected and for all charges,
fees, commissions and expenses incurred by you in providing services hereunder,
all in accordance with your customary practices for the charge back of returned
items and expenses. Subject to the terms of this Letter Agreement, you agree
that the security interest is superior to any right of set-off, security
interest or other lien which you might otherwise have in the items, the
Lockboxes or the Accounts.

You will be liable only for direct damages in the event you fail
to exercise ordinary care. You shall be deemed to have exercised ordinary care
if your action or failure to act is in conformity with general banking usages or
is otherwise a commercially reasonable practice of the banking industry. You
shall not be liable for any special, indirect or consequential damages, even if
you have been advised of the possibility of these damages.

Each of the Originators, SPV and, from and after delivery of a
Control Notice, the Agent jointly and severally agree to indemnify you for, and
hold you harmless from, all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses,
including legal fees and expenses, resulting from or with respect to this Letter
Agreement and the administration and maintenance of the Accounts and the
services provided hereunder, including, without limitation: (a) any action
taken, or not taken, by you in regard thereto in accordance with the terms of
this Letter Agreement, (b) the breach of any representation or warranty made by
the Originators or SPV pursuant to this Letter Agreement, (c) any item,
including, without limitation, any automated clearinghouse transaction, which is
returned for any reason, and any adjustments, and (d) any failure of an
Originator or SPV to pay any invoice or charge to you for services in respect to
this Letter Agreement and the Accounts or any amount owing to you from any of
the Originators or SPV with respect thereto or to the service provided
hereunder.
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None of the Originators, SPV, the Agent or you will be liable for
any failure to perform its obligations when the failure arises out of causes
beyond its control, including, without limitation, an act of a governmental
regulatory/authority, an act of God, accident, equipment failure, labor disputes
or system failure, provided it has exercised such diligence as the circumstances
require.

None of the Originators, SPV, the Agent or you may assign or
transfer any of its or your rights or obligations under the this Letter
Agreement, except that you may assign or transfer your rights and obligations to
any subsidiary of Banc One Corporation or any successor thereto. The Letter
Agreement shall bind the respective successors and assigns of the parties and
shall inure to the benefit of their respective successors and assigns.

This Letter Agreement and the rights and obligations of the
parties hereunder will be governed by and construed and interpreted in
accordance with internal laws (and not the law of conflicts) of the State of
Illinois and applicable federal laws. This Letter Agreement may be executed in
any number of counterparts and all of such counterparts taken together will be
deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. All references herein to "we"
or "us" refer to the Originators and SPV.

This Letter Agreement and the services provided under the
Services Agreements may be terminated by the Agent or you at any time by giving
each of the other parties hereto sixty (60) calendar days' prior written notice
of such termination.

This Letter Agreement contains the entire agreement among the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be altered,
modified, terminated or amended in any respect, nor may any right, power or
privilege of any party hereunder be waived or released or discharged, except
upon execution by all parties hereto of a written instrument so providing. In
the event that any provision in this Letter Agreement is in conflict with, or
inconsistent with, any provision of any of the Service Agreements, this Letter



Agreement will exclusively govern and control. Each party agrees to take all
actions reasonably requested by any other party to carry out the purposes of
this Letter Agreement or to preserve and protect the rights of each party
hereunder.

Any notices given pursuant to this Letter Agreement shall be
given by any commercially reasonable means and all notices shall be effective
when received. Each written notice shall be addressed to the relevant address
appearing below or at another address specified in a written notice by one party
to the other.

If to any of the Originators

c/o Actuant Corporation
6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209
Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-5446
Fax: (414) 228-6112
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If to SPV:
Same as above
If to Bank One:

Bank One, NA

1 Bank One Plaza
Chicago, IL 60670-0935
Attn: Loretta McCarthy
Phone: (312) 627-5883
Fax: (312) 928-0338

If to Agent

Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent
191 Peachtree Street

Mail Stop GA-423

Atlanta, GA 30303

Attn: Elizabeth K. Wagner
Asset-Backed Finance

Phone: (404) 332-1398

Fax: (404) 332-5152

Please indicate your agreement to the terms of this Letter Agreement
by signing in the space provided below. This Letter Agreement will become
effective immediately upon execution of a counterpart of this Letter Agreement
by all parties hereto.

Very truly yours,
ACTUANT CORPORATION,
DEL CITY WIRE CO., INC.,

GB TOOLS AND SUPPLIES, INC. &
VERSA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By:

Name: Terry M. Braatz
Title: Vice President and/or Treasurer
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ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, L.P.

BY: VERSA TECHNOLOGIES, INC., ITS GENERAL
PARTNER

By:

Name: Terry M. Braatz
Title: Vice President

ACTUANT RECEIVABLES CORPORATION

By:

Name:
Title:

Acknowledged and agreed to
as of the date first above written:



BANK ONE, NA and BANC ONE NATIONAL PROCESSING CORPORATION

By:
Name: Loretta McCarthy
Title: Officer

By:

Name:

Title:

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., as Agent

By:
Name:
Title:
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ANNEX A
FORM OF NOTICE
[On letterhead of the Agent]

[Date]

Bank One, NA and

Banc One National Processing Corporation
1 Bank One Plaza

Chicago, IL 60670
Attention: Loretta McCarthy
Fax No.: (312) 928-0338
Re: Actuant Receivables Corporation

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We hereby notify you that we are exercising our rights pursuant to
that certain letter agreement dated May 30, 2001 (the "Letter Agreement") among
Actuant Corporation, Del City Wire Co., Inc., GB Tools and Supplies, Inc., Versa
Technologies, Inc., Engineered Solutions, L.P., Actuant Receivables Corporation,
you and us, to have the name of, and to have exclusive ownership and control of,
the lock-box and other accounts identified in the Letter Agreement (the
"Accounts") maintained with you, transferred to us. The Accounts will henceforth
be zero-balance accounts,
the end of each day to:

and funds deposited in the Accounts should be sent at

Bank Name:
Location:
ABA Routing No.:

Wachovia Bank, N.A.
Winston-Salem, N.C.
ABA # 053100494

Credit Account No.: For credit to Blue Ridge Asset Funding Account
#8735-098787
Blue Ridge/Actuant Receivables Corporation

John Dillon, tel. (336) 732-2690

Reference:
Attention:

or as otherwise directed by the Agent. You have further agreed to perform all
other services you are performing under the "Services Agreements" (as defined in
the Letter Agreement) on our behalf.
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We appreciate your cooperation in this matter.
Very truly yours,

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., as Agent

By:

Name:
Title:
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SCHEDULE I
LOCK-BOXES AND ACCOUNTS
Other Account No.

Name of Originator Lock-Box Account



Actuant Receivables No Lockbox account DDA# 10-87832
Corporation
[new "SPE"]

Tools & Supplies:

Actuant Corporation 22730 DDA# 10-87766
[Enerpac]
GB Tools & Supplies 22732 DDA# 10-87774

[Gardner Bender (GB)]

GB Tools & Supplies 22732 DDA# 10-87774
[Calterm]
GB Tools & Supplies No Lockbox account DDA# 10-87782

[Ancor Products]

Del City Wire Co. Inc 22738 DDA# 10-87790
[Del City]

Engineered Solutions:
Actuant Corporation 22738 DDA# 10-87808
[Power Packer]

Versa Technologies 22742 DDA# 10-87816
[Power Gear]

Engineered Solutions LP 22626 DDA# 10-81348
[Engineered Solutions Americas]
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SCHEDULE I
LOCK-BOXES AND ACCOUNTS

Name of Originator Lock-Box Account Other Account No.
Actuant Receivables No Lockbox account DDA# 10-87832
Corporation

[new "SPE"]

Tools & Supplies:

Actuant Corporation 22730 DDA# 10-87766

[Enerpac]

GB Tools & Supplies 22732 DDA# 10-87774
[Gardner Bender (GB)]

GB Tools & Supplies 22732 DDA# 10-87774
[Calterm]

GB Tools & Supplies No Lockbox account DDA# 10-87782
[Ancor Products]

Del City Wire Co. Inc. 22738 DDA# 10-87790
[Del City]

Engineered Solutions:

Actuant Corporation 22738 DDA# 10-87808
[Power Packer]

Versa Technologies 22742 DDA# 10-87816
[Power Gear]

Versa Technologies 22740 DDA# 10-87824
[Milwaukee Cylinder]

Engineered Solutions LP 22626 DDA# 10-81348

[Engineered Solutions Americas]
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EXHIBIT VII
CREDIT AND COLLECTION POLICY
See Exhibit V to Receivables Sale Agreement
77
EXHIBIT VIII

FORM OF MONTHLY REPORT



Actuant Receivable Corporation Monthly Report
For the Month Ended:
(Page 1)
($ in Thousands)

<TABLE>
BORROWING AVAILABILITY:
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
<C>
I Portfolio Information

1. Beginning of Month Balance: (Total A/R Outstanding)

2. Gross Sales (Domestic & Foreign) :

3. Deduct:
a. Total Collections:
b. Dilution (Total)
c. Write Offs
Add:
d. Recoveries
4.

a. Calculated Ending A/R Balance [(1) + (2) - (3 a,b,c)+(3d)1]:

b. Reported Ending A/R Balance
c. Difference (If any)

7. Deduct: Excess Concentration:



8. Net Pool Balance [(6) —-(7)]:

9 Two

Three
Aging Current One Month Months
Months
Schedule: Month % Prior Prior

Prior

a Current -

b 1-30 Days Past Due _

c 31-60 Days Past Due _

d 61-90 Days Past Due _

e 91-120 Days Past Due _

f 121+ Days Past Due N

g Total I
</TABLE>
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Actuant Receivable Corporation Monthly Report
For the Month Ended:
(Page 2)
($ in Thousands)

<S> <C> <C> <C>
<C>

$0

11. Required Reserve %
#VALUE!

12. Required Reserve [(8) x (11)]
#VALUE!

ITII. Compliance

13. Asset Interest [(10) + (12) / (8)] * 100% : #VALUE !



14. 3M Avg. Delinquency Ratio *2.90% #VALUE!

#VALUE !
Current Mo. Delinquency Ratio
#VALUE!
1 Mo. Prior Delingquency Ratio
#VALUE !
2 Mo. Prior Delinquency Ratio
#VALUE !
15. 3M Avg. Default Trigger Ratio *9.75% #VALUE !
#VALUE!
Current Mo. Default Trigger Ratio
#VALUE!
1 Mo. Prior Default Trigger Ratio
#VALUE!
2 Mo. Prior Default Trigger Ratio
#VALUE!
16. 3M Avg. Dilution Ratio *7.10% #VALUE !
#VALUE!
Current Mo. Dilution Ratio
#VALUE!
1 Mo. Prior Dilution Ratio
#VALUE!
2 Mo. Prior Dilution Ratio
#VALUE!
17. Facility Limit [(12)*= $33,000,000 In Compliance
18. Minimum Required Capital Amount
#VALUE!
</TABLE>

* means less than
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Actuant Receivable Corporation Monthly Report
For the Month Ended:
(Page 3)
($ in Thousands)

IV. Excess Concentration: (Calculation)



Eligible Receivables #VALUE!

Allowable Max. Credit Rating
Percentage ~ —o-—————————=
Allowable
Balance)
3.5% S0 NR/NR
3.5% S0 A3/P3
6.0% S0 A2/P2
8.0% S0 Al/P1
10.0% S0 Al+/P1
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
LARGEST SHORT-TERM ALLOWABLE TOTAL ALLOWABLE EXCESS
OBLIGORS DEBT RATING PERCENTAGE RECEIVABLES RECEIVABLES RECEIVABLES
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
1 Lowes NR/NR 0.00% S0 $0 S0
2 Home Depot NR/NR 0.00% S0 $0 S0
3 Ace Hardware NR/NR 0.00% $0 $0 S0
4 EDN NR/NR 0.00% $0 $0 S0
5 CSK Auto NR/NR 0.00% $0 $0 $0
6 TruServe NR/NR 0.00% $0 S0 S0
7 Advance Auto NR/NR 0.00% $0 S0 S0

8 West Marine

Products NR/NR 0.00% $0 $0 $0
o ww crainger NR/NR 0.00% s so s
10 Fleetwood NR/NR 0.00% s so s
11 sears NR/NR 0.00% s so s
12 orchara NR/NR 0.00% s so s
13 o wmr o002 s so s
O retar s so s
<maELES

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the foregoing is a true and
accurate accounting with respect to outstanding Receivables as of

accordance with the Receivables Purchase Agreement dated May 30,
2001 and that all representations and warranties related to such Agreement are
restated and reaffirmed.
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EXHIBIT IX
FORM OF PERFORMANCE UNDERTAKING
This Performance Undertaking (this "Undertaking"), dated as of May 30,
2001, is executed by Actuant Corporation, a Wisconsin corporation (the
"Performance Guarantor") in favor of Actuant Receivables Corporation, a Nevada

corporation (together with its successors and assigns, "Recipient").

RECITALS



1. Del City Wire Co., Inc., an Oklahoma corporation, GB Tools and
Supplies, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, Versa Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, Engineered Solutions, L.P., an Indiana limited partnership, and VT
Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (collectively, the "Other Originators"),
Performance Guarantor and Recipient have entered into a Receivables Sale
Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2001 (as amended, restated or otherwise modified
from time to time, the "Sale Agreement"), pursuant to which Performance
Guarantor and Other Originators, subject to the terms and conditions contained
therein, are selling and/or contributing their respective right, title and
interest in their accounts receivable to Recipient.

2. Performance Guarantor owns one hundred percent (100%) of the
capital stock of each of the Other Originators and Recipient, and each of the
Other Originators, and accordingly, Performance Guarantor, is expected to
receive substantial direct and indirect benefits from their sale or contribution
of receivables to Recipient pursuant to the Sale Agreement (which benefits are
hereby acknowledged) .

3. As an inducement for Recipient to acquire Other Originators’
accounts receivable pursuant to the Sale Agreement, Performance Guarantor has
agreed to guaranty the due and punctual performance by Other Originators of
their obligations under the Sale Agreement, as well as each of the Other
Originator's Servicing Related Obligations (as hereinafter defined).

4. Performance Guarantor wishes to guaranty the due and punctual
performance by Other Originators of their obligations to Recipient under or in
respect of the Sale Agreement and each of the Other Originator's Servicing
Related Obligations (as hereinafter defined), as provided herein.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, Performance Guarantor hereby agrees as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used herein and not defined
herein shall the respective meanings assigned thereto in the Sale Agreement or
the Receivables Purchase Agreement (as hereinafter defined). In addition:
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"Guaranteed Obligations" means, collectively: (a) all
covenants, agreements, terms, conditions and indemnities to be performed and
observed by any Other Originator under and pursuant to the Sale Agreement and
each other document executed and delivered by any Other Originator pursuant to
the Sale Agreement, including, without limitation, the due and punctual payment
of all sums which are or may become due and owing by any Other Originator under
the Sale Agreement, whether for fees, expenses (including counsel fees),
indemnified amounts or otherwise, whether upon any termination or for any other
reason and (b) all obligations of each of the Other Originators (i) as a
Permitted Sub-Servicer under the Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of May
30, 2001 by and among Recipient, as Seller, Performance Guarantor, as initial
Servicer, Blue Ridge Asset Funding Corporation, and Wachovia Bank, N.A., as
Agent (as amended, restated or otherwise modified, the "Receivables Purchase
Agreement" and, together with the Sale Agreement, the "Agreements") or (ii)
which arise pursuant to Sections 8.2, 8.3 or 13.3(a) of the Receivables Purchase
Agreement as a result of its termination as Servicer (all such obligations under
this clause (b), collectively, the "Servicing Related Obligations").

Section 2. Guaranty of Performance of Guaranteed Obligations.
Performance Guarantor hereby guarantees to Recipient, the full and punctual
payment and performance by each Other Originator of its respective Guaranteed
Obligations. This Undertaking is an absolute, unconditional and continuing
guaranty of the full and punctual performance of all Guaranteed Obligations of
each Other Originator under the Agreements and each other document executed and
delivered by any Other Originator pursuant to the Agreements and is in no way
conditioned upon any requirement that Recipient first attempt to collect any
amounts owing by any Other Originator to Recipient, the Agent or Blue Ridge from
any other Person or resort to any collateral security, any balance of any
deposit account or credit on the books of Recipient, the Agent or Blue Ridge in
favor of any Other Originator or any other Person or other means of obtaining
payment. Should any Other Originator default in the payment or performance of
any of its Guaranteed Obligations, Recipient (or its assigns) may cause the
immediate performance by Performance Guarantor of the Guaranteed Obligations and
cause any payment Guaranteed Obligations to become forthwith due and payable to
Recipient (or its assigns), without demand or notice of any nature (other than
as expressly provided herein), all of which are hereby expressly waived by
Performance Guarantor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Undertaking is not a
guarantee of the collection of any of the Receivables and Performance Guarantor
shall not be responsible for any Guaranteed Obligations to the extent the
failure to perform such Guaranteed Obligations by any Other Originator results
from Receivables being uncollectible on account of the insolvency, bankruptcy or
lack of creditworthiness of the related Obligor; provided that nothing herein
shall relieve any Other Originator from performing in full its Guaranteed
Obligations under the Agreements or Performance Guarantor of its undertaking



hereunder with respect to the full performance of such duties.

Section 3. Performance Guarantor's Further Agreements to Pay.
Performance Guarantor further agrees, as the principal obligor and not as a
guarantor only, to pay to Recipient (and its assigns), forthwith upon demand in
funds immediately available to Recipient, all reasonable costs and expenses
(including court costs and reasonable legal expenses) incurred or expended by
Recipient in connection with the Guaranteed Obligations, this Undertaking and
the
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enforcement thereof, together with interest on amounts recoverable under this
Undertaking from the time when such amounts become due until payment, at a rate
of interest (computed for the actual number of days elapsed based on a 360 day
year) equal to the Prime Rate plus 2% per annum, such rate of interest changing
when and as the Prime Rate changes.

Section 4. Waivers by Performance Guarantor. Performance
Guarantor waives notice of acceptance of this Undertaking, notice of any action
taken or omitted by Recipient (or its assigns) in reliance on this Undertaking,
and any requirement that Recipient (or its assigns) be diligent or prompt in
making demands under this Undertaking, giving notice of any Termination Event,
Amortization Event, other default or omission by any Other Originator or
asserting any other rights of Recipient under this Undertaking. Performance
Guarantor warrants that it has adequate means to obtain from each Other
Originator, on a continuing basis, information concerning the financial
condition of such Other Originator, and that it is not relying on Recipient to
provide such information, now or in the future. Performance Guarantor also
irrevocably waives all defenses (i) that at any time may be available in respect
of the Guaranteed Obligations by virtue of any statute of limitations,
valuation, stay, moratorium law or other similar law now or hereafter in effect
or (ii) that arise under the law of suretyship, including impairment of
collateral. Recipient (and its assigns) shall be at liberty, without giving
notice to or obtaining the assent of Performance Guarantor and without relieving
Performance Guarantor of any liability under this Undertaking, to deal with each
Other Originator and with each other party who now is or after the date hereof
becomes liable in any manner for any of the Guaranteed Obligations, in such
manner as Recipient in its sole discretion deems fit, and to this end
Performance Guarantor agrees that the validity and enforceability of this
Undertaking, including without limitation, the provisions of Section 7 hereof,
shall not be impaired or affected by any of the following: (a) any extension,
modification or renewal of, or indulgence with respect to, or substitutions for,
the Guaranteed Obligations or any part thereof or any agreement relating thereto
at any time; (b) any failure or omission to enforce any right, power or remedy
with respect to the Guaranteed Obligations or any part thereof or any agreement
relating thereto, or any collateral securing the Guaranteed Obligations or any
part thereof; (c) any waiver of any right, power or remedy or of any Termination
Event, Amortization Event, or default with respect to the Guaranteed Obligations
or any part thereof or any agreement relating thereto; (d) any release,
surrender, compromise, settlement, waiver, subordination or modification, with
or without consideration, of any other obligation of any person or entity with
respect to the Guaranteed Obligations or any part thereof; (e) the
enforceability or validity of the Guaranteed Obligations or any part thereof or
the genuineness, enforceability or validity of any agreement relating thereto or
with respect to the Guaranteed Obligations or any part thereof; (f) the
application of payments received from any source to the payment of any payment
obligations of any Other Originator or any part thereof or amounts which are not
covered by this Undertaking even though Recipient (or its assigns) might
lawfully have elected to apply such payments to any part or all of the payment
obligations of such Other Originator or to amounts which are not covered by this
Undertaking; (g) the existence of any claim, setoff or other rights which
Performance Guarantor may have at any time against any Other Originator in
connection herewith or any unrelated transaction; (h) any assignment or transfer
of the Guaranteed Obligations or any part thereof; or (i) any failure on the
part of any Other Originator to perform or comply with any term of the
Agreements or any other document executed in connection

83

therewith or delivered thereunder, all whether or not Performance Guarantor
shall have had notice or knowledge of any act or omission referred to in the
foregoing clauses (a) through (i) of this Section 4.

Section 5. Unenforceability of Guaranteed Obligations Against

Other Originators. Notwithstanding (a) any change of ownership of any Other

Originator or the insolvency, bankruptcy or any other change in the legal status
of any Other Originator; (b) the change in or the imposition of any law, decree,
regulation or other governmental act which does or might impair, delay or in any
way affect the validity, enforceability or the payment when due of the
Guaranteed Obligations; (c) the failure of any Other Originator or Performance



Guarantor to maintain in full force, validity or effect or to obtain or renew
when required all governmental and other approvals, licenses or consents
required in connection with the Guaranteed Obligations or this Undertaking, or
to take any other action required in connection with the performance of all
obligations pursuant to the Guaranteed Obligations or this Undertaking; or (d)
if any of the moneys included in the Guaranteed Obligations have become
irrecoverable from any Other Originator for any other reason other than final
payment in full of the payment obligations in accordance with their terms, this
Undertaking shall nevertheless be binding on Performance Guarantor. This
Undertaking shall be in addition to any other guaranty or other security for the
Guaranteed Obligations, and it shall not be rendered unenforceable by the
invalidity of any such other guaranty or security. In the event that
acceleration of the time for payment of any of the Guaranteed Obligations is
stayed upon the insolvency, bankruptcy or reorganization of any Other Originator
or for any other reason with respect to any Other Originator, all such amounts
then due and owing with respect to the Guaranteed Obligations under the terms of
the Agreements, or any other agreement evidencing, securing or otherwise
executed in connection with the Guaranteed Obligations, shall be immediately due
and payable by Performance Guarantor.

Section 6. Representations and Warranties. Performance Guarantor

hereby represents and warrants to Recipient that:

(a) Organization; Powers. Performance Guarantor (i) is duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing or active status under the laws
of the jurisdiction of its organization, (ii) has all requisite power and
authority to own its Property and to carry on its business as now conducted and
as proposed to be conducted, (iii) is qualified to do business in, and is in
good standing in, every jurisdiction where such qualification is required,
except where the failure so to qualify could not reasonably be expected to
result in a Material Adverse Effect, and (iv) has the power and authority to
execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Undertaking.

(b) Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by
Performance Guarantor of this Undertaking (i) have been duly authorized by all
requisite corporate and, if required, stockholder action and (ii) will not (A)
violate (1) any provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the
certificate or articles of incorporation or other constitutive documents or by-
laws of Performance Guarantor, (2) any order of any Governmental Authority or
(3) any provision of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which
Performance Guarantor is a party or by which any of them or any of their
Property is or may be bound, (B) be in conflict
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with, result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time
or both) a default under, or give rise to any right to accelerate or to require
the prepayment, repurchase or redemption of any obligation under any such
indenture, agreement or other instrument or (C) result in the creation or
imposition of any Adverse Claim upon or with respect to any Property now owned
or hereafter acquired by Performance Guarantor.

(c) No Conflict. The execution and delivery by Performance Guarantor
of this Undertaking, and the performance of its obligations hereunder and
thereunder do not contravene or violate (i) its Organizational Documents, (ii)
any law, rule or regulation applicable to it, (iii) any restrictions under any
agreement, contract or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any
of its property is bound, or (iv) any order, writ, judgment, award, injunction
or decree binding on or affecting it or its property, and do not result in the
creation or imposition of any Adverse Claim on assets of Performance Guarantor
or its Subsidiaries (except as created hereunder) except, in any case, where
such contravention or violation could not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect; and no transaction contemplated hereby requires
compliance with any bulk sales act or similar law.

(d) Governmental Approvals. No action, consent or approval of,
registration or filing with or any other action by any Governmental Authority is
or will be required in connection with this Undertaking.

(e) Enforceability. This Undertaking has been duly executed and
delivered by Performance Guarantor and constitutes a legal, valid and binding
obligation of Performance Guarantor enforceable against Performance Guarantor in
accordance with its terms, except as such enforcement may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws relating
to or limiting creditors' rights generally and by general principles of equity
(regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at
law) .

Section 7. Subrogation; Subordination. Notwithstanding anything to the



contrary contained herein, until the Guaranteed Obligations are paid in full
Performance Guarantor: (a) will not enforce or otherwise exercise any right of
subrogation to any of the rights of Recipient, the Agent or Blue Ridge against
any Other Originator, (b) hereby waives all rights of subrogation (whether
contractual, under Section 509 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, at law or
in equity or otherwise) to the claims of Recipient, the Agent and Blue Ridge
against any Other Originator and all contractual, statutory or legal or
equitable rights of contribution, reimbursement, indemnification and similar
rights and "claims" (as that term is defined in the United States Bankruptcy
Code) which Performance Guarantor might now have or hereafter acquire against
any Other Originator that arise from the existence or performance of Performance
Guarantor's obligations hereunder, (c) will not claim any setoff, recoupment or
counterclaim against any Other Originator in respect of any liability of
Performance Guarantor to such Other Originator and (d) waives any benefit of and
any right to participate in any collateral security which may be held by
Beneficiaries, the Agent or Blue Ridge. The payment of any amounts due with
respect to any indebtedness of any Other Originator now or hereafter owed to
Performance Guarantor is hereby subordinated to the prior payment in full of all
of the Guaranteed Obligations. Performance Guarantor agrees that, after the
occurrence of any default in the
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payment or performance of any of the Guaranteed Obligations, Performance
Guarantor will not demand, sue for or otherwise attempt to collect any such
indebtedness of any Other Originator to Performance Guarantor until all of the
Guaranteed Obligations shall have been paid and performed in full. If,
notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, Performance Guarantor shall collect,
enforce or receive any amounts in respect of such indebtedness while any
obligations are still unperformed or outstanding, such amounts shall be
collected, enforced and received by Performance Guarantor as trustee for
Recipient (and its assigns) and be paid over to Recipient (or its assigns) on
account of the Guaranteed Obligations without affecting in any manner the
liability of Performance Guarantor under the other provisions of this
Undertaking. The provisions of this Section 7 shall be supplemental to and not
in derogation of any rights and remedies of Recipient under any separate
subordination agreement which Recipient may at any time and from time to time
enter into with Performance Guarantor.

Section 8. Termination of Performance Undertaking. Performance
Guarantor's obligations hereunder shall continue in full force and effect until
all Aggregate Unpaids are finally paid and satisfied in full and the Receivables
Purchase Agreement is terminated, provided that this Undertaking shall continue
to be effective or shall be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time
payment or other satisfaction of any of the Guaranteed Obligations is rescinded
or must otherwise be restored or returned upon the bankruptcy, insolvency, or
reorganization of any Other Originator or otherwise, as though such payment had
not been made or other satisfaction occurred, whether or not Recipient (or its
assigns) is in possession of this Undertaking. No invalidity, irregularity or
unenforceability by reason of the federal bankruptcy code or any insolvency or
other similar law, or any law or order of any government or agency thereof
purporting to reduce, amend or otherwise affect the Guaranteed Obligations shall
impair, affect, be a defense to or claim against the obligations of Performance
Guarantor under this Undertaking.

Section 9. Effect of Bankruptcy. This Performance Undertaking
shall survive the insolvency of any Other Originator and the commencement of any
case or proceeding by or against any Other Originator under the federal
bankruptcy code or other federal, state or other applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency or reorganization statutes. No automatic stay under the federal
bankruptcy code with respect to any Other Originator or other federal, state or
other applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization statutes to which any
Other Originator is subject shall postpone the obligations of Performance
Guarantor under this Undertaking.

Section 10. Setoff. Regardless of the other means of obtaining
payment of any of the Guaranteed Obligations, Recipient (and its assigns) is
hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, without notice to
Performance Guarantor (any such notice being expressly waived by Performance
Guarantor) and to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any
deposits and other sums against the obligations of Performance Guarantor under
this Undertaking, whether or not Recipient (or any such assign) shall have made
any demand under this Undertaking and although such obligations may be
contingent or unmatured.

Section 11. Taxes. All payments to be made by Performance

Guarantor hereunder shall be made free and clear of any deduction or
withholding. If Performance
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Guarantor is required by law to make any deduction or withholding on account of
tax or otherwise from any such payment, the sum due from it in respect of such
payment shall be increased to the extent necessary to ensure that, after the
making of such deduction or withholding, Recipient receive a net sum equal to
the sum which they would have received had no deduction or withholding been
made.

Section 12. Further Assurances. Performance Guarantor agrees that
it will from time to time, at the request of Recipient (or its assigns), provide
information relating to the business and affairs of Performance Guarantor as
Recipient may reasonably request. Performance Guarantor also agrees to do all
such things and execute all such documents as Recipient (or its assigns) may
reasonably consider necessary or desirable to give full effect to this
Undertaking and to perfect and preserve the rights and powers of Recipient
hereunder.

Section 13. Successors and Assigns. This Performance Undertaking
shall be binding upon Performance Guarantor, its successors and permitted
assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Recipient and
its successors and assigns. Performance Guarantor may not assign or transfer any
of its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of each of
Recipient and the Agent. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing
sentence, Recipient may assign or otherwise transfer the Agreements, any other
documents executed in connection therewith or delivered thereunder or any other
agreement or note held by them evidencing, securing or otherwise executed in
connection with the Guaranteed Obligations, or sell participations in any
interest therein, to any other entity or other person, and such other entity or
other person shall thereupon become vested, to the extent set forth in the
agreement evidencing such assignment, transfer or participation, with all the
rights in respect thereof granted to the Beneficiaries herein.

Section 14. Amendments and Waivers. No amendment or waiver of any
provision of this Undertaking nor consent to any departure by Performance
Guarantor therefrom shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and
signed by Recipient, the Agent and Performance Guarantor. No failure on the part
of Recipient to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right hereunder shall
operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any
right hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise
of any other right.

Section 15. Notices. All notices and other communications provided
for hereunder shall be made in writing and shall be addressed as follows: if to
Performance Guarantor, at the address set forth beneath its signature hereto,
and if to Recipient, at the addresses set forth beneath its signature hereto, or
at such other addresses as each of Performance Guarantor or any Recipient may
designate in writing to the other. Each such notice or other communication shall
be effective (1) if given by telecopy, upon the receipt thereof, (2) if given by
mail, three (3) Business Days after the time such communication is deposited in
the mail with first class postage prepaid or (3) if given by any other means,
when received at the address specified in this Section 15.
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Section 16. GOVERNING LAW. THIS UNDERTAKING SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS (AND NOT THE LAW OF CONFLICTS) OF THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

Section 17. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. EACH OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTOR
AND RECIPIENT HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE NON-EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF
ANY UNITED STATES FEDERAL OR ILLINOIS STATE COURT SITTING IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS
IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS UNDERTAKING, THE
AGREEMENTS OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH OR DELIVERED
THEREUNDER AND EACH OF THE PERFORMANCE GUARANTOR AND RECIPIENT HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY AGREES THAT ALL CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING MAY
BE HEARD AND DETERMINED IN ANY SUCH COURT AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY OBJECTION
IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE AS TO THE VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN SUCH A COURT OR THAT SUCH COURT IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

Section 18. Bankruptcy Petition. Performance Guarantor hereby
covenants and agrees that, prior to the date that is one year and one day after
the payment in full of all outstanding senior Indebtedness of Blue Ridge, it
will not institute against, or join any other Person in instituting against,
Blue Ridge any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or
liquidation proceedings or other similar proceeding under the laws of the United
States or any state of the United States.

Section 19. Miscellaneous. This Undertaking constitutes the entire



agreement of Performance Guarantor with respect to the matters set forth herein.
The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any
remedies provided by law or any other agreement, and this Undertaking shall be
in addition to any other guaranty of or collateral security for any of the
Guaranteed Obligations. The provisions of this Undertaking are severable, and in
any action or proceeding involving any state corporate law, or any state or
federal bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other law affecting the rights
of creditors generally, if the obligations of Performance Guarantor hereunder
would otherwise be held or determined to be avoidable, invalid or unenforceable
on account of the amount of Performance Guarantor's liability under this
Undertaking, then, notwithstanding any other provision of this Undertaking to
the contrary, the amount of such liability shall, without any further action by
Performance Guarantor or Recipient, be automatically limited and reduced to the
highest amount that is valid and enforceable as determined in such action or
proceeding. Any provisions of this Undertaking which are prohibited or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective
to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the
remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any
jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any
other jurisdiction. Unless otherwise specified, references herein to "Section"
shall mean a reference to sections of this Undertaking.

88

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Performance Guarantor has caused this Undertaking
to be executed and delivered as of the date first above written.

ACTUANT CORPORATION
By:

Name:
Title:

Address for notices:
6100 North Baker Road
Glendale, WI 53209

Attn: Terry M. Braatz

Phone: (414) 247-544¢
Fax: (414) 228-6112
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SCHEDULE A
DOCUMENTS TO BE DELIVERED TO THE AGENT
ON OR PRIOR TO THE INITIAL PURCHASE

1. Executed copies of the Receivables Purchase Agreement, duly
executed by the parties thereto.

2. Copy of the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of each
Seller Party certified by its Secretary authorizing such Person's execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other documents to be
delivered by it hereunder.

3. Articles or Certificate of Incorporation of each Seller Party
certified by the Secretary of State of its jurisdiction of incorporation on or
within thirty (30) days prior to the initial Purchase.

4. Good Standing Certificate for each Seller Party issued by the
Secretaries of State of its state of incorporation and each jurisdiction where
it has material operations, each of which is listed below:

a. Seller:

b. Servicer:

5. A certificate of each Seller Party's Secretary certifying:
(a) A copy of the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of such

Seller Party, authorizing its execution, delivery and performance of the
Receivables Purchase Agreement and the other documents to be delivered by it
thereunder;

(b) A copy of the Organizational Documents of such Seller Party
(also certified, to the extent that such documents are filed with any
governmental authority, by the Secretary of State of the jurisdiction of
organization of such Seller Party on or within thirty (30) days prior to
closing);

(c) Good Standing Certificates for such Seller Party issued by



the Secretaries of State of its state of incorporation and each jurisdiction
where it has material operations; and

(d) The names and signatures of the officers authorized on its
behalf to execute the Receivables Purchase Agreement and any other documents to
be delivered by it thereunder.

6. Pre-filing state and federal tax lien, judgment lien and UCC
lien searches against Seller from the States of Nevada and (and
applicable local filing offices).
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7. Time stamped receipt copies of proper financing statements,
duly filed under the UCC on or before the date of the initial Purchase in all
jurisdictions as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the Agent, desirable,
under the UCC of all appropriate jurisdictions or any comparable law in order to
perfect the ownership interests contemplated by this Agreement.

8. Time stamped receipt copies of proper UCC termination
statements, if any, necessary to release all security interests and other rights
of any Person in the Receivables, Contracts or Related Security previously
granted by Seller.

9. Executed copies of Collection Account Agreements for each
Lock-Box and Collection Account.

10. A favorable opinion of legal counsel for the Seller Parties
reasonably acceptable to the Agent which addresses the following matters and
such other matters as the Agent may reasonably request:

(a) Each of the Seller Parties is a corporation duly organized,
validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the state of

(b) Each of the Seller Parties has all requisite authority to
conduct its business in each jurisdiction where failure to be so qualified would
have a material adverse effect on such entity's business.

(c) The execution and delivery by each of the Seller Parties of
the Transaction Document to which it is a party and its performance of its
obligations thereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary organizational
action and proceedings on the part of such entity and will not:

(i) require any action by or in respect of, or filing with, any
governmental body, agency or official (other than the filing of UCC
financing statements) ;

(11) contravene, or constitute a default under, any provision of
applicable law or regulation or of its articles or certificate of
incorporation or bylaws or of any agreement, judgment, injunction, order,
decree or other instrument binding upon such entity; or

(iii) result in the creation or imposition of any Adverse Claim on
assets of such entity or any of its Subsidiaries (except as contemplated by
the Transaction Documents) .

(d) Each of the Transaction Documents to which each of
the Seller Parties is a party has been duly executed and delivered by such
entity and constitutes the legally valid, and binding obligation of such entity
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent the enforcement
thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors' rights generally and subject also to the availability
of equitable remedies if equitable remedies are sought.
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(e) The provisions of the Receivables Purchase Agreement
are effective to create valid security interests in favor of the Agent, for the
benefit of the Secured Parties, in all of Seller's right, title and interest in
and to the Receivables and Related Security described therein which constitute
"accounts" or "general intangibles" (each as defined in the UCC) (collectively,
the "Opinion Collateral"), as security for the payment of the Aggregate Unpaids.

(f) Each of the UCC-1 Financing Statements naming Seller
as debtor, and Agent, as secured party, to be filed in the [describe filing
offices], is in appropriate form for filing therein. Upon filing of such UCC-1

Financing Statements in such filing offices and payment of the required filing
fees, the security interest in favor of the Agent, for the benefit of the
Secured Parties, in the Opinion Collateral will be perfected.

(9) Based solely on our review of the [describe UCC
Search Reports], and assuming (i) the filing of the Financing Statements and
payment of the required filing fees in accordance with paragraph (f) and (ii)
the absence of any intervening filings between the date and time of the Search



Reports and the date and time of the filing of the Financing Statements, the
security interest of the Agent in the Opinion Collateral is prior to any
security interest granted in the Opinion Collateral by Seller, the priority of
which is determined solely by the filing of a financing statement in the
[describe filing offices].

(h) Neither of the Seller Parties is a "holding company"
or a "subsidiary holding company" of a "holding company" within the meaning of
the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended, or an "investment
company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

11. A Compliance Certificate.

12. The Fee Letter.

13. A Monthly Report as at , 2001.
14. Executed copies of (i) all consents from and

authorizations by any Persons and (ii) all waivers and amendments to existing
credit facilities, that are necessary in connection with this Agreement.

15. Partial Release, duly executed by Credit Suisse First
Boston, as collateral agent under the Parent's credit agreement, with respect to
the Receivables and Related Security, together with UCC-3 partial releases
consistent therewith.

16. If applicable, a direction letter executed by each of
the Seller Parties authorizing the Agent and Blue Ridge, and directing
warehousemen to allow the Agent and Blue Ridge to inspect and make copies from
such Seller Party's books and records maintained at off-site data processing or
storage facilities.

17. The Liquidity Agreement, duly executed by each of the
parties thereto.
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18. If applicable, for each Liquidity Bank that is not

incorporated under the laws of the United States of America, or a state thereof,
two duly completed copies of United States Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN
or W-8ECI, as applicable, certifying in either case that such Liquidity Bank is
entitled to receive payments under the Agreement without deduction or
withholding of any United States federal income taxes.
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